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Financial Highlights

RESULTS SUMMARY
(For the year ended 31 December 2013, consolidated)

(RMB’000) 2012

(RESEIES)

Revenue and profit:

Revenue 33,437,688 31,252,572 27,817,178 6,964,551 5,092,883
Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,444,722 1,448,543 1,181,726 454,888 (288,849)
Profit/(loss) after taxation 1,164,675 1,266,241 907,962 342,590 (288,780)

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 796,334 970,702 674,556 198,561 (165,566)
Non-controlling interests 368,341 295,539 233,406 149,029 (123,214)

Basic earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company (RMB) 0.69 0.85 0.58 0.29 (0.25)
Diluted earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company (RMB) 0.42 0.51 0.35 0.29 (0.25)
Dividends per share attributable to the

owners of the Company (RMB) - - 0.03 - -

ASSETS SUMMARY
(As at 31 December 2013, consolidated)

(RMB’000) 2012 2011

(RESEIEE)) (Restated)

Total assets 47,001,335 40,085,513 36,857,120 17,267,413 13,626,354
Total liabilities 34,283,715 28,526,744 26,142,255 12,318,964 9,802,017
Total equity 12,717,620 11,558,769 10,714,865 4,948,449 3,824,337
Equity attributable to owners of the

Company 8,317,817 7,569,692 6,636,143 1,977,482 1,698,513
Non-controlling interests 4,399,803 3,989,077 4,078,722 2,970,967 2,125,824

Basic net assets per share attributable to

owners of the Company (RMB) 7.49 6.82 5.98 2.94 2.52
Diluted net assets per share attributable to
owners of the Company (RMB) 4.35 3.96 3.47 2.94 2.52
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Financial Highlights

REVENUE
RMB Thousand
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Chairman’s Statement

It is my honor to present the 2013 Annual
Report of AVIC International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) on behalf of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), to the
shareholders, business partners and supporters
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”).

During the year of 2013, the Group
recorded a consolidated revenue from
continuing operations of approximately
RMB33,437,688,000, representing an increase
of approximately 7% over the previous year of
RMB31,252,572,000. The profit attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB796,334,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 18% as compared with
approximately RMB970,702,000 of the previous
year.

2013 was a year when global economy was
still undergoing a profound restructuring
after financial crisis and China’s economy
confronted pressures from structural slow-
down. Facing severe challenges in the external
macroeconomic situation, the Group continued
to affirm its strategy of “SupremacyeSurpass”,
promote its leading position in the industry, attached a great importance on efficiency and effectiveness, and stress
on its yearly strategic theme of “ImplementationeEfficiencyeEffectiveness”, so as to promote sustainable and rapid
development of various businesses. Liquid crystal displays (LCD) business in high technology electronics products
section achieved substantial growth in profit; the output of PCB business kept hitting record highs benefiting
from the development of 4G. The watch business in retails and high-end customer product section continuously
enhanced its brand influence and optimized the product structure as well as its channel management. Regarding
the real estate and hotel section, the construction and sales momentum of domestic real estate development
projects were satisfactory while the engineering project in Sri Lanka attained historical breakthrough. Regarding
ship engineering business in trading and logistics section, the Company completed its acquisition of Deltamarin
Oy (=4t BEAMAAEEEET A 7)) in Finland and offered a series of services including design, trading and investment for
customers. Regarding the mechanical engineering business, projects such as overseas cement and power station
engineering project contracting (EPC) and mobile hospitals achieved smooth progress with successful market
expansions. A wide range of measures were adopted progressively in resources investment and development
business to deal with the challenges in resources market.
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Chairman’s Statement

While facilitating continuous and rapid business development, the Group also strives to enhance operation, value
creation and risk management excellence, strengthen management innovation, optimize the management of major
business flows and process and boost the efficiency and effectiveness of asset operations as well as improve
leadership and the establishment of new corporate cultures and fulfill social responsibilities in an active manner.
With an aim to manifest our mission and responsibility in relation to social services and contribution, we actively
engaged in numerous overseas projects relating to local people’s livelihood in addition to promoting domestic
charitable activities.

Looking forward to 2014, given the complex macro-economic circumstances and the pressure arising from the
transformation of service in the e-commerce era and reshaped business model, the Group will adhere to the
strategy of “Development-in-focus, Effectiveness Enhancement, Structural Adjustment and Risk Control”, insist on
the inherent strategy and development objectives, pursue the leading position in the industry, intensify business
transformation and escalation, facilitate international development and professional restructuring and integration
while seizing future development opportunities in key industries in an active manner. By targeting at becoming the
leader in the industry, the Company will continuously promote business model innovation, enhance competitiveness
and refine management as well as apply innovative management tools and means in order to facilitate effectiveness
and efficiency of core businesses and further improve the business, asset and liability structure of the Company.
The transformation of the current mechanism will be further enhanced to improve precaution and control towards
major risks and strengthen the momentum for sustainable development.

Little efforts accumulate and help. Amid the opportunities and challenges towards our objectives, the Group will
facilitate its currently satisfactory operations to excellence and fulfill our dreams in concerted and dedicated efforts
together with our staff and business partners.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my most sincere gratitude to all the staff for their valuable

contribution and all shareholders, business partners and people from all walks of life for their support. We will
continue to dedicate ourselves to creating better returns for our shareholders, customers and staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CORPORATE ORGANIZATION CHART

National Council for on of Chin
L R PAvistoR Indtstry) Wole™)

Aviation Industry

| 14.31% 62.52% 8.86% 14.31%
AVIC International
Holding Corporation
(“AVIC International”)
| 100%
AVIC International Shenzhen
Company Limited
(“AVIC Shenzhen”) 39.37%
35.63%
AVIC International
Holdings Limited
High-tech Retails and High-end Real Estate Trading and Resources Investment Material associates/
Electronic Products Consumer Products and Hotel Logistics and Development joint ventures
e N\ o - ) e : ) A e N\
Tianma Micro- 3 Beijing AVIC Ruixin China National Shenzhen AVIC Wuhan Tianma Micro-
} Fiyta Holdings Investment and Aero-Technology )
electronics Co., Ltd. : “Er A > Resources Co., Ltd. electronics Co., Ltd.
i ) Limited (“Fiyta”) — Management Company | [~ Beiing Company Limited B M . ) ;
(“Tianma”) 41.49% o e oo ” (“AVIC Resource) (“Wuhan Tianma”)
o 4970 Limited (“Beijing (“Beijing Company”) o o
45.62% oo N 100% 10%
_ ) L Ruixin”) 90% ) \_ 100% ) _ )
) v : A 4 " :
) ).<I an AVIC Raise China National AVIC Real Estate
Shennan Circuit Xikong Real Estate Aero-Technology o
o . Company Limited
—  Co., Ltd. (“SCC") —  Company Limited — Guangzhou Company | ("AVIC Real Estate’)
93% (“Xi'an Raise) Limited (“Guangzhou 22.35%
L 51% ) \_ Company”) 100% ) '
N\ e ’ : N
Shenzhen Aero- RC‘henF?dul é\/tICt ACh'n_? N;itloral KHD Humboldt
| | Fasteners MFG Co,, | | Ca|se eaL‘ S'taz || Xlero- eé nology | Wedag International
Ltd. (“AFM Company”) wompany Cmited famen fompany AG (*KHD") (Note 2)
100% (“Chengdu Raise”) Limited (“Xiamen 42.05%
L 60% ) L Company”) 100% )
(" China National Aero- ) | (" Ghina National Aero- | AVIC
Technology International Technology Trade and International Vanke
— Engineering Company | |~ Economic Development —{  Company Limited
Limited (“Engineering Company Limited (“TED (“AVIC Vanke”)
\_ Company’)100% ] | | Company”)97.56% ) 47.12%
Guangdong ) ( AVIC International h
International Building Renewable Energy
~ Industrial Co., Ltd. 1 Development Co., Ltd.
(“GIB Company”) (“RED Company”)
L 75% ) L 100% )

Note 1: Aviation Industry owned approximately 76.83% of the shares of AVIC International as at 31 December 2013. In January
2014, Aviation Industry’s shareholding in AVIC International is decreased to approximately 62.52%.

Note 2: The Company owned approximately 20.00% of the issued share capital of KHD as at 31 December 2013. In March
2014, the Group’s shareholding in KHD is increased to approximately 42.05%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The consolidated revenue and profit contributions of the Company in its consolidated results for the year 2013

were primarily derived from the following business sections and subsidiaries:

Percentage of
equity interests

held by
Business sections Name of subsidiaries the Company

Principal activities

High-tech Electronic Tianma Micro-electronics 45.62%
Products Co., Ltd. (“Tianma”)
Shennan Circuit Co., Ltd. 93%
(HSCCH)
Shenzhen Aero-Fasteners MFG 100%

Co., Ltd. (“AFM Company”)

Retails and High-end Fiyta Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”) 41.49%
Consumer Products

Real Estate and Hotel Beijing AVIC Ruixin Investment 90%
and Management Company
Limited (“Beijing Ruixin”)

Chengdu AVIC Raise Real Estate 60%
Company Limited (“Chengdu
Raise”)

Xi'an AVIC Raise Xikong Real 51%
Estate Company Limited
(“Xi"an Raise”)

China National Aero - 100%

Technology International
Engineering Company
Limited (“Engineering
Company”)

Guangdong International 75%

Building Industrial Co., Ltd.
(“GIB Company”)
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Manufacture and sales of liquid crystal
displays and modules (“LCD”)

Manufacture and sales of printed circuit
boards and packaging substrate
(HPCBH)

High intensity bolts, precision screws
and screw nuts, irregular parts

Manufacture of middle to high-end wrist
watches and chain store sales of
luxury watches

Mainly engages in residential premises
development business and industrial
property development

Mainly engages in residential premises
development business and industrial
property development

Mainly engages in residential premises
development business and industrial
property development

Mainly engages in general contracting
of international engineering
construction, overseas property
development and general contracting
of domestic construction engineering

Hotel operation



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Percentage of
equity interests

held by

Business sections Name of subsidiaries the Company Principal activities

Trading and Logistics China National Aero - 100%  Trading and logistics of shipping,
Technology Beijing Company cement engineering, machinery
Limited (“Beijing Company”) vehicles and electric power facilities,

etc.
China National Aero — 100%  Trading and logistics of machinery

Technology Guangzhou vehicles, medical facilities and
Company Limited bitumen engineering

(“Guangzhou Company”)

China National Aero — 100%  Trading and logistics of shipping, stone
Technology Xiamen Company materials
Limited (“Xiamen Company”)

China National Aero - 97.5%  Tendering agency and information
Technology Trade and application service
Economic Development
Company Limited (“TED

Company”)
AVIC International Renewable 100% Research and development of energy
Energy Development equipment, energy management
Co., Ltd. (“RED Company”) contract, engineering project
management
Resources Investment Shenzhen AVIC Resources Co., 100%  Investment and development of
and Development Ltd. (“AVIC Resource”) agriculture-related resources
business

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SECTIONS IN 2013

® High-tech Electronic

® Retail and High-end Consumer Products
Real Estate and Hotel

» Trading and Logistics

» Resources Investment and Development
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Summary of Performance

During the year of 2013, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB33,437,688,000, representing an increase of approximately 7% over the previous year of RMB31,252,572,000.
The profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB796,334,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 18% as compared with approximately RMB970,702,000 of the corresponding period of 2012.

2013 was a year when global economy was still undergoing a profound restructuring after financial crisis and
China’s economy confronted pressures from structural slow-down. Facing severe challenges in the external
macroeconomic situation, the Group continued to affirm its strategy of“Supremacy e Surpass”, promote its
leading position in the industry, attached a great importance on efficiency and effectiveness, and stress on its
yearly strategic theme of “Implementation e Efficiency e Effectiveness”, so as to promote sustainable and rapid
development of various businesses. Liquid crystal displays (LCD) business in high-technology electronics products
section achieved substantial growth in profit; the output of PCB business kept hitting record highs benefiting
from the development of 4G. The watch business in retails and high-end customer product section continuously
enhanced its brand influence and optimized the product structure as well as its channel management. Regarding
the real estate and hotel section, the construction and sales momentum of domestic real estate development
projects were satisfactory while the engineering project in Sri Lanka attained historical breakthrough. Regarding
ship engineering business in trading and logistics section, the Company completed its acquisition of Deltamarin
Oy (Bt B MM ET 2 7)) in Finland and offered a series of services including design, trading and investment for
customers. Regarding the mechanical engineering business, projects such as overseas cement and power station
engineering project contracting (EPC) and mobile hospitals achieved smooth progress with successful market
expansions. A wide range of measures were adopted progressively in resources investment and development
business to deal with the challenges in resources market.

High-tech Electronic Products

As for the business of high-tech electronic products, the Group engages in research and development (R&D),
design, production, sales and service of LCD and PCB products mainly through its subsidiaries, such as Tianma
and SCC. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue generated from high-tech electronic products section
was approximately RMB7,235,578,000, representing an increase of approximately 7% from approximately
RMB®6,779,206,000 for the same period of last year. The profit was approximately RMB498,017,000, representing
an increase of approximately 48% over approximately RMB337,638,000 for the same period of last year.

82 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products (continued)

(1)

@)

LCD
The LCD products of Tianma comprise small-to-medium size liquid crystal displays (LCD) and liquid crystal
modules (LCM), which are mainly used in communication terminal and professional displays.

In 2013, driven by the consumer products including middle-to-high-end mobile phones, the industry
sentiment on small-to-medium size LCD bounced. Tianma seized market opportunities, focused on high
value-added consumer and professional display markets, progressively adjusted the product structure and
customer structure and achieved remarkable results. A wide spectrum of middle-to-high-end smart devices
was initially launched. Customer structure was comprehensively optimized, and the portion of sizeable
domestic and overseas clients was further increased. Tianma supervised the whole process from optimizing
projects, receiving orders, R&D, production to delivery, thus remarkably improving operating efficiency and
profitability while total profit growing more than a double.

On 1 November 2013, Tianma entered into framework agreements in relation to the proposed acquisition of
70% equity interest in Shanghai Tianma Micro-electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Tianma”), 40% equity interest
in Chengdu Tianma Micro-electronics Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Tianma”), 90% equity interest in Wuhan Tianma,
the entire equity interest in Shanghai AVIC Opto-electronics Limited (/&% E FAR A7) (“Shanghai
Opto-electronics”) and the entire equity interest in Shenzhen AVIC Opto-electronics Limited (Il i 3% & F
BRA7]) (“Shenzhen Opto-electronics”). Upon completion of the Acquisition, Tianma’s scope of business,
technical capabilities and industry position will be significantly enhanced while the structure of product and
customers will be furthered optimized.

PCB

PCB products comprise middle-to-high end multi-layer PCB products and packaging substrate, which are
mainly used in high technology fields such as telecommunication, aeronautics and astronautics, medical
services and industrial control.

In the second half of 2013, stimulated by the 4G establishment and the development of consumer
electronics products, the industry environment of PCB recovered. Leveraging on the growth of 4G business,
SCC adopted strategies to solicit key customers and achieved stable business development. The output of
PCB business kept hitting record highs and maintained a sound profit level. The Company obtained crucial
breakthroughs in expanding the client base of substrate business and the third national 02 key scientific
special projects taken up had officially commenced. Moreover, the operation capability of the electronic
packaging business was greatly enhanced. In addition, the technology reform of new production lines was
progressing smoothly and the base in Wuxi had officially commenced construction.

HRERZERRBBERAE 2013FEHmE 83



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retails and High-end Consumer Products

The retails and high-end consumer products section of the Group engages in the production and brand operation
of middle to high-end watches and chain sales of prestigious watches through its subsidiary, Fiyta. As at 31
December 2013, the turnover generated from the retails and high-end consumer products section of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3,041,122,000, representing a growth of approximately 2% when compared with
RMB2,987,857,000 in the previous year. The profit was approximately RMB142,964,000, representing an increase
of approximately 2% as compared with the same period of last year.

In 2013, the overall growth in the luxury watch retail market slowed down while the Internet started to bring
tremendous changes to the business models of traditional industries. By constantly optimizing the business models
of “Product + Channel”, Fiyta continued to adhere to its brand development strategy, facilitated the integration of
key value chain and the implementation of overseas development strategies of vertical integration, continuously
expanded and enriched online and offline sales channels, drove constant product innovation, optimized supply

|n

chain management and strengthened the management innovation projects. Besides, Fiyta watch was the only
watch brand of national watch exhibited in the fabulous exhibition in Basel International Watch for three consecutive
years. Harmony, a brand of Fiyta, reasonably adjusted the pace of opening stores and strived to optimize the
inventory structure so as to progressively enhance technical services for better client experience as well as keep
up on raising the revenue of its stores and spread its influence in the global watch retail industry. In 2013, Fiyta
Technical Centre was recognized as a national enterprise technical centre.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Real Estate and Hotel

The Group engages in real estate development business through its subsidiaries Chengdu Raise, Xi’an Raise
and Beijing Ruixin, and engages in engineering contracting business through Engineering Company. As at 31
December 2013, the real estate and hotel business section of the Group recorded turnover of approximately
RMB4,187,299,000, representing an increase of approximately 51% as compared with RMB2,769,814,000 in the
previous year. The profit after tax was approximately RMB537,398,000, representing a decrease of approximately
2% as compared with RMB550,233,000 in the previous year. Profit after taxation comprises investment gain from
jointly controlled entity and associate, AVIC Vanke and AVIC Real Estate of approximately RMB378,342,000 (2012:
RMB435,279,000).

(1) Real Estate Development

The domestic real estate development projects of the Group are mainly commercial complex in small to
medium cities. In 2013, under the influence of various factors such as national regulation on the macro-
economic and the slowdown in suburbanization, the momentum for domestic real estate investment has
been weakened. The residential and office buildings under the Group’s “AVIC e International Communication
Center (e BIRZmALy)” project in Chengdu have completed examination and delivery while Hancheng
No. 1 (Z# —5%) in Xi'an and innovation project of shanty towns under “Eighteenth Neighbour (4 /\#5)”
achieved remarkable results. Moreover, overseas real estate projects in Tanzania, Sri Lanka and Kenya also
made smooth progress.

RN
?'f:ﬂﬁfﬁ ’&1
@}r%

‘ﬁa %
ir’é‘

Faaatt e e

¥ d L

HHERZERRBERAR 20135 EZRE 85



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Real Estate and Hotel (continued)

@)

Engineering Contracting

The engineering contracting business of the Group mainly comprises general contracting of international
construction projects and gradually expanded into domestic construction project contracting business.
In 2013, under the external environment of keen competition in the international engineering contracting
market, diversified business models and increasing operating risks, the Group focused on developing
regional markets such as East Africa, South Asia and Algeria and undertook numerous large and medium
international engineering projects. In 2013, 33 new international and domestic engineering contracting
projects with total contract value amounting to over ten billion were signed. Moreover, the A09 Highway
project in Sri Lanka had an early delivery while the projects in progress such as the expansion project of
Kenya Nairobi International Airport and the cement project in Rwanda were running smoothly. The overall
business underwent positive development.

Trading and Logistics

The Group mainly engages in ship engineering, mechatronics engineering, tendering agency and information
application service through its subsidiaries, namely Beijing Company, Guangzhou Company, Xiamen Company, TED
Company and RED Company. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s turnover generated from trading and logistics
section was approximately RMB18,600,479,000, increased by approximately 5% from RMB17,656,704,000
of the previous year. The profit after taxation was approximately RMB318,454,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 36% from RMB501,352,000 of the previous year.

(1)

86

Ship Engineering

In 2013, the global shipping market climbed up. The upstream shipping manufacturing industry stabilized
with shipping market transaction volume gradually picking up. The Group completed the acquisition of
Deltamarin Oy in Finland at the beginning of the year and offered a series of services including design,
trading and investment for customers. At the same time, it devoted to the R&D on high value-added
products, improved the management of both ship building and supply chain and bring innovation to the
business model through cooperation and joint contribution. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s shipping
section signed 23 new shipping orders, among which, the orders of 10 ships were in effect. Orders on hand
accumulated to 31 ships. Besides, the Company achieved delivery of 32 ships for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading and Logistics (continued)

) Mechatronics Engineering
The mechatronics engineering business of the Group mainly comprises cement and power station
engineering (EPC), export of machinery vehicles, medical equipment and service. In recent years, developing
countries and regions such as Africa and South Asia have been accelerating infrastructure construction with
strong demands in cement production lines, power stations and construction of roads and bridges. During
the year 2013, the expansion and execution of Beijing Company’s cement EPC Projects in Venezuela,
Malaysia, Iran and Turkey were satisfactory. Also, the expansion and profitability of domestic bitumen
engineering projects maintained a steady upward trend. Power station engineering projects in Texas, the
US, Pakistan and Inner Mongolia, which focused on new energy such as wind power and photovoltaics,
were successfully completed. Meanwhile, the expansion of domestic energy saving service market was
progressing smoothly. The delivery of the mobile hospital project involving 165 ambulances in Zambia was
completed during the year. Besides, Guangzhou Company was on the list of external supplier catalogue of
the Ministry of Commerce of China. In general, the mechatronics engineering business experienced rapid
and positive growth momentum.

3) Tendering Agency and Information Application Service

The Group mainly engages in tendering agency and information application service through TED Company.
In 20183, the Group’s tendering agency business created a new development approach and enhanced
development efforts. Revenue generated from tendering agency and extended business grew by more than
20% year on year. Information application service business adjusted its strategic layout in an active manner
and was committed to developing the markets of end-products for enterprises and individual consumers so
as to advance the top-tier design in the information application arena and strengthen resource integration
and service security capability. The business realized a growth in profit while maintaining its scale.

Resources Investment and Development

The Group engages in investment and development of agricultural-related resources investment and development
businesses through AVIC Resource. As at 31 December 2013, the turnover generated from the Group’s
resources development business was approximately RMB373,210,000 (2012: RMB1,058,991,000). Affected by
the sharp decline of the price of potassium and phosphate product, a loss after tax amounting to approximately
RMB143,473,000 (2012: RMB50,206,000) was recorded.

In 2013, the demand from domestic agricultural fertilizer market was sluggish with declining prices. Faced with
the depressed market environment, AVIC Resource endeavored to improve its operating capability with new
breakthrough in the skills and technologies of potassium fertilizer production. In the meantime, stable progress was
achieved in the R&D of synergist and new phosphate fertilizers and construction of OEM system. AVIC Resource
also completed the acquisition and obtained the control of a potassium ore mine in Pointe Noire of the Republic
of Congo in Africa under the name of Shandong Luyuan Mining Investment Co., Ltd ([ R &RIEEIEEBRE A F)
(“Shandong Luyuan Company”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

2013 2012

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

Restated

Total borrowings 20,090,596 16,661,917
Total liabilities 34,283,715 28,526,744
Non-controlling interests 4,399,803 3,989,077
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 8,317,817 7,569,692
Total assets 47,001,335 40,085,513
Loan-to-equity ratio 157.97% 144.15%
Debt-to-equity ratio 269.58% 246.80%

Loan-to-equity ratio = total loans at the year end over shareholders’ equity at the year end
Debt-to-equity ratio = total liabilities at the year end over shareholders’ equity at the year end

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 20183, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,802,843,000 (2012: RMB4,038,225,000), mainly derived from the following sources:

° Cash and bank deposits at the beginning of the year;

° Bank borrowings, borrowings from related parties and borrowings from third parties; and

o Revenue from operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the total borrowings of the Group totalling amounted to approximately
RMB20,090,596,000 (2012: RMB16,661,917,000) with an annual interest rates from 1.69% to 12.5% (2012:
1.26% to 12.5%). Total borrowings comprised borrowings of RMB18,933,887,000 (2012: RMB14,606,566,000),
borrowings included in other non-current liabilities of RMB940,000,000 (2012: RMB1,190,000,000), and borrowings
included in trade and other payables of RMB216,709,000 (2012: RMB865,351,000).

Capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
RMB1,957,069,000. The details are as follows:

Company Name Project Name

Tianma Equipment upgrade of Tianma 14,830
New demonstration project for Shanghai Tianma 96,760
Wuhan Tianma HD Project 58,410
SCC Production line and machinery equipment investment 471,000
AFM Company Heng Yang Factory Project 37,716
Fiyta Timepiece Industrial Park in Guang Ming New District 7,120
Engineering Company Equipment upgrade 47,409
Beijing Company Yizhuang Industrial Park Project 117,140
Transformation of breakwater, docks and production facilities of 151,793
the ship platforms in Weihai Shipyard
Guangzhou Company Construction and maintenance of bitumen base of AVIC Lutong 16,150
Company Limited (“Lutong Company”)
Construction of plant and purchase of production equipment 31,324
Xiamen Company Office building in exhibition 26,738
AVIC Resource Acquisition of mine exploration rights from Shandong Luyuan 240,660
Company
Monoammonium phosphate project 275,337
0.45 million tons potassium fertilizer project 45,976
Phase 1 metallic silicon project 19,487
Yunnan Hongfu 0.6 million tons flotation project 20,971
Other projects 58,917
Others Equipment upgrade and transformation and construction of 219,331

other facilities

Total 1,957,069
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

Based on information currently available, it is expected that the capital expenditure of the Group for 2014 amounted
to approximately RMB3,008,600,000. The details are as follows:

Company Name Project Name

Tianma New investment in production lines and other project expenses 177,000

SCC No. 8 Building investment project, investment in Wuxi equipment, 971,000
infrastructure investment project

AFM Company Construction of Heng Yang Factory 80,000

Fiyta Project of Timepiece Industrial Park in Guang Ming New District 140,000

Engineering Company  Acquisition of fixed assets and hotel renovation projects 146,500

Beijing Company Yizhuang Industrial Park Project 500,000

Transformation of breakwater, docks and production facilities of 387,290

the ship platforms in Weihai Shipyard

Guangzhou Company Construction and maintenance of bitumen base of its subsidiary, 60,000
Lutong Company

Xiamen Company Office building in exhibition 93,480

AVIC Resource Projects of its subsidiaries related to saltern expansion, 380,060
metallic silicon and potassium fertilizer

Others Equipment upgrade and transformation and construction of 73,270

other facilities

Total 3,008,600

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2014, the global economy will continue to be in the in-depth re-balancing adjustment period.
The domestic economy is undergoing rapid structural adjustment with relatively strong downward pressure.
Given the complex macro-economic circumstances and the pressure arising from the transformation of service
in the e-commerce era and reshaped business model, the Group will adhere to the strategy of “Development-
in-focus, Effectiveness Enhancement, Structural Adjustment and Risk Control”, insist on the inherent strategy
and development objectives, pursue the leading position in the industry, intensify business transformation and
escalation, facilitate international development and professional restructuring and integration while seizing future
development opportunities in key industries in an active manner. By targeting at becoming the leader in the
industry, the Company will continuously promote business model innovation, enhance competitiveness and refine
management as well as apply innovative management tools and means in order to facilitate effectiveness and
efficiency of core businesses and further improve the business, asset and liability structure of the Company. The
transformation of the current mechanism will be further enhanced to improve precaution and control towards major
risks and strengthen the momentum for sustainable development.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products

(1) LCD
It is expected that the competition in the LCD industry will be more stifle but still with slight growth in
2014. Benefit from the upgrade and evolution of consumer electronic devices and the advancement of new
technology applications, middle-to-high-end smart phones will record an above-average growth among
the industry. The Group’s LCD business will closely observe its strategy to be global leader, explore major
international and domestic clients, focus on the middle-to-high-end smart devices and professional display
sector and continue to optimize customer and product structures so as so enhance product technologies,
quality and resources security as well as the marginal contribution of existing businesses. In the meantime, it
will strive to complete major asset restructuring and financing.

) PCB
It is expected that the communication devices market of the PCB business will continue to grow under
the momentum of the global and domestic 4G construction in 2014. SSC’s PCB business will grasp
the opportunities arising from refined market structure to adjust product structure and enlarge the
proportion of profitable products. Substrates business will establish a major customer service platform and
further enhance technological and management level. Electronic packaging business will accelerate the
development of target markets, further increasing operating efficiency.

Retails and High-end Consumer Products

It is expected that the growth of domestic luxury watch retails and high-end watch manufacturing industry will slow
down due to national policies in 2014. Network coverage will be extended with increasingly intensive innovation,
thus bringing keener competition. Under its steady development strategy, Fiyta will strengthen brand recognition
and channels construction of watches under its self-owned brand name watch and prestigious watch under
Harmony while raising output and effectiveness of its shops: strengthen the product technology and marketing
of watches under the self-owned brand name, explore actively online and offline integration and actively develop
e-commerce business; prestigious watches under Harmony will focus on professional operation and refined
management, implement marketing innovation, expand its operating platform, adjust channel and brand structures
and enhance the relationship between partners so as to promote effective operation and potential enhancement.

Real Estate and Hotel

(1) Real Estate Development
It is expected that domestic real estate investment will be under great pressure amid the overall downturn
environment in 2014. The demand in first-tier cities will remain relatively thriving but the segregation in third
and fourth-tier cities will be significant. The Group’s real estate development business will continue to lay
a solid foundation on management and commit to facilitating construction of existing projects and sales
payback while identifying opportunities for new projects. Meanwhile, the Company will seize opportunities
in major overseas regional markets to speed up the expansion and construction of overseas real estate
development projects.

2) Engineering Contracting
It is expected that international engineering contracting markets in major regional markets such as Africa,
South Asia and Middle East will still grow rapidly in 2014. The Group’s engineering contracting business
will optimize and adjust business supervision models and will leverage on East Africa, South Asia and the
Middle East as regional centers to actively expand the international construction engineering contracting
market. With major projects as core business, the Company will enhance project management and profit
management so as to facilitate a growth in scale and boost effectiveness.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading and Logistics

(1)

@

(3)

Ship Engineering

It is expected that the global shipping market will continue to climb up gradually in 2014 and shipping
manufacturing and trading will experience certain level of recovery. The Group will continue to intensify the
comprehensive industry chain model and fully utilize the Group’s competitive edges on design, trading and
investment in shipping business so as to facilitate the signing and implementation of key projects in the
shipping business section. The Group will actively explore high value-added shipping product orders such as
new energy-saving and environmentally-friendly ships and special applications, promoting the transformation
and advancement of shipping engineering business.

Mechatronics Engineering

The Group will capitalize on the opportunity of increasing the shareholding of Germany Humboldt Cement
Equipment Company (“German Humboldt”) and perform resources integration and management integration
so as to build a development model of “China’s speed and cost + Germany’s technology and brand” as well
as establish a united cement engineering procurement center and a technology centre to fully demonstrate
the professionalism and brand value of Germany Humboldt, paving the way for the Group’s cement
EPC business to rank top positions in the world. The power station EPC business will focus on project
development and planned construction and optimize business model, focus on securing the control over our
projects and providing mainly packaging services while actively identifying market opportunities. Businesses
such as medical equipment and services and machinery vehicles will carry out expansion, duplication and
operation based on major target markets such as Africa.

Tendering Agency and Information Application Service

The Group’s tendering agency business will continue to actively expand the domestic market and at
the same time re-plan and reconstruct business management systems. Operating costs will be further
decreased through the establishment and utilization of electronic tendering system. The network information
business will strengthen the system integration. The Group will invest and increase the development in
the internet of things, enhance backstage construction and business structural adjustment, and facilitate
innovation in management models and business models.

Resources Investment and Development

It is expected that the fertilizer industry will keep reducing capacity with decreasing product price in 2014. AVIC
Resource will place emphasis on market expansion and customer development, enhance control on investment
and costs and reduce business nurturing cycle. By advancing exploitation technologies and expanding saltern,
potassium fertilizers will raise the production capacities and utilization rate of saltern. Fertilizers will strengthen the
advancement and evolution on the R&D of new compound fertilizer and synergist, increasing OEM and marketing.
Phosphate fertilizers business will be committed to enhancing output of phosphate mines and the sales of
phosphate.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Amid the extremely severe global economic environment, we responded to the challenges in a prudent manner,
emphasized strategic transition and development, enhanced strategic execution and revised management
mechanism, so as to make historical achievements in the operations and development of the Company in 2013.
While pursuing economic benefits, we proactively adhered to the mission of “Excellent commerce for a better
world”, seek greater social benefits, served the society and facilitated social development. We achieved outstanding
operations through the innovation of management and technology. With a people-oriented focus, we addressed to
the demand of our customers and staff for mutual development, so as to provide a good learning and development
platform for our staff and enhance their sense of belonging. We performed our social commitments in a serious
manner, strived to create a green economy cycle to reduce over-consumption of the natural environment during
development and put the charitable brand of “Lighting up the dreams” into practice with an aim at contributing to
the society with gratitude.

Excellent Operation

In 2013, we closely observed our corporate strategy and applied tools such as Lean Six Sigma and ISO9000
in a comprehensive way in order to boost management innovation. Meanwhile, we proactively researched and
developed advanced technologies and continued to enhanced technological innovation, thus continuously improved
our core corporate competitiveness and established an excellent operational system with higher corporate value.

1) Management Innovation
SCC was awarded the title of “Excellent Enterprise of State-owned Assets (FF SR> HESEEE)” by Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security and SASAC of the State Council.

SCC was awarded the Second Prize of Management Innovation Achievement Awards of Aviation Industry.

Fiyta and Guangzhou Company were awarded the Third Prize of Management Innovation Achievement
Awards of Aviation Industry, respectively.

2) Technology Innovation
As an accountable enterprise, SCC carried out the national 02 major technology project namely the
“development and industrialization of high-density packaging flip chip substrate products”, indicating the
localization of packaging substrate has entered into a new stage.

With three astronauts travelling to the space on “Shenzhou X” with the space watch designed and
manufactured by Fiyta, it was the sixth time that Fiyta’s space watch witnessed the heroic attempts of
Chinese astronauts exploring the space.

Tianma Company held a grand press conference introducing its latest technologies and products and

exhibited the most advanced technologies among the current display business and the extensive application
of its products during its 30th anniversary of establishment.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

People-oriented Approach

We adhered to the people-oriented approach, allowing all staff to work and self-develop with pleasure enjoyment
alongside the development of the Company.

1) Care for Mental Health
As an EAP psychological assistant program for our staff, the “Heart Building Campaign” has covered all staff
in Shenzhen. It has set up a professional counseling hotline to provide our staff with free consultation and
counseling, and carried out various special events regarding mental health as well as provided trainings to
junior management personnel in relation to psychological management skills.

2) Care for Families
In July 2013, SCC officially launched the 2013 summer family camp by
inviting 34 “left-behind” children from 28 families to Long Gang manufacturing
base. With parties, fun family games, a visit to the Ocean Park, the 1= : '
children had a great time. The family games not only brought enjoyment = = ey ....___, ﬁ
to the children, but also inspired parents to think about the ways to better e w; "F-' A
communicate and get along with children. 3

Environmental Protection

The concept of environmental protection is reflected in every aspect in the operations and production of the
Group’s investment enterprises. Double-sided copying in offices, water treatment in factories and the recycling
and development of resources showed that the idea of green development existed in every part of the Group. We
believe that we could only enjoy the nature’s blessing and the momentum for an everlasting business when we
cherish the natural environment.

The wind power project, namely Cirrus Wind 1 (hereinafter referred to as “CW1”), of RED Company officially
commenced commercial operation in 2013. CWI Project, consisted of 17 domestic wind turbines of 3.6 MW each,
a substation of 65 MVA and a switching station, has a capacity of 61.2 MW. It is also the single wind turbine
project with the highest capacity in the U.S. so far, which can provide green and clean electricity to over 12,000
families in the U.S. upon operation.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Environmental Protection (continued)

After over two years of market development, Zhong He Zhong (Beijing) =
Guang Dian Technology Co., Ltd (hereinafter referred to as “Zhong He Zhong Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Company”), the subsidiary of RED Company, fully utilized the spillover effect '
of the project and expanded to other segments of the building energy-saving
business and industrial energy-saving business in addition to consolidating
its market position in the energy-saving lighting market. Meanwhile, amid the
changing market demands, Zhong He Zhong Company further upgraded its
business models to energy hosting, which means providing comprehensive
contract management for the procurement and utilization of energy, the efficiency of energy-consuming equipment
and models and the energy-saving assessment objectives of the Government, as well as providing funding for the
technology and equipment upgrades. As at July 2013, RED Company has completed approximately 20 energy-
saving and upgrading projects in two years, which saved electricity of more than 2,000,000 kWh in total and
created tremendous social and economic benefits.

Starting from emission reduction of greenhouse gases and energy consumption reduction, SCC has assigned
the targets for energy conservation and emission reduction to its plants, work processes, working teams and
individuals, further reinforcing its accountability system for energy conservation and emission reduction. SCC has
invested RMB2,409,000 in 21 energy conservation and technology innovation projects throughout 2013. Through
energy conservation management and energy conservation reform, SCC achieved outstanding energy conservation
during the year with decreasing energy consumption within its work processes.

Cooperation for Mutual Benefits

When businesses all over the world, the Group kept trying to bring our development experience to under-developed
regions in order to share such development results with more people. Such cooperation between multiple parties
for mutual benefits represented our ever-pursuing business model.

In June 2013, the Road AQ9 in Sri Lanka undertaken by Engineering
Company was completed and delivered in Kilinochchi. Mahinda Rajapaksa,
the President of Sri Lankan, attended the completion ceremony. Road A09
with a length of 320 km is the first national road rebuilt after the war in Sri
Lanka, connecting Kandy, a major city in the South, and Jaffna, a city in the
North, and serving as the most important economic “lifeline” of Sri Lanka.
Among which, Engineering Company was contracted to build the section
from Galkulama to Jaffna with a length of 154 km, passing through mine-
infested war zones between the Sri Lanka Government and the Tigers
during the Civil War. It is also regarded as the most difficult and dangerous region among the entire road during the
construction.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Cooperation for Mutual Benefits (continued)

In 2013, the airport in Nairobi, Kenya’s capital, suffered a temporary break-down caused by fire. Engineering
Company solved the emergency for Kenya by participating in the reconstruction project of the temporary airport
terminal. This project, with an investment of US$1 million, was “a gift to Kenya” from AVIC International.

Social Charity

We emphasized education and devoted concerted the efforts of the investment enterprises to light up more
dreams for more children by means of “Teaching-Aid Program” and “Popular Aviation Science”. With our mind on
local economy and people’s livelihood, we enfold the society in the warmth of love through the mobile hospital in
Zambia, staff education in Kenya and the “Hematopoietic Program”.

In 2013, Guangzhou Company, a subsidiary of the Company, completed a three-
year poverty alleviation and development project targeting at Mantang village
in Huacheng town in Wuhua prefecture. In the past three years, Guangzhou
Company created the idea of poverty alleviation and development to help
Mantang village develop a series of “Hematopoietic Program”, thus gaining the
recognition by local government and the public.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Social Charity (continued)

The number of clinical reception and surgeries of the mobile hospital in Zambia
kept increasing since its opening in April 2011. As of August 2013, the nine
mobile hospitals in Zambia received over 320,000 patients and conducted
16,000 surgeries in total. The mobile hospitals in Zambia were operated jointly by
Project Engineering Company and Guangzhou Company. As an ancillary section
to the fixed hygienic infrastructure, mobile hospitals were designed to provide
mobile medical services in remote areas in Zambia.

In August 2013, a sudden fire broke out in Nairobi Jomo Kenyatta International Airport in the capital of Kenya.
Engineering Company endeavoured to assist the airport in putting out the fire together with other companies in
Kenya, and undertook and completed the construction of a temporary access for international arrivals in the Kenya
International Airport in a rapid manner.

In November 2013, the “Shennan Cup” National Airplane Models Competition for 2013
X, was successfully kicked off, attracting approximately 500 fanatics of airplane models

over the country to rival their skills.
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Supervisors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guang Quan, aged 52, senior accountant, MBA of Tongji University ([&]}% X£2), is now the Chief Executive
Officer of AVIC International, chairman of AVIC Shenzhen and executive director and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Wu also acts as an executive director and the chairman of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (“AVIC
INTL”), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wu joined
AVIC Shenzhen in 1982 and the Group in 2003. He has rich experience in finance, administration and operation
management, and has been appointed as the executive director of the Company since 2003.

Mr. You Lei, aged 45, senior engineer, MBA of Tongji University ([F&XZ), MBA of China Europe International
Business School, is now holding the positions of vice president of AVIC International, president of AVIC Shenzhen,
executive director of the Company, the chairman of Tianma, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(“Shenzhen Stock Exchange”), and chairman of SCC. Mr. You acts as an executive director of AVIC INTL, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. You joined AVIC Shenzhen in 1991 and the Group in 1997. He has
rich experience in enterprise operation and administration, and has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company since 2003.

Mr. Pan Lin Wu, aged 50, master of engineering in Beijing Aviation and Astronautics University (3t 5 i 2= fin < K ).
He is now holding the positions of vice president, chief financial officer of AVIC International and executive director
and vice chairman of AVIC INTL, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He served as the chief accountant at
China National Aero-Technology Import and Export Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International, since 2001.
He was appointed as a director and deputy chairman of the board of directors of AVIC United States Company
(PR ER A 7)) in March 2011. Mr. Pan has many years experience in financial management, supervision and
audit, and has substantial experience in the area of finance, capital operation and risk management. He has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company since 2012.

Mr. Chen Hong Liang, aged 46, holds the master degree in business administration from Tongji University ([&])%
AE). He is currently vice president of AVIC International and vice president and AVIC Shenzhen. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in administration and human resources management. He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 2012.

Mr. Liu Jun, aged 52, holds the bachelor degree in engineering from Beijing Aviation College (it = AT ZE£2F%). He
is currently the vice president of AVIC International. He joined China National Aero-Technology Import and Export
Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International, in 1989. Between 1990 and 19983, he was seconded to station
at AVIC Germany. He served as the general manager of Beijing Company. He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling, aged 53, is the independent non-executive director and the chairlady of the Audit Committee
of the Board of the Company. Ms. Wong has over twenty years of experience in accounting and auditing and
mainly provides independent judgments towards the Company’s strategies, performance, resources and industry
practices. She had worked for more than seven years in major international accounting firms and local accounting
firms before she set up her own accounting firm in Hong Kong in 1993. She is currently an independent non-
executive director and chairlady of the audit committee of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited
(formerly known as China Ruifeng Galaxy Renewable Energy Holdings Limited) (stock code: 527), Overseas Chinese
Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366) and Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock
code: 3608), all of which are companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Wong is also an executive director and chief executive officer of JC Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8326), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wong received a bachelor of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1983 and a
postgraduate diploma in account and finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has been registered as a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong since June 1991 and has become a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 1995 and
February 2001, respectively. Ms. Wong has been appointed as the independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2008.

Mr. Wu Wei, aged 41, holds the bachelor of arts from Columbia University, majoring in economy and industrial
engineering. He is now the director of CITIC Securities International Company Limited and responsible for private
equity fund business. He has over 15-year’s experience in enterprise investment and investment bank, and worked
in Deutsche Bank Asia, Henderson Global Investors Asian Fund and Lehman Brothers Asia Limited. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company since 2009.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 50, received a doctoral degree in economics from China Social Science College Graduate
School (B &@RIERRATZE4B7). He is currently the deputy head of the China Social Science College Graduate
School of Economics (FR Bt & FIEkz £&E A FTFT). Mr. Zhang started to work on China Social Science College
Graduate School of Economics in 1988. He once joined and organized several key topics of international co-
operation with the World Bank, Asian Development Band and International Labor Organization and social
science funds as well as national topics. He published several essays based on theory research and surveys. His
major research fields are the growth of China economy and formation of capital. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 2012.
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Profile of Directors and Supervisors

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Huang Bin, aged 60, graduated from Northwest Industrial University (Fidk T2 X£28). He is currently the Vice
President of AVIC International. He joined the Ministry of Aviation Industry of the PRC in 1980 and was the deputy
committee secretary of the party, secretary of discipline inspection committee and chairman of labor union of China
National Aero-Technology Import and Export Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International. He has been
appointed the supervisor of the Company since 2012.

Mr. Deng Bo Song, aged 56, senior economist, graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, is
now the party secretary and deputy general manager of Tianma. He was the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Kaishi Industry Co., Ltd.; since May 2003, he has successively held the positions of deputy party secretary,
deputy general manager, general manager, supervisor of audit and inspection department of Tianma. He has been
appointed the supervisor of the Company since 2009.

Ms. Wang Xin, aged 62, holds a master’'s degree and is now the senior partner of Beijing Horizon Law Firm,
Shenzhen Office and the arbitrator of Shenzhen Arbitration Committee. She had acted as the senior judge in
Changsha Intermediate People’s Court and Economic Tribunal of Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court. Ms. Wang
has accumulated rich experience in economic and civil judgment; some difficult economic and civil cases under
the charge of Ms. Wang have been taken as the judicial guidance in Shenzhen. She has been appointed as the
supervisor of the Company since 2009.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Huang Yong Feng, aged 40, is a senior engineer, a graduate of a master degree from Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (It =2 A KE) and a graduate of the executive master degree of business
administration from China Europe International Business School (P EIEIFR Trg&F%). He is currently the director
of Fiyta, director of AVIC Real Estate, director of Tianma, director of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd.
(“Rainbow?”), chairman of Castic-SMP Machinery Corporation Limited (Z3I|/R s & 55 R A 7l) (“Castic-SMP”).
He successively held the positions of manager of corporate strategy and management department, assistant to
general manager of AVIC Shenzhen, managing director of Castic-SMP. He once acted as the joint secretary of the
third and fourth session of the Board of the Company. He has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company since 2012 for the second time.
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1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has complied with Company Law
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), faithfully performed the obligations required by the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code”). The Company has also directed
its daily activities in strict compliance with various established corporate governance systems and reviewed
from time to time its operations and management conducts, adhered to good principles of corporate
governance, improved the transparency and independence of company operation, enhanced its corporate
governance standards on an on-going basis, ensured a stable development of the Company and strived
for maximization of shareholders’ value. The Company, by complying with the principles and requirements
set out in the Code, has formulated relevant system, regulations, procedures and plans to maintain good
communication between shareholders and the Board, encouraged shareholders to attend annual general
meeting and other general meetings and enabled shareholders to understand the application of relevant
principles.

Except for Code Provision A.2.1, during the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, the
Company has adopted and complied with all the code provisions.

Details of the deviation from the above Code Provision A.2.1 is set out in the following section headed “4.
Chairman and Chief Executive”.

2. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct in respect of
securities transactions.

The Company, having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and
supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisors”), confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2013,
all Directors and Supervisors had complied with the required standards of dealing in securities specified
in the Model Code and relevant conduct code of its own in respect of any securities transactions by the
Directors.
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BOARD

The composition of the Board

In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19th June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with articles of association of the Company. The
term of the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is 3 years and will end at the 2014
annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015. The Board comprises a total of 8 Directors,
including 5 executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Guang Quan (Chairman of the Board), Mr. You Lei (Vice
Chairman of the Board), Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and Mr. Liu Jun; and 3 independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping.

Details of meetings and attendance

The numbers and attendance of general meetings, Board meetings and meetings of other committees held
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows, in which each Director attended all
meetings in person with no alternate director being appointed:

General
Meeting
(including
annual general
meeting and
extraordinary

general Audit Remuneration  Nomination
meeting) Board Committee Committee Committee
Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/
number of number of Attendance number of number of number of
meetings* meetings* Rate meetings* meetings* meetings*

Executive Directors

Wu Guang Quan (Chairman) 1/5 13/17MNote) 76% 1/1 2/2
You Lei (Vice Chairman) 1/5 11/17Mote 65%
Pan Lin Wu 3/5 1717 100%
Chen Hong Liang 3/5 15/17MNote) 88% 11 2/2
Liu Jun 1/5 1717 100%

Independent non-executive Directors

Wong Wai Ling 1/5 1717 100% 2/2 1/1 2/2

Wu Wei 1/5 1717 100% 2/2 1/1 2/2

Zhang Ping 1/5 1717 100% 2/2 11 2/2
(3 refer to the number of meetings convened at the period of each director/member appointed during the financial

year ended 31 December 2013.
Note: Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. You Lei and Mr. Chen Hong Liang were required to abstain from voting on the

respective four Board meetings, six Board meetings and two Board meetings during the financial year ended 31
December 2013.
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Responsibility of the Board and the management

The Board is responsible for instituting the overall target, policies, internal control and risk management
system of the Group. In addition, the Board also supervises the detailed matters which may affect the
equities of all shareholders, such as financial status, human resources, investment and financing, the
transaction activities which are notifiable as defined in the Listing Rules, and exercises its management
and decision-making powers authorised under the articles of association or in general meetings in terms of
capital reconstructing. Details of the responsibilities and powers of the Board in terms of the Company’s
development strategies and management as well as its responsibilities and powers to supervise and monitor
the Company’s development and operation are set out in the articles of association of the Company.

The directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ general meeting and serve a term of 3 years. A director
may serve consecutive terms if be re-elected upon the expiration of his term. Except the retired directors
and the candidate recommended by the board of directors, commencing on the second date after the
dispatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for election of director(s), a shareholder is entitled to lodge
a notice in writing to the Company to nominate directors, the period for lodgment of such notice shall be
7 days. Subject to the relevant laws and administrative regulations, any director (including directors act as
the manager or other senior management officers) with an unexpired term of office may be removed by an
ordinary resolution of a shareholders’ general meeting (but without prejudice to any claim for compensation
pursuant to any contract). The board of directors shall be responsible to the shareholders’ general meeting
and shall have the following duties and powers:

(1) to be responsible for convening shareholders’ general meeting and to report its work at the
shareholders’ general meeting;

2) to execute the resolutions passed at the shareholders’ general meeting;

3) to determine the business plans and investment proposals of the Company;
(4) to prepare the annual financial budget and final accounts of the Company;

(5) to prepare the plans for profit distribution and loss recovery for the Company;

(6) to prepare proposals for increasing or reducing the registered capital of the Company, and proposals
for the issue of debenture;

(7) to draw up proposal for merger, separation or dissolution of the Company;
(8) to decide on the set-up of the internal management structure of the Company;
9) to appoint or dismiss the manager and to appoint or dismiss vice-manager, the chief financial officer

in accordance with the recommendations of the manager and to determine their remuneration
packages;
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Responsibility of the Board and the management (continued)
(10)  to set up the basic management system of the Company;

(11)  to draw up proposal for amending the Articles of Association;

(12)  to draw up proposal for material acquisition and disposal;

(18) subject to the requirements of relevant laws, regulations, rules and the Articles of Association,
exercise the Company’s powers of fund-raising and borrowing, and determine pledge, leasing,
subcontract or transfer of assets of the Company, and to authorise a manager to exercise powers
within the scope hereof; and

(14)  subject to the requirements of relevant laws, regulations, and within the scope of authority delegated
by shareholders in general meeting, to perform other functions.

Except for the matters provided for in paragraphs (6), (7), (11) and (12) which require approval of more
than two-thirds of the directors, the remaining matters as contained in the preceding paragraphs shall be
approved by a simple majority of the directors.

The Company is an investment holding company, currently the executive Directors exercise the function of
the management of the Company and all projects of the Company will be reviewed and approved by the
Board. The responsibilities of each executive Directors are as follow:

Mr. Wu Guang Quan: responsible for overall operation of the Company;

Mr. You Lei: assisting the Chairman for daily operation; responsible for operation management, review of
strategic investment; responsible for high-tech electronic products segment, resources investment and
development segment; and assisting in strategic planning;

Mr. Pan Lin Wu: responsible for financial management, finance and strategic investment and capital
operation;

Mr. Chen Hong Liang: responsible for human resources, legal issues, audit, inspection and supervision;

Mr. Liu Jun: responsible for international expansion, foreign issues, overseas institution management and
responsible for trading and logistics segment.

Compliance of the Directors

There is no non-compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules by the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2013. None of the independent non-executive Directors did not comply
with one or more independence assessment guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2013. None of the members of the Board had any financial, business, family or
other material/related relationship with each other during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Directors’ training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary introduction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of the Company also provides
Directors with updates on the latest development of and amendments to the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A summary of training received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2013 according to the records provided by the Directors to the Company is as follows:

Listing Rules
Compliance

Training
(2013.11.19)

Executive Directors

Wu Guang Quan (Chairman) v
You Lei (Vice Chairman) v
Pan Lin Wu v
Chen Hong Liang v
Liu Jun v
Independent non-executive Director

Wong Wai Ling v
Wu Wei v
Zhang Ping v

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with articles of association of the Company. Mr. Wu
Guang Quan was re-elected as chairman of the Board (Chairman), with the term of 3 years which will end at
the date of 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.

In accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the Code, roles of the chairman and the chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The responsibility of the chairman and
the chief executive should be clearly established and set out in writing. During the year ended 31 December
20183, the executive Directors exercise the function of the management of the Company and it did not
appoint any chief executive. The executive Director and Chairman of the Company, Mr. Wu Guang Quan
and the Board hold meeting regularly to consider major matters that influence the operation of the Group.
The Board considers that the structure will not impair the balance of authority and rights between the Board
and the management of the Company. Each executive Director being assigned with different functions will
complement the role of the Chairman. The Board believes that this structure is beneficial to establishing a
stable and consistent leadership, which will enable effective operation of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr.
Zhang Ping. The number of independent non-executive Directors accords with the provision of the Listing
Rules. Among which, Ms. Wong Wai Ling is a qualified accountant with extensive experience in accounting
and finance. The Company has received the confirmation letters in respect of their independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent non-executive Directors comply with the
requirements of independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board established three committees, namely audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The role and responsibility of each committee are as follow:

(1) Audit committee
The Board has established the audit committee to fulfill the functions of reviewing the financial
reporting and monitoring the effectiveness and objectiveness of the internal control system, risk
management and auditing procedure of the Company. The details of the terms of reference were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 28 March 2012.

Elected by the Company’s sixth session of the Board meeting held on 19 June 2012, the audit
committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Ms. Wong
Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, of which Ms. Wong Wai Ling acts as the chairman. She is
a qualified accountant with extensive experience in accounting and finance.

The audit committee met twice on 21 March 2013 and 16 August 2013 respectively, to discuss (1)
the resolution related to the auditor’s report, results announcement and report of the directors of
the Company for the year of 2012; (2) the resolution related to the compliance of the connected
translations of the Company; (3) the resolution related to the enhancement of corporate governance
and internal control of the Company; (4) the resolution related to the interim financial report and
interim report on consolidated results of the Company for the year of 2013; (5) the resolution related
to the corporate governance and the internal control of the Company for the first half of 2013. The
audit committee provided recommendation to the Board regarding to the above matters for its
approval. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph headed “3. Board — Details
of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the attendance of the meetings
held by the audit committee.

(2) Remuneration committee
The Board has established the remuneration committee to fulfill the functions of providing
recommendations to the Board in the aspects of the performance, engagement, remuneration and
award of each executive Director, and drawing up the overall remuneration policy. The details of the
terms of reference of remuneration committee were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company on 28 March 2012.
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SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (continued)

()

)

Remuneration committee (continued)

Elected by the sixth session of the Board meeting held on 19 June 2012, the remuneration committee
comprises the executive Directors Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, and the independent
non-executive Directors Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, of which independent
non-executive Director Mr. Zhang Ping acts as the chairman.

The remuneration committee of the Company met on 21 March 2013 to review (1) the resolution
related to the remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year of 2012; (2) the resolution related to the procedure of formulating the remuneration policy of
the Company. The chairman reported that, the remuneration of the executive directors should be
assessed and determined according to the operation results of the Company during the year and
the accomplishment of the targets. The fixed remuneration policy is adopted for the independent
directors of the Company. The remuneration committee adopted the model stated in paragraph
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code as its terms of reference where the remuneration committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management. The remuneration committee provided recommendation to the Board regarding
to the above matters for its approval. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph
headed “3. Board — Details of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the
attendance of the meetings held by the remuneration committee.

Nomination Committee

The Board has set up the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee) which is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and providing recommendations
as to the proposed changes in the Board according to the corporate strategy of the Company.
The Nomination Committee of the Company will determine suitable candidates for directorship by
taking into consideration of their qualifications, experience, integrity and potential contribution to the
Company, as well as assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to the requirements stipulated in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Elected by the sixth session of the Board meeting held on 19 June 2012, the Nomination Committee
comprises executive Directors Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and independent non-
executive Directors Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, of which independent non-
executive Director Mr. Wu Wei acts as the chairman.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings on 21 March 2013 and 23 August 2013, respectively,
to review (1) the structure, size and composition of the Board (including their skills, knowledge and
experience); (2) the appointment or re-appointment or succession of Directors; (3) the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company; and (4) approve the Board’s diversity
policy. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph headed “3. Board — Details
of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the details of meetings and
attendance of the meetings held by the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31 December
2013.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 107



Corporate Governance Report

6.

108

SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (continued)

©)

4

Nomination Committee (continued)

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Stock Exchange issued certain amendments to the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules in relation to diversity of the members of the Board, effective on 1 September 2013. The
amended Code provides that the Nomination Committee shall fully take into account the formation
of the Board and relevant principles regarding appointment, reelection and dismission set out in the
Code when performing their duties.

In achieving the diversity of the members of the Board, the Board may consider various factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional experience. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee had been amended to take into account its responsibilities to
monitor the implementation of policy in relation to the diversity of the members of the Board.

The Group has adopted policies in relation to the diversity of the members of the Board and the
summary of those policies is as follows:

(1) selection of Board members will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which would
include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service; and

2) the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the diversity policy from time to
time to ensure the effectiveness of the diversity policy.

Corporate Governance
The corporate governance functions performed by the Board include the following:

(@) formulate and review the corporate governance policy and practice of the Company;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management;

(c) review and monitor the policy and practice of the Company regarding its compliance with laws
and regulatory requirements;

(d) formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance handbook (if any)
applicable to the employees and the Directors; and

(e) review whether the Company has complied with the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors in relation to their audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 set out as follow:

Amount of

remuneration

Type of services (RMB: 0°000)

Audit service 760
Non-audit service

Work on the continuing connected transaction 60

Work on the annual results announcement 40

Total 860

The expense shown in this table is based on the year of contract instead of year of cash payment

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All of the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the accounts and the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013. The auditors acknowledged
their reporting responsibilities in the independent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Directors was responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with assistance of the financial and accounting departments. The Directors
prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied consistently. The Board has regularly
reviewed and monitored the financial reporting procedures, risk management, internal control system and
recommendation of external auditors and its appointment, retirement and removal (if any) and reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the issuer’s ability to operate as a going concern, therefore the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The audit committee of the
Company is of the view that the selection and appointment of external auditors met the actual requirement
of the Company and its audit and non-audit services can truly reflect the financial condition of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

A Board meeting was held on 19 June 2012, at which the Board proposed the appointment of Mr.
Huang Yong Feng as the company secretary of the Company. On 20 July 2012, the Board announced
that the abovementioned appointment of the company secretary was approved by Stock Exchange. Mr.
Huang Yong Feng is a full time employee of the Company and is familiar with the Company’s day-to-day
affairs. The company secretary of the Company reports to the chairman and is responsible for providing
recommendation of governance matters to the Board. The company secretary of the Company confirmed
that he has obtained no less than 15 hours of professional training for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Two or more shareholders who collectively hold 10% or more of the voting shares at the proposed meeting
may make a proposal to the Board on holding an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by signing
one or several written requests with same content in same format and define the meeting agenda. The
Board shall convene such meeting as soon as possible upon receipt of the aforesaid written request. The
aforesaid number of shares held shall be calculated as of the date when the written request was put forward
by the shareholders.

In case the Board fails to give a notice of convening such meeting within thirty days after receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders who put forward the request may convene such a meeting within
four months after receipt of the request by the Board, and the procedures shall be the same as those for
convening a general meeting by the Board where possible.

Inquiry to the Board
For any inquiry to the Board, please contact the Company directly at 25/F, Hangdu Building, Catic Zone,
Shennan Road Central, Futian Dist., Shenzhen, China, telephone: 86-755-83793891; fax: 0755-83790228.

Proposals at General Meeting

When the Company convenes an annual general meeting, shareholder(s) who hold five percent or more of
the Company’s total shares carrying voting rights shall be entitled to make new proposals to the Company
in writing. Where such proposals contain matters within purview of the general meeting, the Company shall
include such matters in the agenda of the general meeting. However, the proposal should be delivered to the
Company within thirty days from the dispatch date of the notice of such meeting. The contact information of
the Company is the same as above.

Communication with Shareholders

The annual general meeting is the primary channel to communicate with shareholders of the Company. The
chairman of the general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be considered. During the
year of 2013, the chairmen of the Board, audit committee members, remuneration committee members,
nomination committee members and external auditors have attended the annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions.

According to the articles of association of the Company, the notice of the annual general meeting shall
be given to shareholders at least forty-five days before the meeting. The chairman of the annual general
meeting exercises his power under the Company’s articles of association to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of conducting a poll. The rules and procedures of the vote will be clearly explained before it
commences at the meeting, and the results of which will be announced on both the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has made amendments to the articles of

associations for once, details of which are as follows:

Special resolution in respect of amendment to the articles of associations was approved on the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20 November 2012. And the registration in the
administrative department for industry and commerce in China has been completed on 4 January

2013.
Before amendment
Article 2:

The registered Chinese name of the Company is: j&3I|
PR ER D BRAR

The registered English name of the Company is:
CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited (Mandatory
Provision Article 2)

Article 98:

The Company shall establish a board of directors.
The board of directors shall be composed of 5 to 13
directors, who shall include one chairman of the board.
(Mandatory Provision Article 86)

Sub-section (3) of Article 100:

3 The chairman of the board of directors shall be
elected or replaced by more than one-half of
the directors. The term of office of the chairman
is 3 years and he/she is eligible for re-election
and reappointment

The second paragraph of Article 103:

If the chairman of the board of directors is unable
to perform his/her duties, he/she may designate
a director to perform the duties on his/her behalf.
(Mandatory Provisions Article 90)

After amendment
Article 2:

The registered Chinese name of the Company is: # fii
BIFRIZEAR AR (D B PR A 7]

The registered English name of the Company is: AVIC
International Holdings Limited (Mandatory Provision
Article 2)

Article 98:

The Company shall establish a board of directors.
The board of directors shall be composed of 5 to
13 directors, who shall include one chairman of the
board and one vice-chairman of the board. (Mandatory
Provision Article 86)

Sub-section (3) of Article 100:

3) The chairman and vice-chairman of the board
of directors shall be elected or replaced by
more than one-half of the directors. The term
of office of the chairman and vice-chairman is 3
years and he/she is eligible for re-election and
reappointment

The second paragraph of Article 103:

If the chairman of the board of directors is unable to
perform his/her duties, he/she may designate the
vice-chairman of the board of directors or a director
to perform the duties on his/her behalf. (Mandatory
Provisions Article 90)
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INVESTOR RELATIONS MANAGEMENT

Goals

Investor relations management is a kind of active behavior of the listed company for purpose
of seeking maximized value. The management of the Company always pays attention to active
investment relations. The Company has formulated corresponding internal working system, specifying
the methods, contents, scope and working procedure of implementing the investor relations
management.

The Company’s work of investor relations management aims at helping the investors to have
acquaintance with the basic information of the Company and understand the Company’s operating
strategies in order to make their own rational investment decisions by comprehensively reporting
the Company’s operating results to the investors. Meanwhile, the Company also identifies its own
deficiencies with the help of the recommendations and comments from investors and analysts in
order to improve the operation of the Company.

Communication channels

During the reporting period, the Company strictly and fully disclose relevant information to investors in
accordance with relevant regulations, and timely disclose important information and relevant progress
which may influence the benefits of the investors through regular or temporary bulletin, striving
for improvement of the quality of information disclosure; the website of the Company will regularly
publicize the data concerned with investors, such as business status and other information, so that
the investors can timely and clearly know the latest development of the Company, and improve the
transparency of the Company.

The core of the investor relations management is effective communication. A win-win situation is
guaranteed through the interactive communication between the Company and investors. During this
year, the Company kept close relationship with media and investors both in China and other countries
through diversified forms, such as accepting the visits of investors and analyzers, and telephone
conference. In addition, investor can obtain latest information about the Company by visiting its
website, where the Company discloses its interim and annual reports, bulletins, circular letters and
updated development status.

Prospect

Through active activities related to investor relations, the Company aims at improving transparency,
strengthening communication, making investors better understand the business of the Company and
feel confident toward its future development, having the Company recognized and supported by the
market, and making the development potential and actual value of the Company fully reflected in the
market.
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the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company presents their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the current principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

The Group is an investment holding company with limited diversified strategies and is principally engaged in high-
tech electronic products, retails and high-end consumer products, real estate and hotel, trading and logistics,
resources investment and development business in China.

Details of the contribution from each of the businesses to the profit attributable to shareholders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the paragraph “business review” under the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Information on the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company is set out in Note 14, Note
16 and Note 17 to the financial statements respectively.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION OF MARKETS

Information on major markets of the Group is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the consolidated income
statement of the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the distributable reserves of the Group were approximately RMB3,380,401,000 as
reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
PRC.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 113



Report of the Directors

ALLOCATION OF PROFITS

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company, when distributing net
profit each year, the Company shall set aside 10% of its net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts for the
statutory general reserve fund (except where the fund has reached 50% of the Company’s registered share capital).
This reserve cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they are created and are not distributable as
cash dividends. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the statutory general reserve fund of the Company is as
follows:

RMB’000

Statutory general reserve fund 8.47% 94,084 6.30% 70,001

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the statements
of changes in equity and Note 30 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s operating results, assets and liabilities for the past five years ended 31 December 2013 is
set out in the Financial Highlights in this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
As at 81 December 2013, the Company has not entered into or maintained any contracts in respect of the
management or administration of its overall business or any major business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total purchases for the year from the five largest suppliers were
RMB®6,575,654,152, accounting for 22.53% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. The largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6.60% of the Group’s total purchase.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers accounted for approximately 15.52%
(2012: approximately 27.90%) of the Group’s turnover for the year. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 3.80% (2012: approximately 10.79%) of the Group’s turnover.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s subsidiary, Tianma, held 10% interest of the Group’s fifth largest customer.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) are interested in the
five largest suppliers or five largest customers of the Group.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of major properties held for investment of the Group are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in Note 11 to the financial statements.

PLEDGED ASSETS
As 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of RMB2,083,307,000 (31 December 2012: RMB1,904,343,000) of the
Group were secured by the following:

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

Pledged bank deposits 54,164 -
Pledged notes receivable 35,885 -
Land use rights 504,031 517,952
Buildings 1,426,288 1,444,472
Construction-in-progress - 16,361
Investment properties 1,200,649 1,141,656
Properties under development 320,629 -
Exploration and extraction rights 6,540 -
3,548,186 3,120,441

BANK LOANS

Information on the bank loans of the Group for the year is set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TERM DEPOSIT
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company did not have any entrusted deposit and overdue term
deposit in any form.

TAXATION
Details of the Group’s taxation for the year are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements.

TAXATION POLICY
Pursuant to the relevant income tax laws of the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group are subject to income tax at the
applicable rate of 25% unless preferential tax rate were applicable.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER
As at 31 December 2013, so far as was known to the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the following
are the details of the persons (other than the Directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group:

Long position in the Shares:

Name of Shareholder

Domestic Shares
Aviation Industry

AVIC International

AVIC Shenzhen

Beijing Raise

H Shares
Li Ka-Shing

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Corporation Limited

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp
Limited

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Company Limited

Cheung Kong Investment
Company Limited

Empire Grand Limited

Hutchison International Limited

Hutchison Whampoa Limited
Jiang Jian Jun

Huayin Group Investment
Development Co., Ltd

Capacity

Interest of controlled
corporations

Beneficial owner and
interest of controlled
corporation

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled
corporations and founder
of discretionary trusts

Interest of controlled
corporations

Trustee and beneficiary of
a trust

Trustee and beneficiary of
a trust

Trustee

Interest of controlled
corporation
Beneficial owner
Beneficial owner
Interest of controlled
corporation
Interest of controlled
corporation
Beneficial owner

Number and class of securities

1,634,608,792

Domestic Shares (Note 1)
1,329,499,564

Domestic Shares (Note 1)
429,774,574

Domestic Shares (Note 1)

305,109,228
Domestic Shares (Note 1)

29,644,000 H Shares (Note 2)

29,644,000 H Shares (Note 2)
29,644,000 H Shares (Note 2)
29,644,000 H Shares (Note 2)
29,644,000 H Shares (Note 2)
14,823,000 H Shares (Note 2)
14,823,000 H Shares (Note 2)
14,821,000 H Shares (Note 2)
14,821,000 H Shares (Note 2)

18,210,000 H Shares (Note 3)

18,210,000 H Shares (Note 3)

Approximate
percentage of the
same class

of securities

196.24%

159.61%

51.60%

36.62%

10.67%

10.67%
10.67%
10.67%
10.67%
5.34%
5.34%
5.33%
5.33%

6.56%

6.56%

Approximate
percentage of
total share
capital

147.18%

119.71%

38.70%

27.47%

2.67%

2.67%
2.67%
2.67%
2.67%
1.33%
1.33%
1.33%
1.33%

1.64%

1.64%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (continued)

Long position in the Shares: (continued)

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2013, Aviation Industry owns 76.83% of the equity interest in AVIC International (in January 2014,
Aviation Industry’s shareholding in AVIC International is decreased to approximately 62.52%), which in turn owns 100%
equity interest in AVIC Shenzhen. Hence, Aviation Industry is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which
AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen are interested in, respectively.

Aviation Industry owns 60% of the equity interest in Beijing Raise. Hence, Aviation Industry is deemed, or taken to be,

interested in all Shares in which Beijing Raise is interested in.

AVIC International owns 100% of the equity interest in AVIC Shenzhen. Hence, AVIC International is deemed, or taken to

be, interested in all the Shares in which AVIC Shenzhen is interested in.

As at 31 December 2013:

(1) AVIC International held: (A) 437,264,906 domestic shares, representing approximately 39.37% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and (B) perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the outstanding amount of
RMB1,604,736,493 which may be converted into 462,460,084 domestic shares at the initial conversion price of
RMBS3.47 (subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).

(2) AVIC Shenzhen held: (A) 395,709,091 domestic shares, representing approximately 35.63% of the issued share
capital of the Company; and (B) perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the outstanding amount of
RMB118,207,225 which may be converted into 34,065,483 domestic shares at the initial conversion price of
RMB3.47 (subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).

(3) Beijing Raise held perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB1,058,729,021 which
may be converted into 305,109,228 domestic shares at the initial conversion price of RMBS3.47 (subject to the
adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).

2. The same equity interest of the above 29,644,000 H Shares include:

(A) Empire Grand Limited (“Empire Grand”) holds 14,823,000 H Shares and Empire Grand is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cheung Kong Investment Company Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung
Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH”); and

(B) Hutchison International Limited (“HIL”) holds 14,821,000 shares of H Share and HIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary

of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL”). Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing
and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor is interested in one-third and two-third respectively of the entire issued share capital,
owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1”). TUT1 as trustee
of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trust is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at their general
meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of CKH. Certain subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.
In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka- Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1”) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1”)) and Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2”) (as trustee of another discretionary trust (“DT2”)). Each of TDT1 and TDT2
holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settlor and
regarded as the founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TUT 1, TDT1, TDT2 and CKH is
deemed to be interested in the aggregate 29,644,000 H shares held by Empire Grand and HIL.

3. Jiang Jian Jun owned the interests by virtue of his 100% beneficial interest in Huayin Group Investment Development Co.,

Ltd.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

ISSUE, PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
For the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued, purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
PRC, which require the Company to firstly offer new shares to the existing shareholders to purchase according to
their respective proportions of shareholding.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guang Quan (chairman)
Mr. You Lei (vice chairman)

Mr. Pan Lin Wu

Mr. Chen Hong Liang

Mr. Liu Jun

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Wu Wei

Mr. Zhang Ping

Each of the service agreements of Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. You Lei, Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Mr.
Liu Jun, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping shall expire after three years commencing from 19
June 2012.

No Director or Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Profiles of the Directors are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and Supervisors” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, to the best knowledge of the Directors of the Company, none of the Directors,
supervisors of the Company is interested in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors, supervisors or chief executives were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which are required to be entered into the register maintained by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the year ended 31 December 2013 was the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company a
party to any arrangement to enable any Directors, supervisors or management members of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporates.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2013, none of the Director or Supervisor had any significant interest, either direct or indirect, in
any contract or arrangement of significance to the business of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has been entered into, or was subsisting
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors are set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

On 23 August 2013, the Board announced that Mr. You Lei, an executive Director, was appointed as the vice
chairman of the Board, for a term commencing from 23 August 2013 to 18 June 2015. As at 31 December 2013,
there was no change in other Directors, supervisors.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 28,338 employees (2012: 25,516 employees) with
employee-related costs of approximately RMB2,413,047,000 (2012: RMB1,804,807,000). The Group formulated its
competitive remuneration policy based on market condition and individual employee’s performance.

SOCIAL INSURANCE SCHEMES
Details of the retirement fund scheme and health insurance scheme maintained by the Group are set out in Note 42
to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
below, and confirmed that these transactions have been entered into, in accordance with the relevant agreements,
by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

18

120

Continuing Connected Transaction - Entrusted Management Agreement

Xiamen Tianma Entrusted Management Agreement

On 17 May 2011, Shanghai Tianma and Xiamen Tianma entered into the Xiamen Tianma Entrusted
Management Agreement, pursuant to which Shanghai Tianma will provide management services to Xiamen
Tianma for a term from 17 May 2011 to 28 February 2014. Pursuant to such agreement, Shanghai Tianma is
entitled to receive a management fee of not more than RMB30,000,000 in total during the term.

Shanghai Tianma is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Xiamen Tianma is owned as to 15.3%
by AVIC Shenzhen, 14.7% by AVIC International, 6% by Xiamen Company and 64% by Xiamen Jincai. AVIC
Shenzhen is the promoter and the controlling shareholder of the Company, and held approximately 58.77%
of the issued capital in the Company during the Reporting Period. AVIC International owns 100% interest in
each of AVIC Shenzhen and Xiamen Company respectively. Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
the entrusted management agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 May 2011. The Company has complied with the
relevant reporting and announcement requirements of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions — Framework Agreement for the Renewal of the Continuing
Connected Transactions with 12 companies before injecting to the Group as its subsidiaries
In'December 2011, the Company together with its directly and indirectly owned subsidiaries, namely Fiyta,
Harmony, Tianma, Chengdu Tianma and Guangdong International and AVIC Shenzhen with its subsidiaries
entered into a number of framework agreements for a term contemplating from 1 January 2012 to 31
December 2014. The framework agreements entered into with the above related companies included leases,
property management, entrusted management, concessionaire, purchasing and processing.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Renewal of the Continuing
Connected Transactions with 12 companies before injecting to the Group as its subsidiaries
(continued)

For details, please refer to the table below:

2.

Date of Framework 161 and its
announcement Agreement subsidiaries Parties
19 December 2011 Leases Fiyta AVIC Shenzhen 14,000,000 18,000,000 22,000,000
and its
subsidiaries
Guangdong Lutong Company 3,450,000 2,750,000 2,750,000
International
21 December 2011 Property Services Shenzhen Tianma  CATIC Property 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000
Management
Shanghai Tianma  CATIC Property 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Management
Chengdu Tianma ~ CATIC Property 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Management
Fiyta CATIC Property 3,500,000 4,000,000 4,500,000
Management
Guangdong CATIC Property 9,000,000 9,000,000 9,000,000
International Management
28 December 2011 Entrusted Shanghai Tianma ~ Shanghai CATIC 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Management Optoelectronics
Shenzhen Tianma ~ Shenzhen CATIC 840,000 1,000,000 10,000,000
Optoelectronics
29 December 2011 Concessionaire  Fiyta Rainbow 35,000,000 45,000,000 60,000,000
Harmony CATIC Property 1,500,000 3,000,000 4,000,000

The above continuing connected transactions constituted the disclosable and connected transactions of the
Company. For further details please refer to the announcements of the Company published on the website
of SEHK.

Connected Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement

On 9 January 2012, Yunnan Hongfu Chemical Fertilizer Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Hongfu”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into, among other things, a finance lease agreement (the
“Finance Lease Agreement”) with AVIC International Leasing Company Limited (the “AVIC International
Leasing”), pursuant to which Yunnan Hongfu has conditionally agreed to lease from AVIC International
Leasing certain lease assets (the “Lease Assets”), which were purchased by Yunnan Hongfu under
certain purchase agreements and to be transferred to AVIC International Leasing at a consideration of
RMB44,000,000 under a transfer agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) entered into between Yunnan
Hongfu and AVIC International Leasing on 9 January 2012. Pursuant to the Finance Lease Agreement, the
total lease consideration (including the principal amount of RMB44,000,000, interests, management fees
and the optional purchase price for vesting the title and all rights of the Lease Assets in Yunnan Hongfu) to
be paid by Yunnan Hongfu to AVIC International Leasing shall be not more than RMB80,000,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

122

Connected Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement (continued)

AVIC International Leasing is owned as to 52.5%, 16.27% and 31.23% by AVIC Investment Company
Limited (“AVIC Investment”), AVIC International and other third parties respectively. AVIC Investment is
wholly-owned by Aviation Industry. Aviation Industry owns as to 62.52% in AVIC International, which in
turn owns 100% of AVIC Shenzhen. Accordingly, AVIC International Leasing is a connected person of the
Company and the entering into the Finance Lease Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the Finance
Lease Arrangement are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the finance lease arrangement and transactions
contemplated under the Finance Lease Agreement, the Transfer Agreement, the Guarantee (as defined
below) and the Share Pledge Agreement (as defined below) (together referred to as the “Finance Lease
Arrangement”) are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempted from independent
Shareholders’ approval according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 9 January 2012, the Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in favour of AVIC International
Leasing to secure due performance of the payment obligations by Yunnan Hongfu to AVIC International
Leasing in accordance with the Finance Lease Agreement and the Transfer Agreement. The maximum
obligation of the Company under the Guarantee is RMB80,000,000.

As the guarantee provided by the Company under the Guarantee is not in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group but on normal commercial terms, and was provided not in proportion to the Group’s
equity interest in Yunnan Hongfu, the Guarantee constitutes a financial assistance to Yunnan Hongyuan
Investment Co., Ltd (“Yunnan Hongyuan”). As at 9 January 2012, Yunnan Hongyuan held 49% equity
interest in Yunnan Hongfu, hence a substantial shareholder of Yunnan Hongfu and a connected person of
the Company. The financial assistance arising from the Guarantee constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Rule 14A.13(3) of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios of the financial
assistance arising from the Guarantee are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Guarantee is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval
according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On the same date, Yunnan Hongyuan has entered into a share pledge agreement in favour of the Company
(the “Share Pledge Agreement”). Pursuant to the Share Pledge Agreement, Yunnan Hongyuan shall pledge
its 49% equity interest, dividend and other interest in Yunnan Hongfu to the Company to secure, including
but not limiting to, due performance of the payment obligations by Yunnan Hongfu to AVIC International
Leasing in accordance with the Finance Lease Agreement.

The transaction contemplated under the Share Pledge Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company, however is exempt from reporting, announcement and approval of the independent shareholders
under Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules as the Share Pledge Agreement is for the benefit of the Group
and on normal commercial terms (or better to the Group) where no security over the assets of the Group is
granted by the Group in respect of the Share Pledge Agreement.

As at the date of the entering into of the Finance Lease Arrangement, the construction of a phosphate
production plant by Yunnan Hongfu is at the final state. As Yunnan Hongfu requires additional financial
resources, the entering into of the Finance Lease Arrangement shall enable the Group to obtain additional
financial resources for the general working capital of Yunnan Hongfu.

Details of the above Finance Lease Arrangement were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 9
January 2012.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4,

Continuing Connected Transaction - in relation to Joint Research and Development and Operating
Lease

On 24 July 2012, Shanghai Tian Ma and NLT entered into a joint research and development agreement (the
“Joint Research and Development Agreement”) for a term of one year commencing from 10 August 2012 to
9 August 2013. Pursuant to the Joint Research and Development Agreement, Shanghai Tian Ma and NLT
have agreed to jointly research and develop the structure and the manufacturing process of oxide-based
thin film transistors (“Oxide-TFT”), for which Shanghai Tian Ma as lessee shall rent and utilize the production
line from NLT as lessor for a rental amount of JPY104,000,000 (equivalent to RMB3,452,000) for a term of
one year commencing from 10 August 2012 to 9 August 2013.

The collaboration with NLT in the development of oxide semiconductor technology will help Shanghai Tian
Ma to speed up the development of the technology, which is more time-saving and economical, as well as
to strengthen the build-up and to accelerate the growth of the research and development team of Shanghai
Tian Ma, and to form a competition edge to an adequate extent.

Shanghai Tian Ma is directly owned as to 21% and 30% by the Company and Tian Ma respectively. Tian
Ma is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. NLT is owned as to 70% by Shenzhen CATIC
Optoelectronics. Shenzhen CATIC Opto-electronics is owned as to 51% by AVIC Shenzhen and as to 49%
by AVIC International. AVIC Shenzhen is the promoter and controlling shareholder of the Company, which as
at 24 July 2012, held approximately 58.77% of the issued share capital of the Company. AVIC International
held 100% interest in AVIC Shenzhen. The transactions contemplated under the Joint Research and
Development Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for the Joint Research and Development
Agreement, the IP Consulting Service Agreement mentioned in the third paragraph of this section and each
lease mentioned in the announcement on 19 December 2011 are in aggregate more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated under the Sales and
Purchase Agreement and IP Consulting Service Agreement are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the Joint Research and Development Agreement and operating lease were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 July 2012.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Continuing Connected
Transactions with 12 companies recently injected to the Group in the coming three years

On 30 November 2010, the Company entered into equity interests acquisition agreements with AVIC
International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing Raise. The Company acquired certain equity interests in 12
companies from AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing Raise by way of issuing the domestic shares
and perpetual subordinated convertible securities of the Company. Upon the completion of the acquisitions,
Aviation Industry, AVIC International, Vanke Enterprise Company Limited (“Vanke Enterprise”), Beijing
Raise and their respective associates are connected parties of the Company. The continuing connected
transactions subsisting with the above mentioned companies would constitute the continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Therefore, the Company revised or renewed the framework agreements
contemplating the continuing connected transactions on 5 September 2012, with the term commenced from
5 September 2012 to the 31 December 2014 according to the annual cap as provided in the respective
framework agreements. The Company published an announcement on 9 September 2012 in accordance
with the requirement of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Continuing Connected
Transactions with 12 companies recently injected to the Group in the coming three years

5.

124

(continued)

Continuing connected transactions that were subject to independent shareholders’ approval are set out as

follows:

Name of Agreement

(1) The New Aviation Industry Sale
Framework Agreement

(2) The New Aviation Industry Purchase
Framework Agreement

(3) The New AVIC International Sale
Framework Agreement

(4) The New AVIC International Purchase
Framework Agreement

(5) The New Aviation Industry — Agency
Services Framework Agreement

(6) The New AVIC International — Agency

Services Provision Framework Agreement

(7) The AVIC International — Agency Services
Acceptance Framework Agreement

(8) Engineering Services Framework Agreement

(9) Aviation Industry Labour Agency Services
Framework Agreement

(10) AVIC International Labour Agency Services

Framework Agreement
(11) The New Aviation Industry Financial
Framework Agreement
(@) (amount of acceptance of loans/
guarantees)
(b) (interest/guarantee fee of acceptance
of loans/guarantees)
(12) The New AVIC International Financial
Framework Agreement
(@) (amount of acceptance of loans/
guarantees)
(b) (interest/guarantee fee of acceptance
of loans/guarantees)
(13) Aviation Industry Construction Services
Framework Agreement

(14) AVIC International Construction Services
Framework Agreement

Parties

1
2

1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2

the Company
Aviation Industry

the Company
Aviation Industry
the Company
AVIC International
the Company
AVIC International
the Company
Aviation Industry
the Company
AVIC International
the Company
AVIC International
the Company
Aviation Industry
the Company
Aviation Industry
the Company
AVIC International
the Company
Aviation Industry

1) the Company
2) AVIC International

1) Engineering
Company

2) Aviation Industry

1) Engineering
Company

2) AVIC International

Annual Cap Annual Cap
Amount for 2012 Amount for 2013
(RMB yuan) (RMB yuan)
105,000,000 148,000,000
24,000,000 32,000,000
450,000,000 700,000,000
2,000,000,000  3,600,000,000
64,000,000 132,000,000
81,000,000 125,000,000
23,500,000 65,000,000
20,000,000 24,000,000
5,000,000 11,000,000
11,000,000 15,600,000
6,650,000,000 8,450,000,000
650,000,000 820,000,000
11,700,000,000  22,000,000,000
357,200,000 420,000,000
100,000,000 200,000,000
200,000,000 470,000,000

Annual Cap
Amount for 2014
(RMB yuan)

195,000,000

35,000,000
950,000,000
3,800,000,000
136,000,000
160,000,000
72,000,000
27,000,000
13,000,000
15,600,000

9,200,000,000

880,000,0000

29,000,000,000

450,000,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Continuing Connected
Transactions with 12 companies recently injected to the Group in the coming three years
(continued)

Continuing connected transactions that were exempted from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement are set out as follows:

Annual Cap Annual Cap Annual Cap

Name of Agreement Parties Amount for 2012 Amount for 2013 Amount for 2014
(RMB yuan) (RMB yuan) (RMB yuan)
Beijing Ruixin Property 1) Beijing Ruixin 5,000,000 5,000,000 -
Management Framework 2) Beijing AVIC Da Bei Property
Agreement Management Company
Limited

For details of above continuing connected transactions, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 5 September 2012 and circular of the Company dated 24 October 2012. The above connected
transactions that were subject to independent shareholders’ approval were passed on the extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 December 2012. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 24 December 2012.

Continuing Connected Transaction - in relation to Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract

On 22 November 2012, Chengdu Raise (a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company) and CATIC Property
Management (Chengdu Branch) entered into a property management framework agreement (the “Chengdu
Raise Property Service Contract”), pursuant to which CATIC Property Management (Chengdu Branch)
agreed to provide property management services to Chengdu Raise for a term commencing on 22
November 2012 and expiring on 31 December 2014. The service fee payable by Chengdu Raise under
the Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract for the period from 22 November 2012 to 31 December
2012, and for each of the 12 months ending 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 will not exceed
RMB500,000, RMB2,100,000 and RMB7,100,000, respectively.

Chengdu Raise is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as at 22 November 2012. CATIC
Property Management (Chengdu Branch) is a branch of CATIC Property Management, which is, in turn, a
whollyowned subsidiary of CATIC Real Estate, an associate of AVIC Shenzhen. AVIC International owns
100% equity interest of AVIC Shenzhen (a controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately
35.63% of the issued share capital of the Company and perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the
amount of RMB118,207,225). Accordingly, CATIC Property Management (Chengdu Branch) is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Chengdu Raise Property Service
Contract constitute continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

6.

126

Continuing Connected Transaction - in relation to Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract
(continued)

The entering into of the Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract between Chengdu Raise and CATIC
Property Management (Chengdu Branch) is due to the professional knowledge and expertise of CATIC
Property Management (Chengdu Branch) in the field of property management and that CATIC Property
Management (Chengdu Branch) is one of the top property management enterprises in the PRC.

Details were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2012.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement

On 15 January 2013, Beijing Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and AVIC Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“AVIC Real Estate”) entered into an entrusted management agreement (the “Beijing Entrusted
Management Agreement”), pursuant to which AVIC Real Estate agreed to provide management services
to Beijing Company for a term commencing on 15 January 2013 and expiring on 31 December 2015. The
service fee payable by Beijing Company under the Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement for the period
from 15 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, and for each of the year ending 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2015 shall not exceed RMB14,000,000, RMB12,000,000 and RMB17,000,000, respectively.
Beijing Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as at 15 January 2013. AVIC Real Estate
is an associate of AVIC Shenzhen. At the material time, Aviation Industry owned 76.83% of the equity
interest in AVIC International (a controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 39.37% of
the issued share capital of the Company and perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of
RMB1,604,736,493), which in turns own 100% equity interest of AVIC Shenzhen (a controlling shareholder
of the Company holding approximately 35.63% of the issued share capital of the Company and perpetual
subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB118,207,225). Aviation Industry also owns 60%
of the equity interest of Beijing Raise (holding perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount
of RMB1,058,729,021). Accordingly, AVIC Real Estate is a connected person of the Company and the
transactions contemplated under the Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement constitute continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 15 January 2013.

Continuing Connected Transactions — New Lease between Fiyta and Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company
On 21 January 2013, Fiyta and Xi’an City Tianyue Hotel Company Limited (“Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company”)
entered into a lease (the “New Lease”). Pursuant to the New Lease, Fiyta, as lessor, agreed to grant and
Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company, as lessee, agreed to take up the lease in respect of certain portion occupying
an area of 12,455.06 sg.m. in Xi'an Tianyue Hotel for a term commencing from 21 January 2013 to 31
December 2013 for a total rent of not more than RMB6,000,000. As at 21 January 2013, Fiyta is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company is owned as to 100% by
Shenzhen CATIC Hotel Management Company Limited, which is an associate of AVIC Shenzhen. As at 21
January 2013, AVIC Shenzhen is a controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 35.63%
of the issued share capital of the Company and perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount
of RMB118,207,225. Accordingly, Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company is a connected person of the Company
and the New Lease constitutes continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 January 2013.
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Continuing Connected Transactions — Regarding to the Financial Services Agreement

On 3 April 2013, the Company and AVIC Finance Co., Ltd. (“AVIC Finance”) entered into a financial
services agreement (the “Financial Services Agreement”), pursuant to which, AVIC Finance will provide to
the Group a range of financial services as the Company may request from time to time for a term from the
effective date of the Financial Services Agreement to 31 December 2015. The deposit caps placed by the
Group with AVIC Finance (the “Deposit Cap”) shall not exceed RMB2,000,000,000, RMB2,300,000,000
and RMB2,500,000,000 for the annual cap amounts in 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The proposed
maximum daily transaction amount for foreign exchange settlement and sale handled by AVIC Finance (“Spot
FX Trading Caps”) shall not exceed USD80 million, USD100 million and USD150 million for the annual cap
amounts in 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

On 22 April 2013, the Company and AVIC Finance entered into a supplemental agreement to amend some
terms of the Financial Services Agreement.

Aviation Industry is an ultimate holding company of the Company and AVIC Finance. Aviation Industry
directly and indirectly held the entire equity interest in AVIC Finance. Accordingly, AVIC Finance is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Financial Services
Agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As the applicable percentage ratios for each of the Deposit Cap and Spot FX Trading Cap exceed 5%, the
deposit services and spot exchange settlement and sale services under the Financial Services Agreement
are subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Financial Services Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 19 July 2013.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3 April and 22 April 2013, the circular
dated 20 May 2013 and the poll results announcement for the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 July
2018.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Revision of the Construction Services Framework
Agreement

On 5 September 2012, Engineering Company and Aviation Industry entered into a project construction
contract framework agreement (the “Aviation Industry Agreement”) in relation to the provision of construction
services by Engineering Company and/or its subsidiaries to Aviation Industry and its associates (other than
AVIC International and its associated companies). On the same date, Engineering Company and AVIC
International entered into a project construction framework agreement (the “AVIC International Agreement”)
in relation to the provision of construction services by Engineering Company and/or its subsidiaries to AVIC
International and its associated companies.

The Board expected that the existing caps for the Aviation Industry Agreement and the AVIC International
Agreement will no longer be sufficient, as such, the Board proposed to revise the existing caps and to
extend the term of each of the existing agreements to 31 December 2014. On 10 April 2013, Engineering
Company, the subsidiary of the Company entered into a supplemental Aviation Industry agreement with
Aviation Industry (the “Supplemental Aviation Industry Agreement”), and a supplemental AVIC International
agreement with AVIC International (the “Supplemental AVIC International Agreement”), respectively (together,
the “Supplemental Agreements”). Of which, the revised amount caps for the Supplemental Aviation Industry
Agreement in 2013 and 2014 shall not exceed RMB300,000,000 and RMB500,000,000. The revised
amount caps for the Supplemental AVIC International Agreement in 2013 and 2014 shall not exceed
RMB1,700,000,000 and RMB1,000,000,000.

Aviation Industry and AVIC International are the shareholders of the Company. Aviation Industry and
AVIC International are connected persons of the Company, and the transactions contemplated under
the Supplemental Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As certain applicable percentage ratios exceed 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the Supplemental Agreements will be subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Supplemental Agreements were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
on the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 19 July 20183. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 10 April 2013, the circular dated 20 May 2013 and the poll results
announcement for the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 19 July 2013.
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Continuing Connected Transactions — Purchase of Liquid Crystal Glass

On 8 August 2013, Tianma entered into a purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase Framework
Agreement”) with Chengdu Opto-electronics Technology Company Limited (“Chengdu Opto-electronics”),
pursuant to which, Tianma and its associated companies shall purchase the Liquid crystal glass from
Chengdu Opto-electronics for an aggregate amount of not exceeding RMB30,000,000 for a term from 8
August 2013 to 31 December 2013. Chengdu Tianma is owned as to 30% by Tianma, 42.8% by Chengdu
Industrial Group Company Limited (“Chengdu Industrial Group”) and 27.2% by Chengdu Gaoxin Investment
Group Company Limited (“Chengdu Gaoxin Investment”). Therefore, Chengdu Industrial Group and Chengdu
Gaoxin Investment are connected persons of the Company. As Chengdu Opto-electronics is an associate of
Chengdu Gaoxin Investment by virtue of its 30% shareholding in Chengdu Opto-electronics, the purchase
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios of the purchase under the Purchase Framework Agreement,
when aggregated with the past transaction amount of the purchase of Liquid crystal glass by Tianma and
its associated companies from Chengdu Opto-electronics from 1 January 2013, are, more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, the Purchase Framework Agreement is only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but is exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. For detail, please refer to the announcement dated 8 August 2013.

Connected Transaction - Construction Project Management

On 8 August 2013, Shanghai Tianma entered into a construction project management agreement
(the “Construction Project Management Agreement”) with China Aviation Planning and Construction
Development Company Limited (“AVIC Construction”) pursuant to which AVIC Construction shall provide
construction services to Shanghai Tianma for an aggregate amount of not exceeding RMB9,100,000 for a
term commencing from 8 August 2013 and ending on 1 March 2015. AVIC Construction is owned as to
100% by Aviation Industry. Accordingly, AVIC Construction is a connected person of the Company, and the
transactions contemplated under the Construction Project Management Agreement constitute connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage
ratio(s) of the transactions contemplated under the Construction Project Management Agreement is
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Construction Project Management Agreement is only subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempted from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 August 2013.

Connected Transaction-Forward Share Purchase

On 8 August 2013, AVIC Resource entered into a forward share purchase agreement with AVIC Trust
Company Limited (“AVIC Trust”), pursuant to which AVIC Resource agreed to purchase the shares of
Kunming AVIC Phosphorus Chemical Industry Company Limited (“Kunming Phosphorus”), representing
an aggregate of 30% of the shares of Kunming Phosphorus from AVIC Trust at a consideration of
RMB40,775,000 (the “Forward Share Purchase”) should Mr. Yang Qi and Mr. Li Zhijian default on their
obligations to repurchase the Shares of Kunming Phosphorus from AVIC Trust in accordance with the terms
of the share transfer agreements entered into between AVIC Trust and Mr. Yang Qi dated 10 January 2013
and between AVIC Trust and Mr. Li Zhijian dated 10 January 2013, respectively. AVIC Trust is an associate
of Aviation Industry and thus a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Forward Share
Purchase constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
the applicable percentage ratios for the Forward Share Purchase are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
Forward Share Purchase is only subject to reporting and announcement requirements and exempted from
the independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 8 August 2013.
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Connected Transaction-Curtain Wall Construction Contract and Air Conditioning Construction
Contract

On 18 October 2013, Xiamen Zijin AVIC Real Estate Company Limited (“Xiamen Zijin”), Zhongjian Sanju
Construction Engineering Holdings Company Limited (Xiamen Branch), (“Zhongjian Sanju Construction
Company”) and Shenzhen Sanxin Curtain Wall Engineering Company Limited (“Shenzhen Sanxin Curtain
Wall Company”) entered into curtain wall construction contract (the “Curtain Wall Construction Contract”)
while Xiamen Zijin, Zhongjian Sanju Construction Company and AVIC Construction Engineering Company
Limited (“AVIC Construction”) entered into an air conditioning construction contract (the “Air Conditioning
Construction Contract”). Pursuant to the Curtain Wall Construction Contract, Shenzhen Sanxin Curtain
Wall Company was engaged by Xiamen Zijin to construct curtain walls of the buildings erected on the
Xiamen AVIC Zijin Square for a total consideration not exceeding RMB87,709,696.28. Pursuant to the Air
Conditioning Construction Contract, AVIC Construction was engaged by Xiamen Zijin to construct and install
air-conditioning facilities for the buildings erected on the Xiamen AVIC Zijin Square for a total consideration
not exceeding RMB76,997,886.27. In view of the fact that Xiamen Company, Xiamen Zijin and the other two
Investors entered into the cooperation agreement to develop Xiamen AVIC Zijin Square on 12 December
2011, they are responsible for the development and management costs in proportion to the property area
and their investments in the respective portions of the property development project. Xiamen Company shall
be responsible to pay its share of the curtain walls construction fee under the Curtain Wall Construction
Contract of not exceeding RMB18,560,689.38 while it shall be responsible to pay its share of the air-
conditioning facilities construction fee under the Air Conditioning Construction Contract of not exceeding
RMB8,353,882. Each of Shenzhen Sanxin Curtain Wall Company and AVIC Construction is an associate of
Aviation Industry, the controlling Shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, each of Shenzhen Sanxin Curtain
Wall Company and AVIC Construction is a connected person of the Company. The payment of the curtain
walls construction fee and the air-conditioning facilities construction fee under the Curtain Wall Construction
Contract and the Air Conditioning Construction Contract on the part of Xiamen Company through Xiamen
Zijin to Shenzhen Sanxin Curtain Wall Company and AVIC Construction respectively constitute connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios of
payments on the part of Xiamen Company are in aggregate more than 0.1% but less than 5%, pursuant to
Rule 14A of the Listing Rules, the Company is only subject to reporting and announcement requirements,
but is exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18 October 2013.

Connected Transaction-Disposal of 5% Equity Interest in Schneider Shanghai

On 7 November 2013, Beijing Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a disposal
agreement with Tianjin Tianli Aviation Electro-mechanical Co., LTD (“Tianjin Tianli”), pursuant to which Beijing
Company conditionally agreed to sell to Tianjin Tianli 5% equity interest in Shanghai Schneider Low Voltage
Terminal Electric Co., Ltd. (LM REELmSEHMRAA]) (“Schneider Shanghai”) at the consideration
of RMB49,230,000 (the “Schneider Shanghai Disposal Transaction”). Tianjin Tianli is a connected person of
the Company, and therefore the disposal constituted a connected transaction of the Company. Also, as the
applicable percentage ratios for the Schneider Shanghai Disposal Transaction, when aggregate with other
two equity transfer agreements dated 22 November 2012 between Beijing Company and Tianjin Tianli, are
below 5%, the Company was subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, but was exempted
from independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 7 November 2013.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 129



Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

16.

17.

130

Connected Transaction-Acquisition of Equity Interest in RED Company

On 12 December 2013, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) with AVIC International, pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase 40%
equity interest in RED Company from AVIC International at a consideration of RMB42,000,000. On the same
day, the Company also entered into three other equity transfer agreements with each of TED Company,
Beijing Company and Engineering Company, pursuant to which the Company conditionally acquired, in
aggregate, the remaining 60% equity interest in RED Company at a consideration of RMB42,000,000,
RMB10,500,000 and RMB10,500,000, respectively, on terms similar to those in the Equity Transfer
Agreement. The transactions contemplated under each of the four equity transfer agreements were not inter-
conditional. As AVIC International is a controlling shareholder and thus a connected person of the Company,
the Equity Transfer Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted a connected
transaction of the Company. As the applicable percentage ratios were below 5%, the Equity Transfer
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but were exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 12 December 2013.

Connected Transaction — Property Disposal

On 27 December 2013, Chengdu Raise, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
agreements with Chengdu Aircraft Design Research Institute of Aviation Industry Corporation of China three
(“Chengdu Aircraft”), Chengdu Chengfei Construction Limited Company (“Chengfei Construction”) and
Beijing Raise, respectively, pursuant to which Chengdu Raise conditionally agreed to sell to such parties
part of the properties of the urban complex in Chengdu — AVIC e International Communication Center at
the consideration of RMB44,628,728, RMB9,901,891 and RMB43,427,180, respectively (the “Property
Disposal”). As Chengdu Aircraft, Chengfei Construction and Beijing Raise are connected persons of the
Company, the Property Disposal with such parties constitute connected transactions of the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the Property Disposal
are below 5%, the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but are exempted from independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 December
2013.

Save as disclosed above, all related party transactions in the year ended 31 December 2013 as disclosed
in note 51 to the consolidated financial statement did not constitute connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other things, reporting, announcement, annual
review or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company also confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S CONFIRMATION

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company appointed the auditors,
Pricewaterhoursecoopers, to carry out review procedures on the connected transactions in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information’ and with reference to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules’ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditors provided to the Stock Exchange a copy of letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions confirming that:

a.

nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the relevant continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company.

nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

with respect to the respective amount of the relevant continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the respective amount of transactions have
exceeded the respective cap as disclosed in the previous announcements made by the Company.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

Very Substantial Disposal and Connected Transaction — Capital Increase Agreement and Deemed
Disposal of Interest in AVIC Vanke

On 27 December 2012, the Company, Vanke Enterprise Company Limited &RHPZEBRMND AR AT (“Vanke
Enterprise”), AVIC International and AVIC Vanke entered into a capital increase agreement, pursuant to
which AVIC International and Vanke Enterprise had respectively conditionally agreed to make a capital
contribution of RMB600,000,000 and RMB400,000,000 in cash to increase the registered capital and the
capital reserve of AVIC Vanke.

As at 27 December 2012, the Company held 60% interest in AVIC Vanke. Upon completion of the Capital
Increase, the shareholding of the Company in AVIC Vanke would be diluted from 60% to 47.12% of the
enlarged registered capital of AVIC Vanke. The dilution of the Company’s interest in AVIC Vanke constituted
a deemed disposal of interest in AVIC Vanke under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules.

As the percentage ratios under the Listing Rules applicable to the Capital Increase were more than 75%,
the Capital Increase constituted a very substantial disposal of the Company and the Capital Increase was
subject to, among other things, the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. As each of AVIC International and Vanke Enterprise was a connected
person of the Company, the Capital Increase also constituted a connected transaction of the Company.
Accordingly, the Capital Increase was subject to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company had held an extraordinary
general meeting to consider and approve the Capital Increase on 12 April 2013 and the Capital Increase was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general meeting. As at the
date of this report, AVIC Vanke had completed the Capital Increase and obtained the new business license
issued by the local Administration for Industry and Commerce. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 27 December 2012 and 18 January 2013, the circular dated 25 February 2013 and
the announcement of poll results of extraordinary general meeting held on 12 April 2013.
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Change of Company Name and Change of Stock Short Name

On 5 February 2013, the Board announced that the name of the Company has been changed from “Z3I|7
M= ER% D AR A 7l (CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited)” to “A1 i BIEE 22 IR A% (5 A FR A & (AVIC International
Holdings Limited)”. Following the change of name of the Company, the stock short name of the Company
for trading in the H Shares on the Stock Exchange changed from “CATIC SHENZHEN” and “Z#3JI|F s E
R " to “AVIC IHL” and “FR iR BIBR AL with effect from 8 February 2013. The stock code of the Company
remains unchanged. The business license bearing the new Chinese name of the Company was issued
by the Market Supervision Administration of Shenzhen Municipality on 4 January 2013. The Certificate of
Registration of Change of Corporate Name of Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong on 1 February 2013 certifying that the new name of the Company has been
registered in Hong Kong under Part X| of the old Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (currently, part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)). For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 September 2012 and 5 February 2013 and the
circular of the Company dated 4 October 2012.

Issuance of Corporate Debentures by Fiyta

Fiyta, a subsidiary of the Company, with the approval by China Securities Regulatory Commission, issued
corporate debentures (the “Fiyta Debentures”) amounting to RMB400,000,000 carrying an annual interest
rate of 5.04% on 27 February 2013. The maturity date of the Fiyta Debentures will be on 26 February 2018.
Fiyta may redeem the Fiyta Debentures on 27 February 2016, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. Fiyta may, at its option,
choose to increase the annual interest rate of the Fiyta Debentures (0.01% to 1%) for the fourth and fifth
years of the maturity period. If Fiyta does not exercise the option, the interest rate of the Fiyta Debenture
will remain unchanged in the remaining period before maturity. The Fiyta Debenture is guaranteed by AVIC
Shenzhen. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19 June 2012, 28 August
2012, 14 September 2012, 22 February 2013 and 25 February 2013.

Discloseable Transaction — Provision of Guarantee

On 17 April 2013, Beijing Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a highest
amount guarantee agreement (“Guarantee Agreement”) with China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”),
pursuant to which Beijing Company guaranteed to pay all due, owing or unpaid liabilities to the Bank by
Taizhou CATIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Limited (a joint stock company owned as to 45% by Beijing
Company) (the “Borrower”) from time to time in the maximum amount of RMB60,000,000. As the applicable
percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in relation to the provision of guarantee under the Guarantee
Agreement, together with the amount of guarantees provided by Beijing Company to creditors of the
Borrower within 12 months from the date of the Guarantee Agreement, are in aggregate more than 5%
but less than 25%, the transactions contemplated under the Guarantee Agreement constitute discloseable
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the provision of guarantee
is subject to the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the requirement
of shareholders’ approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17 April 2013.

H Share Issue Mandate

On 14 June 2013, a special resolution was passed on the annual general meeting of the Company to
authorize the Directors to allot, issue and deal with additional H Shares up to 20% of the aggregate nominal
value of H Shares of the Company in issue (“lssue Mandate”) as at the date of passing such resolution (“New
H Shares”). The Directors were authorized to issue a maximum of 55,531,599 New H Shares. The New H
Share Issue Mandate was conditional upon the approvals of the China Securities Regulatory Commission,
State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC and/or any other regulatory authorities (if applicable)
as required by the laws, rules and regulations of the PRC being obtained. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not yet lodged any relevant issue application to the respective authorities. The issue of such
New H Share Mandate will be subject to the market conditions as determined by the Board. For details,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 29 April 2013 and the poll results announcement for the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 June 2013.
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Further Development in relation to Very Substantial Acquisition and Connected Transaction
Involving Issue of Perpetual Subordinated Convertible Securities

On 16 May 2013, the Company and AVIC International entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) to amend certain terms of the acquisition agreement (including equity interest
purchase agreement and perpetual subordinated convertible securities (“PSCS”) subscription agreement)
entered into between the Company and AVIC International dated 16 November 2011 in relation to the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in China National Aero-Technology Corporation Shanghai Company
Limited (R B ZE 1 )8 ER A7) (‘Shanghai Company”), 50% equity interest in AVIC Lutong Company
Limited (FMEBEZEAR A F]), 90% equity interest in AVIC-INTL Coal Logistics Company Limited (Ffii
BB AR A R]) (formerly known as Guizhou CATIC AVIC Resources Limited (BN ERARE A
7)), and 100% equity interest in AVICINTL Project Engineering Company (/i B K E&ZEBR A 7)) at
the original consideration of RMB1,311,110,000, to be satisfied by the issue of PSCS by the Company in
the principal amount of RMB1,311,110,000 convertible into 368,289,325 new domestic shares at the initial
conversion price of RMB3.56 per domestic share. Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, the parties
conditionally agreed, among other things, that the 100% equity interest in Shanghai Company shall be
excluded from the aforesaid sale interests, and the consideration for the revised sale interests 1 shall be
revised to RMB552,814,600 to be satisfied by issue of PSCS in the principal amount of RMB552,814,600
convertible into 155,285,000 new domestic shares at the initial conversion price of RMB3.56 per domestic
share by the Company.

As certain applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in relation to the Supplemental Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were higher than 5% but less than 25%, the entering into
of the Supplemental Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company; as AVIC International was a connected person of the Company, the entering
into of the Supplemental Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder thus also constituted
a connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other things, approval of the independent
shareholders under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 16 May 2013 and the circular of the Company dated 5 July 2013. The supplemental
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been approved by independent shareholders
of the Company in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 26 August 2013. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 August 2013 for the poll results of the general
meeting.

Further Extension of Long Stop Date in relation to Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected
Transactions Involving Issue of Perpetual Subordinated Convertible Securities

On 27 December 2013, the Company entered into a supplement agreement in respect of the Acquisition
Agreement 1 with AVIC International, and a supplemental agreement in respect of acquisition agreement
2 and the acquisition agreement 3 (including equity interest purchase agreements, PSCS and subscription
agreements) with AVIC Shenzhen to further extend the long stop date to 31 December 2014 (or such later
date as the respective parties may agree in writing). For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 27 December 2013.
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Further Extension of Long Stop Date in relation to Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected
Transactions Involving Issue of Perpetual Subordinated Convertible Securities (continued)

The Company has received written approval from the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (“SASAC”) in October 2013, stating its consent in principle to the
acquisition of the revised sale interests 1 (including the issue of PSCS of RMB552,814,600 to satisfy the
consideration thereunder), and the acquisition contemplated under the acquisition agreement 3 (including
the issue of PSCS of RMB6,328,302,570 to satisfy the consideration thereunder). The transactions
contemplated under the acquisition agreements are still conditional upon the fulfilment of various other
conditions, details of which are set out in the circulars of the Company dated 23 December 2011 and 5 July
2018.

For details in relation to very substantial acquisitions and connected transaction involving issue perpetual
subordinated convertible securities, please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21
November 2011, 8 February 2012, 27 June 2012, 11 October 2012, 16 May 2013, 26 August 2013 and 30
October 2013, 27 December 2013 and the circulars of the Company dated 23 December 2011 and 5 July
2018.

Appointment of Vice Chairman of the Board

On 23 August 2013, the Board announced that Mr. You Lei, an executive Director, had been appointed by
the Board as the vice chairman of the Board for a term from 23 August 2013 to 18 June 2015. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 August 2013.

Major and Connected Transaction — Acquisition of KHD in Germany

On 11 October 2013, AVIC International Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd. (the “Purchaser”) (an indirect
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a total of twelve agreements (the “Agreements”) each with certain
independent third parties, pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire, in aggregate,
9,456,353 shares (the “Sale Shares”) of KHD Humboldt Wedag International AG (“KHD”) (the “KHD Shares”)
(representing approximately 19.03% of the then share capital of KHD) at an aggregate consideration of
approximately EUR61.0 million.

Following the entering into of the Agreements, the Purchaser, together with the Europe Project Management
Pte. Ltd., Europe Technology Investment Pte. Ltd. and Europe Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd (the “Singapore
Companies” (each indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Yap Lian Seng (“Mr. Yap”)), have launched the offer (the
“Offer”) jointly at the offer price of EURG.45 per share to acquire the KHD Shares (save and except the Sale
Shares and the KHD Shares held by Max Glory Industries Limited (“Max Glory”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company).

On 11 October 2013, Max Glory, the Purchaser and the Singapore Companies (the Purchaser and
the Singapore Companies, collectively the “the Bidders”) entered into a voting agreement (the “Voting
Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things, the parties agreed that the Bidders will launch the
Offer jointly and to coordinate in respect of the Offer.

Golden Prosperity Group Limited (“Golden Prosperity”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Mr. Yap entered into three option agreements (the “Option Agreements”) on the same date. Pursuant to
the Option Agreements, Golden Prosperity and Mr. Yap irrevocably grant to each other option to purchase
the entire issued share capital of the three BVI companies (the “BVI companies”, the Singapore Companies
being directly held by each of them) respectively.
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Major and Connected Transaction — Acquisition of KHD in Germany (continued)

The Offer was completed on 16 January 2014, the date of publication of final results of the Offer, under
German law. Pursuant to the Voting Agreement, out of the 24,847,045 KHD Shares tendered for acceptance
of the Offer, 1,500,000 KHD Shares (representing approximately 3.0% of the issued share capital of
KHD) would be taken up by the Purchaser (at the aggregate consideration of EUR9,675,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$101,100,000), and the remaining 23,347,045 KHD Shares would be taken by the
Singapore Companies (at the aggregate consideration of EUR150,5688,440.25 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,573,600,000)). As at the date of this report, the options have not yet been exercised.

As Mr. Yap had been a director of the Purchaser for the past 12 months, Mr. Yap, the BVI Companies and
the Singapore Companies are connected persons of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and
the transactions under the Agreements, the Offer, the Voting Agreements and the Option Agreements (the
“Acquisition”) constitute a connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other things, reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the relevant applicable percentage ratios calculated pursuant to the Listing Rules in respect of the
Acquisition is more than 25% but less than 100%, the Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules and is subject to, among other things, the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

A written shareholders’ approval has been obtained from AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen for the
approval of the Acquisition pursuant to Rules 14.44 and 14A.43 of the Listing Rules on 25 November 2013.
As at the date of such approval, AVIC International holds 437,264,906 Shares, representing 39.37% of the
issued share capital of the Company, and it owns the entire equity interest in AVIC Shenzhen, which in turns
holds 395,709,091 Shares, representing 35.63% of the issued share capital of the Company. As a result, no
general meeting is required to be convened by the Company to approve the Acquisition.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11 October, 4 November, 27
December 2013 and 16 January 2014, and the circular of the Company dated 26 March 2014, respectively.

Major and Connected Transaction and Very Substantial Disposal Transaction - Acquisition of 5
Subject Companies (including Shanghai Tianma) by Tianma and Proposed A Shares Placing of
Tianma

On 1 November 2013, Tianma entered into five separate framework agreements (“Framework Agreements”)
with (A) the Company, Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/&83T (%£E) AR 2AF]) (“Shanghai
Zhangjiang Company”), Shanghai State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. (E/8HBEELEER A F)
(“Shanghai State Assets Company”) and Shanghai Optical Communications Corporation (/& @ a2~
al) in relation to the acquisition of 70% equity interest in Shanghai Tianma (“Shanghai Tianma Framework
Agreement”) (“Shanghai Tianma Transaction”); (B) Chengdu Industrial Group Company Limited (5%#P T3
HEEEAFR AT (“Chengdu Industrial Group”) and Chengdu Gaoxin Investment Group Company Limited
(&= R EE£EBRR AT (“Chengdu Gaoxin Investment”) in relation to the acquisition of 40% equity
interest in Chengdu Tianma (“Chengdu Tianma Framework Agreement”) (“Chengdu Tianma Transaction”);
(C) Hubei Province Technology Investment Group Company Limited (it & Bliiv B =B ER A F) (‘Hubei
Technology Investment”) in relation to the acquisition of 90% equity interest in Wuhan Tianma (“Wuhan
Tianma Framework Agreement”) (“Wuhan Tianma Transaction”); (D) AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen
in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shanghai Optoelectronics (“Shanghai Opto-
electronics Framework Agreement”) (“Shanghai Opto-electronics Transactions”); and (E) AVIC International
and AVIC Shenzhen in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Opto-electronics
(“Shenzhen Opto-electronics Framework Agreement”) (“Shenzhen Opto-electronics Transactions”) (together,
the “Transactions”).
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Major and Connected Transaction and Very Substantial Disposal Transaction - Acquisition of 5
Subject Companies (including Shanghai Tian Ma) by Tian Ma and Proposed A Shares Placing of
Tian Ma (continued)

Pursuant to the Framework Agreements, the consideration of the Transactions will be fully settled by
issue of new A shares of the Company (“Share”) by Tianma to the vendors to the Framework Agreements
(“Consideration Shares”) upon completion of the respective Transactions at an issue price of not less
than RMB12.69 per Tianma A Share, being the average closing price per Tianma A Share quoted on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the past consecutive 20 trading days immediately preceding the
commencement date of suspension of trading of Tianma A Shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (i.e.
the 20 trading days from 5 August 2013 to 1 September 2013). The maximum number of Consideration
Shares in aggregate to be issued under the Shanghai Tianma Framework Agreement, the Chengdu
Tianma Framework Agreement, the Wuhan Tianma Framework Agreement, the Shanghai Opto-Electronics
Framework Agreement and the Shenzhen Opto-Electronics Framework Agreement will be 101,670,400,
48,038,700, 135,361,600, 138,272,300 and 25,971,900, respectively.

Based on the maximum number of Consideration Shares set out in the Framework Agreements and the
issue price of RMB12.69 per Tianma A Share, it is expected that the maximum aggregate consideration
for each of Shanghai Tianma Transaction, Chengdu Tianma Transaction, Wuhan Tianma Transaction,
Shanghai Opto-Electronics Transaction and Shenzhen Opto-Electronics Transaction are RMB1,290,197,300,
RMB609,611,100, RMB1,717,738,700, RMB1,754,675,500 and RMB329,583,400, respectively.

The Transactions are not inter-conditional with each other.

As at the date of this annual report, approval of the Transactions by the relevant SASAC has not yet been
obtained.

On 1 November 2013, Tianma, Chengdu Industrial Group and Chengdu Gaoxin Investment entered into a
second JV supplemental agreement, pursuant to which, among others, the period for acquisition of 30%
equity interest in Chengdu Tianma set out in the first JV supplemental agreement (the “First JV Supplemental
Agreement”) be extended and Tianma shall participate in the bidding for the 30% equity interest in Chengdu
Tianma at the consideration as agreed in the First JV Supplemental Agreement within one year upon the
completion of the acquisitions of 40% equity interest in Chengdu Tianma by Tianma or the date of the
placing shares listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Chengdu Tianma Bidding”). Based on the formula
set out in the First JV Supplemental Agreement and on the assumption of 6.5% of annual interest rate for
each of the seven years since the incorporation of Chengdu Tianma up to the date of this report and the
registered capital of Chengdu Tianma of RMB1,200,000,000 remains unchanged at the time of bidding, the
bidding price will be approximately RMB523,800,000. The Board will propose at the extraordinary general
meeting to approve a maximum bidding price of RMB600,000,000 for acquisition of the remaining 30%
equity interest in Chengdu Tianma.

Proposed A Shares Placing

Upon completion of the Transactions, Tianma intends to issue placing shares to not more than ten placees
for raising additional funds ancillary to the Transactions (“Proposed A Shares Placing”). The proceeds to be
raised under the Proposed A Shares Placing will not exceed 25% of the total amount of the consideration
of the Transactions and the Proposed A Shares Placing. The placing price will not be lower than RMB12.69
per Tianma A Share. All the placees will be independent third parties.
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10.

Major and Connected Transaction and Very Substantial Disposal Transaction - Acquisition of 5
Subject Companies (including Shanghai Tian Ma) by Tian Ma and Proposed A Shares of Placing of
Tian Ma and Proposed A Shares Placing (continued)

Based on the maximum number of Consideration Shares contemplated under the Framework Agreements
and the placing price of RMB12.69 per A Share, the gross proceeds under the Proposed A Shares Placing
will not exceed RMB1,900,602,000 and the maximum number of the Placing Shares will be 149,771,631.

The Proposed A Shares Placing together with those Transactions where necessary approvals including the
approval from respective local SASAC have been obtained will be submitted to China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC”) for approval. Based on the applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Proposed A
Shares Placing will only be proceeded with after completion of such Transactions and upon approval of the
Transactions by the CSRC, the final placing price, which will be not less than RMB12.69 per A Share, will be
determined by way of bidding pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations.

As the applicable percentage ratios of each of the Shanghai Tianma Transaction, Wuhan Tianma Transaction,
Shanghai Opto-electronics Transaction, Shenzhen Opto-electronics Transaction, Chengdu Tianma Transaction
and Chengdu Tianma Bidding exceed 25% but less than 100%, each of the Shanghai Tianma Transaction
(including the Disposal), Wuhan Tianma Transaction, Shanghai Opto-electronics Transaction, Shenzhen Opto-
electronics Transaction, Chengdu Tianma Transaction and Chengdu Tianma Bidding constitutes a major
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules, which is subject to the reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As the vendors to the respective Framework Agreements (save and except for Hubei Technology Investment)
and the counter-parties to the second JV supplemental agreement are connected persons of the Company,
each of the Transactions (excluding Wuhan Tianma Transaction) and Chengdu Tianma Bidding constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company, which is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Assuming all the Transactions have been completed, if Tianma proceeds with the Proposed A Shares
Placing after completion of the Transactions, the Company’s dilution in interest in Tianma after the issuance
and the Proposed A Shares Placing respectively constitutes a deemed disposal of interest in Tianma
held by the Company under the Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for
the issuance and the Proposed A Shares Placing exceed 75%, the issuance and the Proposed A Shares
Placing constitute a very substantial disposal of the Company under Rule 14.06 of the Listing Rules and
is therefore subject to announcement, reporting and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. The Transactions and the Proposed A Shares Placing have been approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting. For details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2013, the circular dated 29 January 2014
and the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2014 for the poll results of the general meeting,
respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has no material foreign exchange risk as the Group’s products are mainly distributed in domestic market
and its export business is mainly settled in US dollar or HK dollar. Details of foreign exchange risk of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the Note 4 of the financial statement.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, Beijing Company, a subsidiary of the Company, provided a guarantee of a loan
amounting to RMB607,960,000 in favour of its associated company, Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry
Limited (“Taizhou Shipbuilding) and a guarantee of a loan amounting to RMB44,530,000 in favour of its third
party, Zhengli Ocean Engineering Company Limited. Xiamen Company, a subsidiary of the Company, provided
a guarantee of a loan amounting to RMB176,000,000 in favour of the Company’s connected person, Xiamen
Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Tianma”) and a guarantee of a loan amounting to RMB162,022,000
in favour of its associated company, Radiance Catico Offshore Pte. Ltd., and a guarantee of a loan amounting
to RMB60,000,000 in favour of its associated company, Xiamen Zijin CATIC Co., Ltd. Engineering Company, a
subsidiary of the Company, provided a guarantee of a loan amounting to RMB19,600,000 in favour of its associated
company, CATIC Construction Engineering Co., Ltd.

MAJOR LITIGATION

On 19 November 2012, Xiamen Arbitration Commission (&= PifF£tZ 5 &) accepted the application for arbitration hearing
from Xiamen Company in relation to a claim of approximately RMB25,370,000 for loss of goods, loss of interest and
legal costs, maintenance costs against the counterparty for failure to deliver the goods stored; and the requisition on the
confirmation of entitlement of the security rights and application for auction and sales of the pledged properties as well as
the priority of compensation over proceeds. On 13 December 2012, the People’s Court of Shanghai Baoshan District ( =
BT E LR A RJART) accepted the application from Xiamen Company and made the ruling of property preservation. The
judgment was ruled in favour of Xiamen Company and the enforcement is currently in progress.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1. Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreements in relation to Leasing and
Management of Properties
On 13 January 2014, the Company entered into one rental framework agreement (the “Rental Framework
Agreement”), two tenancy framework agreements (the “Tenancy Framework Agreements”) and two
property management framework agreements (the “Property Management Framework Agreements”) with
AVIC International and Beijing Raise Science Company Limited (1t RIERI AR A F]) (“Beijing Raise”)
respectively, each for a term from the date of its execution to 31 December 2016 (subject to their respective
conditions precedent).

According to the requirements of the Rental Framework Agreement, the annual caps in respect of the
leasing of real estate properties by the Group to AVIC International and its associated companies in the
year ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 shall not exceed RMB35,000,000, RMB40,000,000 and
RMB45,000,000 respectively.

According to the requirements of the Tenancy Framework Agreements, the annual cap amounts in respect
of leasing of real estate properties agreed by each of Beijing Raise and its subsidiaries and AVIC International
and/or its associated companies to the Group in the year ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 shall
not exceed (i) RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 respectively; and (i) RMB75,000,000,
RMBB80,000,000 and RMB85,000,000 respectively.

According to the requirements of the Property Management Framework Agreements, the annual cap
amounts in respect of the provision of property management services by each of Beijing Raise and/or its
subsidiaries and AVIC International and/or its subsidiaries to the Group in the year ended 31 December
2014, 2015 and 2016 shall not exceed (i) RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 respectively;
and (i) RMB60,000,000, RMB60,000,000 and RMB60,000,000 respectively.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreements in relation to Leasing and
Management of Properties (continued)

As AVIC International (including its Associated Companies) and Beijing Raise (including its subsidiaries)
are connected persons of the Company, each of (i) the Rental Framework Agreement, (ii) the Tenancy
Framework Agreements; and (iii) Property Management Framework Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions of the Group pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for each of the above transactions exceed
0.1% but are less than 5%, such transactions are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 January 2014.

Discloseable Transaction - Provision of Guarantee

On 24 January 2014, Beijing Company executed a counter-guarantee agreement (the “Counter-guarantee
Agreement”) in favour of the Export-Import Bank of China (s B3 i [ $877) (the “Bank”), pursuant to which
Beijing Company guaranteed to pay all secured indebtedness in respect of US$47,250,000 (together
with interests and related costs, etc. if any) (as defined below) due and owing to the Bank by Taizhou
Shipbuilding (a joint stock company owned as to 45% by Beijing Company) in relation to the guarantee
of US$105,000,000 provided by the Bank for Taizhou Shipbuilding. The Counter-guarantee Agreement
commences from date of its execution (i.e. 24 January 2014) and will cease upon full repayment of the
secured indebtedness. The applicable percentage ratios in relation to the provision of guarantee provided by
Beijing Company to Taizhou Shipbuilding are in aggregate more than 5% but less than 25%, and therefore
the transactions contemplated under the provision of guarantee constitute a discloseable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the provision of guarantee is subject to
the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the requirement of shareholders’
approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 24 January 2014.

Continuing Connected Transaction — Revision of Breakdown of Financial Assistance and Interest/
Guarantee Fee

On 27 January 2014, the Company proposed to amend the existing breakdown in relation to financial
assistance and interest/guarantee fee under the existing financial cap for the year ending 31 December
2014 in the financial assistance framework agreement between the Company and AVIC International
dated 5 September 2012 (the “AVIC International Financial Framework Agreement”). The amount of cap of
acceptance of loans/guarantees by the Group in the year ending 31 December 2014 was proposed to be
adjusted from RMB28,800,000,000 to RMB23,800,000,000, and the amount cap of the provision of loans/
guarantees by the Group was proposed to be adjusted from RMB200,000,000 to RMB5,200,000,000; the
interest/guarantee fee for acceptance of loans/guarantees by the Group was proposed to be adjusted from
RMB442,000,000 to RMB341,000,000, and the interest/guarantee fee for provision of loans/guarantees
by the Group was proposed to be adjusted from RMB8,000,000 to RMB109,000,000. As the applicable
percentage ratios for the AVIC International Financial Framework Agreement exceed 5%, the Company
shall comply with the reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 27 January 2014 and 17 March 2014, respectively.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 139



Report of the Directors

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

4,

140

Discloseable and Connected Transaction - Capital Increase Agreement

On 16 April 2013, Shanghai Tianma (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), Shanghai Zhangjiang
Company and Shanghai Industrial Investment (Group) Company Limited (E/8 T2 E (£8) BEA
a)) (“Shanghai Industrial Investment”) (the “JV Partners”) entered into a joint venture agreement (“JV
Agreement”), pursuant to which the JV Partners established Shanghai Tian Ma Organic Light-Emitting
Technology Company Limited (/8K 5 A # 3%k BRI A R A F]) (‘Y Company”) with a total registered
capital of RMB5 million, the equity interests of which were held as to 40%, 20% and 40% by Shanghai
Industrial Investment, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Tianma, respectively.

On 4 March 2014, Shanghai Tianma entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Industrial Investment, pursuant to which
Shanghai Industrial Investment, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Tianma have conditionally
agreed to make a capital contribution of RMB398 million, RMB199 million and RMB398 million to the
registered capital of the JV Company, respectively, which are in proportion to their respective holding of
equity interests of 40%, 20% and 40% in the JV Company (“Proposed Capital Increase”). The JV Partners
shall make their capital contribution in proportion and simultaneously in two phases. In the first phase,
Shanghai Industrial Investment, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Tianma will contribute
RMB120 million, RMB60 million and RMB120 million respectively in cash. In the second phase, Shanghai
Industrial Investment and Shanghai Zhangjiang Company will contribute RMB278 million and RMB139
million in cash respectively while Shanghai Tianma will make contribution by way of injection of the injected
construction in the amount of RMB278 million. The holding of equity interests in the JV Company by the
respective JV Partners shall remain unchanged upon completion of the Proposed Capital Increase. The
second capital contribution by Shanghai Tianma under the Capital Increase Agreement shall be made
by way of injection of the injected construction, which refers to the construction by Shanghai Tianma of
the factory buildings for the JV Company to an extent of completion for not less than 25%, together with
the land use right of an industrial land located at Pudong New District Huiging Road in Shanghai with an
aggregate area of approximately 120,000 m2 to be contributed by Shanghai Tianma to the JV Company.
Such capital contribution into the JV Company which involves injection of assets other than cash would
constitute a disposal of assets by the Company under the Listing Rules.

Each of Shanghai Optical Communications Corporation (wholly-owned by Shanghai Industrial Investment) and
Shanghai Zhangjiang Company is a substantial shareholder of Shanghai Tianma. The JV Company is owned
as to 40% and 20%, respectively, by Shanghai Industrial Investment and Shanghai Zhangjiang Company.
The JV Company is a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Proposed Capital Increase and the transactions contemplated under the Capital Increase
Agreement (including the contribution of the injected construction by Shanghai Tianma and the possible loan
of a maximum amount of RMB100 million) constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the percentage ratios applicable, when aggregate with the establishment of
the JV Company pursuant to the JV Agreement are more than 5% but less than 25%, the contribution of the
injected construction by Shanghai Tianma contemplated under the Capital Increase Agreement is subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14.06 of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2014 and circular
of the Company dated 11 April 2014.
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5. Continuing Connected Transaction - Xiamen Tian Ma Entrusted Management Agreement
On 4 March 2014, Shanghai Tianma (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and Xiamen Tianma
entered into an entrusted management agreement, pursuant to which Shanghai Tianma agreed to provide
management services to Xiamen Tianma for a term commencing from 5 March 2014 and ending on 29 February
2016. The caps of management fees received by the Shanghai Tianma during the periods of 5 March 2014 to 28
February 2015 and 5 March 2015 to 29 February 2016 will be RMB15 million and RMB15 million respectively.

As at 4 March 2014, Xiamen Tianma was directly owned as to, among others, 15.3% and 14.7% by
AVIC Shenzhen and AVIC International respectively. AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen are controlling
shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, Xiamen Tianma was a connected person of the Company and
the transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company had complied with, among others, the announcement requirement, and was
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2014.

6. Discloseable Transaction - Provision of Guarantee

On 17 March 2014, Beijing Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) executed a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement”) in favour of Taizhou Branch of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
(FBERITIRMH AR A TRMHTT) (the “Bank”), pursuant to which Beijing Company guaranteed to pay an
amount of RMB216,000,000 in respect of loans and principal amount of credit facilities of RMB480,000,000
provided by the Bank, together with interest, related expenses, etc. (“Provision of Guarantee”) in respect
of the credit facilities due and owing to the Bank by Taizhou Shipbuilding (a joint stock company owned as
to 45% by Beijing Company) (“Credit Facilities”). The Guarantee Agreement commences from the date of
its execution (i.e. 17 March 2014) and will cease upon 2 years after the expiry date of the Credit Facilities.
The applicable percentage ratios of the amount of guarantee(s) provided by Beijing Company to creditors of
Taizhou Shipbuilding within 12 months from the date of the Guarantee Agreement, are in aggregate more
than 5% but less than 25%. The transactions contemplated under the Provision of Guarantee constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Provision
of Guarantee is subject to the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the
requirement of shareholders’ approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2014 for details.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Except for the code provision A.2.1, the Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code which was contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2013. For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed “4. Chairman and Chief Executive” in
the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report. During the period, the Company has introduced remedial
measures and systems for existing drawbacks in order to further improve its internal control.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules has been adopted as a code of securities transactions for the Directors and supervisors of
the Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries with all Directors and supervisors of the Company,
confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2013, all Directors and supervisors of the Company had
complied with the required standards of dealing in securities specified in the Model Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance with the
Listing Rules to fulfill the functions of reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting and internal control of the
Company. The Audit Committee members currently comprise all the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping. The Audit Committee has reviewed and confirmed the
Company’s results announcement and audited financial statements for the twelve months ended 31 December
2013.

The figures in respect of this annual report of the Group’s results for the year have been agreed by the Company’s
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to the Group’s financial statements for the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company has obtained written confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
concerning their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2013. The Directors believe that the independent non-executive Directors had remained independent
based on the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2013.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the Board of the Company as at the latest
practicable date with respect to the publication of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float.

AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. There is no change
in the Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Wu Guang Quan
Chairman

Shenzhen, 28 March 2014
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company currently comprises Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang
Ping, and is chaired by Ms. Wong Wai Ling. During the year 2013, the audit committee, a subcommittee
of the Board of the Company, performed its duties in strict compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has effectively monitored the
Company’s financial incomes and expenses and its operating activities for the year 2013. It has reviewed
the Company’s financial statements and interim and annual reports, as well as supervised the internal
control and information disclosure of the Company, and enhanced its communication with the auditors to
ensure that they have imposed effective supervision on the Company’s operation and management. The
performance of duties by the audit committee in 2013 is summarized as follows:

M)

Vi)

The committee has got to know the actual operations and the progress of major events of the
Company, its controlling companies and its subsidiaries, and reviewed the financial statements
compiled by the Company.

The committee has overseen the quality of internal auditing and the disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules for the issuers. It has also reviewed the
interim and annual financial statements prior to the submission to the Board, and communicated
closely with the auditors to reach a consensus in all material aspects of the audit report.

The committee has examined the completeness of the Company’s financial statements and interim
and annual reports and reviewed the major opinions in respect of financial reporting of financial
information set out in the financial statements in accordance with the professional ethics of
independence, objectiveness and fairness.

The committee has acted as the major representative for the communications between the issuer
and the external auditor pursuant to the best practice of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and been responsible for monitoring their relationship. It has also reviewed and examined
the independence of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit procedures in accordance
with the applicable standards.

The committee has reviewed the implementation of Connected Transactions of the Company in 2013.

The committee has undertook the responsibilities for providing guidance in respect of internal control,
and considered and approved the working plan for internal auditing for the year 2013.

The annual result and consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 of the Group
have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The audit committee conducted two meetings during the year of 2013, the details of which are as follows:

Subcommittee Audit Committee

Members Wong Wai Ling, Wu Wei, Zhang Ping
Number of meetings held 2

Date of meetings held 21 March 2013

16 August 2013

Proposals considered i The Proposal to Review the Auditor’s Report, Results

Announcement and Report of Directors of the Company for 2012

2 The Proposal to Review the Compliance of the Connected
Transactions of the Company

Sic The Proposal to Review the Enhancement of Corporate
Governance and Internal Control of the Company

4. The Proposal to Review the Interim Financial Report and the
Interim Report on Consolidated Results of the Company for 2013

5 The Proposal to Review the Corporate Governance and the
Internal Control of the Company for the First Half of 2013

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company currently comprises Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong
Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, and is chaired by Mr. Zhang Ping. During
2013, the remuneration committee of the Company has reviewed the remuneration policy and the payment
method for the directors and senior management. It has also made an assessment on the disclosure of the
remuneration of the directors, supervisors and senior management in the Company’s annual report and of
the opinion that the remuneration standard set for the directors, supervisors and senior management by
the Company was in compliance with the relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration disclosures were true and accurate. The performance of duties by
the remuneration committee in this year is summarized as follows:

1)

M)

During the reporting period, the remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration policy
or scheme for all executive directors, supervisors and other senior management in accordance
with laws, statutes and Articles of Associations, and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors to ensure that none of the directors was involved in the
determination of his remuneration. It was delegated the responsibility by the Board to determine
the amount of benefits in kind, pension and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

The committee has supervised the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure to formulate
the remuneration policy and structure of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company;

The committee has reviewed the remunerations for the year 2012 of the Company’s directors,
supervisors and senior management, and deemed that the remuneration decision-making procedure
and distribution standard comply with the provisions of the remuneration system;

The committee has reviewed the performance of duties by the directors, supervisors, and other senior
management, and assessed their annual performance. It has also monitored the implementation of
the Company’s remuneration policies.
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Reports of the Board’s Subcommittees

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year of 2013, the details of which are as follows:

Subcommittee Remuneration Committee

Members Wu Guang Quan, Chen Hong Liang, Wong Wai Ling, Wu Wei, and
Zhang Ping

Number of meeting held 1

Date of meeting held 21 March 2013

Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Remuneration Policy of the Directors

and Senior Management of the Company for 2012

2. The Proposal to Review the Develop Program of the Remuneration
Policy of the Company

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company currently comprises Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong
Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, and is chaired by Mr. Wu Wei. During 2013,
the nomination committee of the Company has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
as well as the qualification and experience of the candidates. It also has reviewed the proposal regarding
the independence of independent non-executive directors. The nomination committee considered that the
structure of the Board of the Company complies with the requirement of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of the Directors are competent
for the director of the Company, including skills, knowledge and experience. All of the independent non-
executive directors met the requirement of independence of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the period
under reviewed. The performance of duties by the nomination committee in this year is summarized as
follows:

l) During the reporting period, the committee has, considered and reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including skills, knowledge and experience, and made recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed change to the structure of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

I) The committee has considered the suitability of a candidate to act as a director on the basis of the
candidate’s qualification, experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company;

[1) The committee has assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors under the
requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee held two meetings during the year of 2013, the details of which are as follows:

Subcommittee Nomination Committee

Members Wu Guang Quan, Chen Hong Liang, Wong Wai Ling, Wu Wei and
Zhang Ping

Number of meetings held 2

Date of meetings held 21 March 2013
23 August 2013

Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Structure, Size and Composition of

the Board

2. The Proposal to Review the Independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors
S The Proposal to Approve the Board’s Diversity Policy

4. The Proposal to appointment or re-appointment or succession of
Directors
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

The first meeting of sixth session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company was held on 19 June 2012, in
which new members of Supervisory Committee were elected. The Supervisory Committee of the Company is
composed of Mr. Huang Bin (chairman of the Supervisory Committee), Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Deng Bo Song.

During the year of 2013, all members of the Supervisory Committee of the Company earnestly performed the
function of supervision in accordance with the regulations and requirements of Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Articles of Associations and the procedure rules of the Supervisory Committee. By means
of exercising their functions independently pursuant to the laws through attending the meetings of board of
directors as a non-voting member and convening the meeting of the Supervisory Committee, the members of the
Supervisory Committee supervised and examined the operations of the Company in accordance with the laws, the
financial position of the Company, the implementation of resolutions passed in the shareholders’ general meetings,
the process of making major decisions by the Board of Directors, the legality and compliance for the operation and
management activities of the Company as well as the performance of duties by the Directors. It was thus procured
that the Company is operated legally with a view to safeguard the benefits of the Company, its shareholders and
employees.

The Supervisory Committee deems that during the reporting period, the Company’s behaviors in the aspects of
legal operation, financial auditing & result and daily operation and management comply with relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Articles of Associations; the board of directors are
scrupulous about their duties, without breach of laws or rules or damaging the Company’s benefits by utilizing their
powers.

The Supervisory Committee expresses the following opinions for the performance of its operation during the
reporting period:

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinions on the legal operation of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company strictly abided to the laws and statutes such as Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, Articles of Associations and Listing
Rules on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, established sound internal control system, run normally and executed
legal decision-making procedure. The shareholders’ general meetings and the Board meetings were convened
in accordance with the procedures as provided in the relevant laws, regulations and the Company’s articles of
association, where the contents of the relevant resolutions were legal and valid. When fulfilling duties, the directors
of the Company can consciously safeguard the benefits of the Company and shareholders, adhere to the principles
of good faith and diligence, and do not violate any laws or statutes, or damage the Company’s benefits.

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinions on review of Company’s financial status
The supervisory committee has reviewed the relevant information such as the 2013 interim report, 2013 annual
report and 2013 auditor’s report presented by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, with
unqualified opinion. The supervisor committee considered that the Company’s finance system and internal control
system are sound, the financial operation is normal and financial status is good, and that the auditor’s report can
truly, objectively and fairly reflect the financial position and operating results of the Company in 2013.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinion on the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Company

During the reporting period, the acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company were in compliance with the
requirements of laws and regulations including the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Securities
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Listing Rules as well as the Articles of Association and the required
review procedures have been performed to ensure that there was no damage to the interests of the listed company
nor any impairment to the Company’s assets.

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinion on the connected transactions of the Company

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the reporting period and considered that such transactions were in line with the Company’s needs
for business development and long-term growth, and strictly in compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Articles of Association and the Internal Reporting System for
Major Events and Connected Transactions issued by the Company. The Company has conducted the review and
disclosure procedures such that the interests of the Shareholders and the Company were not prejudiced.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Huang Bin
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, China
28 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to
364, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R_Z—=F+=H=+—H As At 31 December 2013

B=E
—A—HlL
BZ+=-A=+—H1t As at
As at 31 December 1 January
—E—= —E——F —E——F
2013 2012 2012
Hiat AR¥TFT AREEFT AREFor
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&) (#&&E7)
(Restated) (Restated)
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
TR Land use rights 7 1,438,645  1,293452 1,214,682
IR & PR Exploration and extraction rights 8 836,543 505,317 519,906
(AR Goodwill 9 385,435 264,544 260,236
A Intangible assets 10 244,530 156,286 151,236
M - WmENKKE  Property, plant and equipment 11 8,536,709 8,673,372 9,659,889
KB YEE Investment properties 12 2,153,150 2,099,314 2,030,986
EETR Construction-in-progress 13 1,879,385 1,252,051 1,128,005
FAREZEAREAIE Investments accounted for
‘& using the equity method 115 4,386,692 4,298,291 3,738,157
B 5 Rk EAEYWZIE Trade and other receivables 24 248,040 388,600 308,772
At ESFIEE  Available-for-sale financial assets 19 291,090 259,819 205,046
LTSI EE Deferred income tax assets 20 311,635 264,799 234,369
BEmIEREEE Other non-current assets 21 2,046,166 309,916 174,120
22,758,020 19,765,761 19,625,404
REEE Current assets
R Inventories 22 4,614,870 3,825,057 3,802,532
R Y Properties under development 23 2,317,086 1,256,078 494,427
B 5N E M EWFIE Trade and other receivables 24 10,368,510 9,525,525 8,309,786
FHEHE SR E‘EE Held-to-maturity financial assets - = 15,000
FEWE X TR Amounts due from customers
ZHE A for contract work 25 1,493,175 1,161,194 802,666
TTESmI A Derivative financial instruments 26 5,405 3,110 -
HEIRITTF K Pledged bank deposits 27 641,426 510,563 557,414
Be MIEE£EBY  Cash and cash equivalents 28 4,802,843 4,038,225 3,249,891
24,243,315 20,319,752 17,231,716
BEE Total assets 47,001,335 40,085,513 36,857,120
s EQUITY
AATERFEA  Capital and reserves
LB REREE attributable to owners
of the Company
R& AR Share capital 29 1,110,632 1,110,632 673,367
BB Share premium 29 1,294,633 1,294,633 354,513
H & E Other reserves 30 (404,201) (380,075) 3,816,137
KRR A& 8% Perpetual subordinated
convertible securities 31 2,781,674 2,781,674 -
R B E Retained earnings 3,535,079 2,762,828 1,792,126
8,317,817 7,569,692 6,636,143
FEIERR R R = Non-controlling interests 4,399,803 3,989,077 4,078,722
R Total equity 12,717,620 11,558,769 10,714,865

BEF 55160 £ 364 B WM iE ek Fhr & MBS mR VAR E D

The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
R-Z—=%F+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2013

BZE
—HA—HlL
BZ+=-HA=1+—H1t As at
As at 31 December 1 January
—E—-=F —E——F —F—_—F
\ 2013 2012 2012
Kiat AEB¥FiT AREFT AREFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(e E5l) (e E5)
(Restated) (Restated)
=N LIABILITIES
#ﬁiﬂﬁfi Non-current liabilities
S Borrowings 32 6,182,333 4,044,826 4,962,303
LLFE XR‘E & Deferred income tax liabilities 20 624,760 539,245 526,800
EM‘T%EEEH’] EIEU A Deferred income on
government grants &5 570,576 538,990 576,231
B Provisions - - 10,360
B 5 NEAMERFIE Trade and other payables 36 44,871 46,128 24,335
RO B At Retirement and other supplemental
BMEE benefit obligations 34 42,869 49,276 49,222
HittdEmsa Other non-current liabilities 35 956,152 1,202,424 153,363
8,421,561 6,420,889 6,302,614
RBEE Current liabilities
B 5 NEAMFEFIE Trade and other payables 36 12,697,401 11,232,783 10,500,403
ENEATIE Amounts due to customers
EFRIE for contract work 25 194,180 200,434 964,180
EEN Borrowings 32 12,751,554 10,561,740 8,205,377
PTESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - 441
REFTEMEA & Current income tax liabilities 214,355 106,526 165,043
RIR M E b Feta R Retirement and other supplemental
EFE benefit obligations 34 4,664 4,372 4,197
25,862,154 22,105,855 19,839,641
was Total liabilities 34,283,715 28,526,744 26,142,255
BWRESZNEE Total equity and liabilities 47,001,335 40,085,513 36,857,120
REBFEAEE Net current liabilities (1,618,839) (1,786,103) (2,607,925)
WEEREAME Total assets less current
liabilities 21,139,181 17,979,658 17,017,479

BEF 55160 364 B M it max Fhn & M ISR VAR E 7

The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BE R

Director: Wu Guang Quan

£% i

Director: You Lei

F150E3AEMIBRECN - E—NE=ZA -+ \BEESSHE  THULEERRESE
The financial statements on page 150 to 364 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 and
were signed on its behalf.
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Company Balance Sheet

R_Z—=F+=H=+—H As At 31 December 2013

BE+-A=+—-HL

As at 31 December

—E2—= —E——fF
2013 2012
k=3 AR¥FT AR TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FREEE Non-current assets
ME - BE MK Property, plant and equipment 11 7,277 7,131
R B A RIRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 14 4,585,828 4,515,652
REE N R]RIRE Investments in associates 16 298,198 298,198
RESDERNIKE Investments in joint ventures 17 2,371,409 2,385,857
AEHEemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 19 15,224 1,400
HitIEmE & E Other non-current assets 21 = 40,000
7,277,936 7,248,238
REBEE Current assets
B 5 K E A eI I8 Trade and other receivables 24 797,762 666,609
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 206,467 81,117
1,004,229 747,726
wmEE Total assets 8,282,165 7,995,964
= EQUITY
AATREREE AFELEAR Capital and reserves attributable to
EfE owners of the Company
R& 2R Share capital 29 1,110,632 1,110,632
WA % B Share premium 29 1,294,633 1,294,633
HE Other reserves 30 94,084 70,001
IR AR AR A] I RS Perpetual subordinated convertible
securities 31 2,781,674 2,781,674
AOEFE(2:5tE48) Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) 30 29,873 (395,981)
R Total equity 5,310,896 4,860,959

BEFT 551602364 A MMt Rk Fir e M SRR AAR IS
The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RREEAER
Company Balance Sheet
W=F—=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2013

BE+t=-A=+—-HL

As at 31 December

—E-=5F —E—_F
2013 2012
Kt AR¥T T AREFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
af& LIABILITIES
kRBES Non-current liabilities
EEN Borrowings 32 1,075,000 -
EmIERSEE Other non-current liabilities 35 800,000 1,050,000
1,875,000 1,050,000
RBAE Current liabilities
B 5 M HE A e oE Trade and other payables 36 123,269 285,005
&= Borrowings 32 973,000 1,800,000
1,096,269 2,085,005
BEFE Total liabilities 2,971,269 3,135,005
HEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 8,282,165 7,995,964
REFERE Net current liabilities (92,040) (1,337,279)
BEERABAR Total assets less current liabilities 7,185,896 5,910,959

BEM 1602364 AWM T RZ Fira MISIHRERNAEK D -
The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BE Rt B HiE

Director: Wu Guang Quan Director: You Lei

F150E3CAE T BRERCR T NE=ZA-+/\BKESSHE VAN LBERRESE -
The financial statements on page 150 to 364 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 and
were signed on its behalf.
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE—_T—=%1+_—A=+—HI-9FE For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—2-= —F—F
2013 2012
it ARMFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7)
(Restated)
WA Revenue 6 33,437,688 31,252,572
$HE BN Cost of sales 39 (29,186,281) (27,343,668)
ER Gross profit 4,251,407 3,908,904
HEER Distribution costs 39 (1,303,959) (1,191,380)
1THE R Administrative expenses 39 (2,157,959) (1,742,505)
EYENLBEKZE Fair value gain on investment properties 12 56,942 101,332
HAth g A Other income 37 740,456 688,367
Hib s — F%58 Other gains — net 38 113,538 37,038
KRR Operating profit 1,700,425 1,801,756
BE A Finance income 41 178,643 143,328
ELEZN9N Finance costs 41 (960,719) (973,586)
BhE R — Finance costs — net (782,076) (830,258)
AR A AR EML Share of profit of investments accounted
=& m A for using the equity method 15 526,373 477,045
BR PR S BLATE R Profit before income tax 1,444,722 1,448,543
FriS i F 2 Income tax expense 43 (280,047) (182,302)
EEEA Profit for the year 1,164,675 1,266,241
FEAE S F] : Profit attributable to:
Wi N/NEETV 3 SREA A Owners of the Company 796,334 970,702
FEIE AR AR R A 2R Non-controlling interests 368,341 295,539
1,164,675 1,266,241
RARERFEAFK Earnings per share attributable to the
ElEERAF owners of the Company during the
(BBRAAREILYIR) year (RMB per share)
—ER - basic 45 0.69 0.85
—EE — diluted 45 0.42 0.51
% &, Dividends 46 - _

BE 551602364 B By Y3 4%

A ERA M HRRNVARE D

The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AEEEWAREK
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEZT—=F+=ZA=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—F-—= —F——F
2013 2012
HtaE ARMFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#eE7)
(Restated)
REEZER Profit for the year 1,164,675 1,266,241
Hib 2w - Other comprehensive income:
A EFHEZEAIIEH  Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
EHETERER Remeasurements of post-employment
BREM - RO benefit obligations, gross of tax 34 3,476 (1,564)
EHETERER Remeasurements of post-employment
BHAEME - B3 benefit obligations, tax (515) 405
BEMEEAREYER  Gain on transfer of owner-occupied
ESME - RINBFIZ  property to investment property,
gross of tax 12(d) 11,773 6,831
BEYEE SR EYER  Gain on transfer of owner-occupied
BFHIE - B property to investment property, tax 12(d) (2,943) (1,708)
HERfeEN 7 HE Items that may be subsequently
1B AE H reclassified to profit or loss
AP ESFEENAS  Fair value gains on available-for-sale
BEKZ - RIBRHR financial assets, gross of tax 19 10,864 183
AItHESREEN LS  Fair value gains on available-for-sale
BEKE @ TR financial assets, tax (2,716) (46)
BEAHHE S Recycle of fair value gains on
BEMNAREE available-for-sale financial assets,
Iz - KRBT gross of tax 47(d) (5,430) =
e E SR Recycle of fair value gains on
BEMNNABE available-for-sale financial assets, tax
Wz - TR 1,357 -
JE(REE S N R E M2 MEmIES Share of an associate’s other
comprehensive income (325) -
INEEHTE AR Currency translation differences (20,403) 24,267
FREMZERE Other comprehensive income
(MERBLR) for the year, net of tax (4,862) 28,368
FRE2EAWRZE (HIBRFHF) Total comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax 1,159,813 1,294,609
Bk : Attributable to:
—RANRESEEA — Owners of the Company 775,811 995,841
— JEIEAR AR R A — Non-controlling interests 384,002 298,768
FREEARE Total comprehensive income
for the year 1,159,813 1,294,609

BEft 551602364 A MM R e M IBHMKR A E D -
The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—_T—=%1+_—A=+—HI-9FE For the year ended 31 December 2013

FOARREEAEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
XARR
TRRES FER
Perpetual Rz
B&  BRHEE subordinated  Hfpfi AIRHE Non- hEs
Share Share  convertible Other  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium  securities  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
(hit29)
(Note 29)
ANREFT AREFL AREFr AREFT AREFrT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000  ARMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
158 Group
R-E-—E-B-Af&s Balance as at 1 January 2012
(WEA2H) (as previously reported) 673,367 354,513 - 3816137 1794760 6638777 4078716 10,717,498
SIPREINTE Effect of changes in accounting policies - - - - (2,634) (2,634) 6 (2,628)
RoB-—F-f-AMEe Balance as at 1 January 2012,
HEY as restated 673,367 354,513 - 3816137 1792126 6,636,143 4,018,722 10,714,865
kG Comprehensive income
TERRR Profitfor the year - - - - 90702 970702 295539 1,266,241
Ar2ENE Other comprehensive income - - - 25,139 - 25,139 3229 28,368
PEENG Total comprehensive income - - - 25,139 970,702 995,841 298,768 1,294,609
RERBEANRS Transactions with owners
BHRRRRRNR S Transactions with non-controling interests - - - (4,892) - (4,892) (0650 (14,54
R ENAREFERRRER Share of reserves of an associate
XHMELREE arising from fts transactions with non-
controlling interests - - - (5,196) - (5,196) - (5,196)
L Merger reserve - - - (4211269 - (4211269 - (4211269
HEBAHBINER Issue of domestic shares related to business
combination 437,265 940,120 - - - 1317385 - 137,385
SEBAMRTKARRAARES  Issue of perpetual subordinated convertiole
securities related to business combination - - 2,781,674 - - 2781674 - 2781674
HEHBAF Disposels of subsidiaries - - - - - - (338649 (338,649
FERRRER A Capital contributed by
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 4170 4170
“3-—5RE Dividends for 2012 - : - - 3 S0 @290
HEREEANRZAR Total transactions with owners 437265 40,120 2781674  (4,221,350) - (62202)  (388,413)  (450,705)
R=F-Z£+ZB=t+-AM#E Balance as at 31 December 2012,
] as restated 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 (380,075) 2,762,828 7,569,692 3,989,077 11,558,769
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZT—=F+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

ADREERE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
XARR
ThkES FER
Perpetual REER
B&  BRHEE subordinated  Hfpfi AIRNE Non- Bgs
Share Share  convertible Other  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium  securities  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
(hi29)
(Note 29)
Wit AREFr AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETr AREFr ARETr  AREFL
Note RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000  AMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
RZE-=£-A-ANKe  Balance as at 1 January 2013,
&E5) as restated 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 (380,075) 2,762,828 7,569,692  3989,077 11,568,769
2HNE Comprehensive income
TEREH Profit for the year - - - - 796,334 796,334 368,341 1,164,675
A 2ERE Other comprehensive income - - - (20523) - (20523) 15,661 4,862)
el e Total comprehensive income - - - (20523) 796,334 775,811 384,002 1,159,813
HERREANRS Transactions with owners
SRR RN S Transactions with non-controling
inerests 0 - - - (lo3e) - {0387 (8079 (48469)
JEERENAREEARHER  Share of reserve of an associate
BERSMELNGEE arising from s transactions with non-
controlling interests 15(a) - - - (17,299) - (17,299) - (17,299)
BT Acquisition of subsidiaries 50(b) = = - = = = 41438 41,438
LEREAR Disposals of subsidiaries 470 - - - - - = 230100 (23010)
R RER T E Capital contributed by
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 123912 123912
RIETRSLES Appropriation to statutory general
reserve fund 30 - - - 24,083 (24,083) - - -
ZE-ZERE Dividends for 2013 - - - - - - (77531)  (17,537)
BEGREANRSEE Total trangactions with owners - - - (3,603) (24083 (27,680) 26,724 (962)
MZ2-=£+-B=+-F Balance as at 31 December 2013
fes 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 (404,201) 3535079  8317,817 4,399,803 12,717,620

BEPI SR 160E 364 AWM i ek F4r & M ISR AVAEKRE D -

The accompanying notes on page 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—_T—=F1+=H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
HtaF ARMFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
BEFEHELMBEERE Cash flows from operating activities
REXBELENE S Cash generated from operations 47 1,305,102 2,045,397
21557 %' Interest paid (973,474) (976,632)
B TSR Income tax paid (202,010) (252,849)
EEEBELEMIREFE  Net cash generated from
operating activities 129,618 815,916
RETHELMNELRE Cash flows from investing activities
e TIRIE AV 3R Payment for the addition of
construction-in-progress (1,372,461) (574,935)
BEME  BEM&E Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (416,167) (1,046,173)
B8 B T fsF FAAE Purchase of land use rights 7 (178,358) (244,465)
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets 10 (14,085) (18,988)
HEm3EREEE Payment for the additions of other

0 E’\Jﬁ%k non-current assets (145,632) (135,796)
g NG Acquisition of subsidiaries,

?Dﬁéfuﬁzﬁ%mﬁ% net of cash acquired (167,514) (2,246)
MEEE N A EE Capital injection to associates 15 (8,890) (73,730)
MEEPHETE Capital injection to joint ventures 15 (25,904) (19,204)
HEMRBATHNIREREH  Cash outflow from disposals of

subsidiaries 47(e) (7,979) (637,393)
U — B A RAY Guarantee deposits for

RESES acquisition of a subsidiary - (216,618)
R —RIMT B A T8 Release of guarantee deposits for

RELES acquisition of a subsidiary 216,618 =
BB B R B RS 5B Prepayment for the

establishment of subsidiaries 21 (6,192) (120,756)
U B B /B A B FE N ZIE Prepayment for the acquisition of

subsidiaries 21 (1,876,460) -
BEHIESREE Purchase of available-for-sale

financial assets 19 (14,891) (85,633)
HEME - BE& Proceeds from disposals of

BB A property, plant and equipment 47(b) 17,283 97,580

HEREYEMERIA Proceeds from disposals of

investment properties - 41,942
HEBFEEMSHA Proceeds from disposals of

intangible assets 58 35
ﬁ%ﬂ{#ﬂj’%@%ﬂﬁ& Proceeds from disposals of available-for-

FTiS 5008 sale financial assets 47(d) 50,035 45,476
HjEﬁEEIJ HemEE Proceeds from disposals of held-to-

PTS TRI8 maturity financial assets - 15,000
T ERBE R Tﬁﬁ{:m\ Proceeds from disposals of associates - 9,746
HESEEFEMERT Proceeds from disposals of joint venture ~ 47(c) 151,863 L
B U A Bh Government grants received 243,634 326,670
Eqﬁzﬂ S\ Interest received 78,238 81,377
B2k ijé?%’t Loan to related parties (104,772) (467,136)
F&%Hﬁ BEEX Repayments of loan to related parties 235,141 171,549
SR & Dividends received 397,549 279,056
BEETAIRS 5 Net cash used in investing activities (2,948,886) (2,474,642)

158 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



" _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZT—=F+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

BE+t-A=1t—-BLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E—= —E-—ZF
2013 2012
Hfat ARMFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7)
(Restated)
BMETEHELMNELRE Cash flows from financing activities
RITERFTEF0E Proceeds from bank borrowings 18,435,984 11,956,045
BiEiR1TER Repayments of bank borrowings (14,108,663) (10,517,159)
AR B Borrowings from related parties 719,422 2,239,196
M BARE 5 E IR (A Repayments of borrowings from
related parties (1,368,064) (1,310,031)
IR AR B 2SI B A |] Capital contribution to subsidiaries from
E] non-controlling interests 47(a) 69,305 4,170
SIS BB A R 3R AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
R BAR 2 interests of subsidiaries (81,344) (44,290)
R SR 1T 5 FUR Release of collateral for bank borrowings - 120,069
EIFIEAS IS R AYZRZ 5 Transactions with non-controlling interests (48,466) -
BEEBEARIEEFEE  Net cash generated from financing
activities 3,618,174 2,448,000
RERRESESEYHIEM Net increase in cash and
HE cash equivalents 798,906 789,274
FNNRERIIBELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 4,038,225 3,249,891
INEITEZH Currency translation differences (34,288) (940)
FROM[E LIRS ZEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,802,843 4,038,225

BEFT 521602364 B R 5T Rk F4ra M TG R MM ER S o
The accompanying notes on 160 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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—REF

AR ERRABR AR ([ ARE])
RIEREAREME([HE])KIHOR
HAERDA - ERNDEBEHE RS
BRARERLET -

ARmMEWBAR(ATHRBEI AL
B EERTEREREE TS - B
FIEREAR - FERMBLEREEE  HER
 BERIRE BIRURRERBE

ARARPE AU S BRI AR A R
RE P LM EAE25E

HREMBRREXR_-_FT-—HNF=H
—tNA\BHETIE -

RBE A
REBMNREMBHREZREBERIE
HEER (BRI IERE 2R ) Ri#EA
RERMEREEAIBTNARZ2HRAE
B EREEIREZESHRERE -
GAVBRREBELRAEER - I
REEYE  AIHEESREERER
A EBEEBESTENTEASRTAS
HIERER - FEZEVIBERERMEA
Ve R ERER I E B AR B R 8K T BR
BREBNREAREME G ESFTE
A(2006) ([ 1> 2 g 5T 2 8)2006 ) B AT
ﬁ °

BB A BB RS R RI T RE
BEEAETHREH 5 ENRE
EREEEAARBORHRABES
56 FCHIRR « 3% 5 B oA A s
PRUGAMBERT S BEAOBRR
Reftiat BRI RS B -

GENERAL INFORMATION
AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was established as a joint stock limited company in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its shares
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of liquid crystal displays, printed
circuit boards and watches, property development,
international engineering, trading and logistic services
and development mining resources in the PRC.

The office address of the Company is 25/F, Hangdu
Building, CATIC Zone, Shennan Road Central, Futian
District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue on 28 March 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and IFRS Interpretations
Committee applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets and derivative financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The
accounting policies and bases adopted in the preparation
of these financial statements differ from those used in the
statutory accounts of the Group which are prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (2006) of the People’s Republic of China
(“CAS 2006”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.
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RBLE%E )
R-_BE—=F+-_A=+—8 K&
ErRaEBERdEENARE
1,618,839,0007T @ A E B 58 Hi & 54
AR #12,751,554,0007C A A& 5K+ — @
AREIHEE - ASBRSHELEE
BKREBTENSEEERTAEENR
EHERERENERTETHELRH
REEE -

RERBERBENGEREZHE - &
SE—ERTEEEASKFENE
T THBRITEERLE - ARAE
ERE ARABER_ZTE—NFE
REEAE M REERITERER -
RZE—=F5+-A=+—8 K&
BEABAHBTEERENAARE
13,093,000,0007T * W A] A B & Z K &)
F%ENIE °

BN EEREBETREAREZAS
ELEEeLReRE  BREBUER
BREEMY  BMREAMHBREE
RITERBEN - RETHEHLHER
ETHBERSRHRER EFRS
BREREEERUVEHRRBRE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB1,618,839,000 and it had outstanding short term
borrowings of approximately RMB12,751,554,000 which
are due for repayment within the next twelve months.
The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to fulfill its financial obligations depends on the Group’s
operating cash flows and the continuing support of its
lending banks to provide financing.

The Group has been servicing its principal and interest
payment obligations according to the terms and
schedules of the respective agreements for its borrowings
and it has maintained a good credit history. The directors
of the Company are confident that the Company will be
able to roll over its outstanding bank borrowings when
they are due for repayment in 2014. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had undrawn bank credit facilities of
approximately RMB13,093,000,000 which can be drawn
down when required.

Furthermore, the directors will continue to implement
measures to improve the working capital and cash flows
of the Group including closely monitoring daily operating
expenses and ensuring capital expenditures are funded
by specific bank borrowings. They will also arrange to
convert certain short term borrowings into long term
borrowings whenever possible. The directors consider
that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis.
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fmBLE R (7)
SFBRMBEEZS
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AREEBER -_Z—=F—HF—H
s 2 1B RA 2 M 8RR
THI%ER] -

BER s R F1RIEFT A
[ mEROZ25] TR
Hit2EWE - ZFEF
MEZREEHN  BEREAR
RIEMEERE ]2

HERZEFHABHERRSD
AREEM D BEEBm (BN
DERE)NELEDME - &K
iR @ URS- IS
SERBREATE -

BIBR 75 s RIS 7 5%
(BRI &M THE : #®
BE-BHEERAE] - &%
& 5T R 8 F kR &R R
HHENC R/ T E
MA Je 5% 48 B 3 199 T sk B (L
ZHHORNERR SR T
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MEEERBHOEER
E o RAZBEET LA
SHASERKREATE -

B PR B 7 2R 5 2RI ZE 1097
[RE M BHREIERBR
Al EigER MBS tERE
TERBESETAGRT
RE M BmEERE TR
= o IR EBCERITR
SHAEEBKEATE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures:

(@)

The following standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2013:

° Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial
statements presentation’ regarding other
comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a
requirement for entities to Group items
presented in ‘other comprehensive income’
on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). The adoption
of this newly effective standard does not
have significant impact to the Group.

o Amendment to IFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’, on asset and
liability offsetting. The amendments require
new disclosure requirements which
focus on quantitative information about
recognised financial instruments that are
offset in the statement of financial position,
as well as those recognised financial
instruments that are subject to master
netting or similar arrangements irrespective
of whether they are offset. The adoption
of this amended standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.

o IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial
statements’ builds on existing principles
by identifying the concept of control as
the determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent
company. The adoption of this newly
effective standard does not have significant
impact to the Group.
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7] #977 HYHE R Ko 3 75 1 IR
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BHASBREAIEE A
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(continued)

(@)

IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ focuses on
the rights and obligations of the parties to
the arrangement rather than its legal form.
There are two types of joint arrangements:
joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where the investors have
rights to the assets and obligations for
the liabilities of an arrangement. A joint
operator accounts for its share of the
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.
Joint ventures arise where the investors
have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement; joint ventures are accounted
for under the equity method. Proportional
consolidation of joint arrangements is no
longer permitted. The adoption of this
newly effective standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in
other entities’ includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, structured entities and other
off balance sheet vehicles. The adoption of
this newly effective standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’, was amended
in June 2011. The impact on the Group will
be as follows: to immediately recognise all
past service costs; and to replace interest
cost and expected return on plan assets
with a net interest amount that is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability/asset. See Note 53
for the impact on the financial statement.
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2 REEEE) 2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) AEFBWERBHEABATE T2 (b)  The following new standards, amendments and
BER—_E—=5—H—BHHBH interpretations have been issued but are not
BT EENARERBFTER effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
BET L2 - JTBHIZZE AR « (& 2013, and have not been early adopted by the
SR EITEHAEBNGE Group. None of these is expected to have a
TEMRENEANTLE - significant effect on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

R s A3 emI A : 27 - HiHeREEREHBE]
— &R

IAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presentation — offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities” — amendment

Il % B 765 i 5 HE RI 38 1 0SRAE BT 78 K BB B 75 e o5 22 A
F12R(ZE——FBITNR
BIRR st EEAFE2THR (BRI AN R EEEE

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 (revised 2011) and
IAS 27 (amendment) “Investment entities”

BT AIFE 365 IEFT AE R E AR AT YOl & R FR

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable amounts disclosures for
non-financial assets

BRI mERELZE g —REE2 1R #E

IFRIC — Int 21 “Levies”

B2 st R EIFSFT AR STETEME R RE TP T HTELE

Amendments to IAS39 “Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting”

B B 75 i 5 AR B 05k [ e R T A

IFRS9 “Financial instruments”

I % B 745 =i 45 22 A1) 38 7 51 e R B 75 e 5 2
FO5 (BETZA) [ 58 il 14 A= %0 B HA R 3R 1 4% 5% |

IFRS7 and IFRS9 (amendments) “Mandatory effective date and
transition disclosures”

PRUAT Ak 2 1%
FLAH) S E B AR

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

—E-WFE—A—H

1 January 2014

—E-mFE—HF—H

1 January 2014

—E-mFE—H—H
1 January 2014

—E—NFE—H—H
1 January 2014
—F-MmM&E—A—H

1 January 2014

—E—h%¥—H—A
1 January 2015
—E-—hF—H—H

1 January 2015

1T 4 EL A 1 oK AR R A B B B 7 3R There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations
LA EEERERELZE that are not yet effective that would be expected
SRETEHYEARNEFELSE A to have a material impact on the Group.

£ o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

3.1 Consolidation
3.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Except for
business combinations applying business
combination involving entities under
common control as detailed in Note
3.1.1(a) below, subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

De-facto control may arise in
circumstances where the size of the
Group’s voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of other
shareholders give the Group the power to
govern the financial and operating policies,
etc.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

166 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Business combination involving
entities under common control

For business combination involving
entities under common control, the
consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if
they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining
entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess
of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to
the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement
includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where
there is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control
combination.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

Business combination involving
entities under common control
(continued)

The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at
the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under common
control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies
is adopted by those entities. All
intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or
businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 167



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

3

168

TESHTBEBRER)

31 &HEKREGE)

3.1.1 KIBRA(E)

(0)

HEHEH T AN
EBavt(#E)

EELRE B AHR A AN
REARF S 8Y o

IMETE B0 PR
ZRK RRE B
Y B 77 5T Al B 5 B9
1R U RE 75 B HE A B
mERKE B BR
DR BEEHG
B EFFEME
ERMABERZT
R

AEEMEENE
Ay 2 SR B 5 2 UK
BREMEAAREE
R ARS8
BEXBEMNXA
REQIAEEMER
25 o KIZRER
G ERIE39R R
o RBEERN
BRAREMLEEY
m e DESE
SR HANRERER
EFNFE - MER
RENEZARR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)
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Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to
be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
IAS39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control (continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in
the income statement.

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

3.1.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

3.1.2 Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition
profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit/(loss) of investment
accounted for using the equity method’ in
the income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.2 Associates (continued)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to
the extent of unrelated investor’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution arising in
investments in associates are recognised in
the income statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as of 1 January 2012. Under
IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Consolidation (continued)

3.1.3

3.1.4

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. The change in
accounting policy has been applied as from
1 January 2012.

There are no material effects of the change
in accounting policies on the financial
position, comprehensive income and the
cash flows of the Group at 1 January 2012
and 31 December 2012. The change in
accounting policy has had no impact on
earnings per share.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis
of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the company’s functional currency and the
Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
related to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(®)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Changes in the fair value of debt
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(@)

Group companies (continued)

- Income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

- All resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency transaction
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
transaction differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is provided using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, after deducting the
estimated residual value. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings

Leasehold improvement

Machinery and equipment

Motor vehicles

Computer and electronic
equipment

Mining structures™

Other equipment

10 to 50 years
3 to 5 years

5 to 30 years
5 to 18 years
3 to 10 years

10 to 20 years
5to 13 years

Mining structures comprise the main and
auxiliary mine shafts and underground tunnels.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’
in the income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the income statement as part
of a valuation gain or loss in ‘fair value gain on
investment properties’.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be
made when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by:

(a) commencement of owner-occupation,
for a transfer from investment property to
owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a
view to sale, for a transfer from investment
property to properties under development;

(¢) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer

from owner-occupied property to
investment property; or
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Investment property (continued)
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(d) commencement of an operating lease
to another party, for a transfer from
inventories to investment property.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, which is measured as fair
value,

(a) Any resulting decrease in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in
profit or loss.

(b) Any resulting increase in the carrying
amount is treated as follows:

(i) To the extent that the increase
reverses a previous impairment
loss for that property, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount recognised in profit or
loss does not exceed the amount
needed to restore the carrying
amount to the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net
of depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised.

(ii) Any remaining part of the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and increases the
revaluation surplus within equity.
On subsequent disposal of the
investment property, the revaluation
surplus included in equity may be
transferred to retained earnings. The
transfer from revaluation surplus
to retained earnings is not made
through profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment property
carried at fair value to owner-occupied
property, the property’s deemed cost is its
fair value at the date of change in use.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Intangible assets

@

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and
is not subsequently reversed.
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Separately acquired trademarks and
licences are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
and licences have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of trademarks and licences over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software programmes
are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful lives of
5 to 10 years on a straight-line basis.

Cost associated with developing
or maintaining computer software
programmes which do not generate
economic benefits are recognised as
expense as incurred.

Patents

Patents are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Maritime rights of use

Maritime rights of use are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of 10-50
years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

3.9

Exploration and extraction rights

Exploration and extraction rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of exploration and
extraction rights is calculated on unit of production
method basis.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is stated-owned and no
individual ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the rights to use certain land and the
premiums paid for such rights are recorded as
land use rights.

Land use rights which are held for self-use are
stated at cost and amortised over the remaining
period of the leases on a straight-line basis.

Land use rights which are held for development
for sale are inventories and measured at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Land use rights are
transferred to properties under development upon
commencement of development.

Construction-in-progress
Construction-in-progress represents plant and
other property, machinery and equipment under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes
the costs of construction, the costs of plant and
machinery, and interest charges arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during
the period of construction or installation and
testing. When the assets concerned are available
for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policies as stated above.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not
ready to use — are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

3.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivable
and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.11 Financial assets (continued)
3.11.1 Classification (continued)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period, these are
classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and other
receivables comprise ‘trade and
other receivables’ and ‘pledged
bank deposit’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Note 24 and Note 27 and Note 28).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management
intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

3.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment
securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13
@

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13
(b)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 189



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

3

190

TESHTBEBRER)

3.13 EMEEREE)

()

@

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

DERFEEI 8 E
EREE
REZIHeREER
& A B E kAl B E R R
B YEABEERHAEAR
AEEEEEREITEY
EEMFE R BRI
EEMEE - WAKE L
ERAEINEREE(D
BHIRBERI) B
BRI HZBZE Y&
MoBEAHEESRE
E -HAEIHcREE
FRASERBEE - HERE
EHREE 1218 A B H
% ADBERRBEE -

DERIUTETHITAE
E
TETRAVNPRITETA
BRFTLBEHNAAREE
R HREAAEBEE
HMatE - AREMITET
EFGERREDEE
2 WERBEREARE
Bk AKETSER
RE PG RENITET
EMRArEEZES A&
REBEmHER - XBITER
ERRBHEERAE -

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13
()

(@)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as held-to-maturity
financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payment and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
position intention and ability to hold it
maturity. If the Group were to sell other
than an insignificant amount of held-
to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified
as available for sale. Held-to-maturity
financial assets are included in non-current
assets, except for those with maturities
less than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as
current assets.

Assets classified as derivative financial
instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The Group’s
derivative instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes
in the fair value of the Group’s derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Trading derivative are defined
as a current asset and liability.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14

3.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to
the sale proceeds of properties in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expense and the anticipated costs to completion,
or by management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises land
use rights, construction costs, capitalised finance
costs and professional fees incurred during the
development period of a normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

If a property under development becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment. Property under development for
future use as investment property is classified as
investment property under construction.

Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

3.18

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to owners of the Company
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received (net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects) is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s owners.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

3.21

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities
Perpetual convertible securities issued by
the Group gives the right to the holder to
convert those securities into a fixed number
of the Company’s shares at any time at a
fixed exercise price per share. The perpetual
convertible securities have no maturity date and
are not redeemable. These securities are equity
instruments.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition and construction of a property,
plant and equipment that needs a substantially
long period of time of acquisition and construction
for its intended use commence to be capitalised
and recorded as part of the cost of the asset
when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs have been incurred, and the activities
relating to the acquisition and construction that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when the asset under
acquisition or construction becomes ready for
its intended use, the borrowing costs incurred
thereafter are recognised in income statement.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
when the acquisition or construction of a property,
plant and equipment is interrupted abnormally and
the interruption lasts for more than 3 months, until
the acquisition or construction is resumed.

For a borrowing that is specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amounts of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are the
actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period less any investment income on
the temporary investment of these borrowings.

For the other borrowings related to acquisition,
construction and production of a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation shall be the lower of the actual
borrowing costs incurred and the amount
of qualifying asset not financed by specific
borrowings multiplying capitalisation rate. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average interest
rate of these borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.283 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised when incurred.
When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When
the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the
contract will be profitable, contract revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract. When
it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that they have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is determined based on the completion
of a physical proportion of the contract work by
reference to the cost incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated
budgeted cost for each contract.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not
yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross
amount due to customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses).
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(®)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Inside basis differences (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Employee benefit
The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans and post-
employment medical plans.

@) Pension obligations
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension
plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit pension plans
is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government
bonds are used.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Employee benefit (continued)

@

®)

Pension obligations (continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised
immediately in income.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contribution to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the
further payments is available.

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-
retirement healthcare benefits to their
retirees. The entitlement to these benefits
is usually conditional on the employee
remaining in service up to retirement age
and the completion of a minimum service
period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit
pension plans. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are
valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Employee benefit (continued)

(c)

Termination benefits and early retirement
benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (i) when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (i) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that
is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present
value.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.26

Research and development

Research expenditures is recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on
development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use;

° management intends to complete the

intangible asset and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the
intangible asset;

o it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development can
be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development cost previously recognised
as an expense is not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.27

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties
and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.28 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities,
as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods
Sale of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to the
customer. The customer has accepted the
products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Contract revenue
Revenue from individual construction
contracts is recognised by using the
“percentage of completion method” (Note
3.23).

(c) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties
leased out under an operating lease is
recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

(d) Services income
Revenue from rendering of services is
recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

Revenue recognition(continued)

Ul Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders,
where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income on government grants and are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. After initial recognition,
an issuer of such a contract shall measure it at
the higher of the best estimate of the obligation
and the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation calculated to
recognise the fee income earned on a straight line
basis over the life of the guarantee contract.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.32 Leases

@

Where the Group is the lessor

Finance lease

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased asset
to the lessee. At the commencement of
the lease term, the Group recognises the
minimum lease payments receivable by the
Group as a finance lease receivable and
records the unguaranteed residual value as
an asset at the same time. The difference
between (a) the aggregate of the minimum
lease payments and the unguaranteed
residual value and (b) their present value
(presented in the balance sheet as finance
lease receivable, net) is recognised as
unearned finance income. Minimum lease
payments are the payments over the lease
term that the lessee is or can be required
to make plus any residual value guaranteed
to the lessor by the lessee, or a party
related or unrelated to the lessee.

Unearned financial income is allocated to
each period during the lease term using
actuarial method that allocates rentals
between finance income and repayment of
capital in each accounting period in such a
way that finance income is recognised as
a constant periodic rate of return (implicit
effective interest rate) on the lessor’s net
investment in the lease. Lease agreements
for which the base rent is based on floating
interest rates are included in minimum
lease payments based on the floating
interest rate existing at the commencement
of the lease; any increase or decrease
in lease payments that result from
subsequent changes in floating interest rate
are contingent rentals and are recorded as
an increase or a decrease in lease revenue
in the period of the interest rate change.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.32 Leases (continued)

(a)

(®)

Where the Group is the lessor (continued)
Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the Group are classified as
operating leases. Payments received
from lessees under operating leases (net
of any incentives grant to the lessee) are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk

U

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s activities are principally
conducted in RMB. Although majority
of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, the Group is still
subject to foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in non-RMB, including US
dollars (“USD”), European dollars (“EUR”),
Sri Lankan rupee (“LKR”), Algerian dinar
(“DZD”), Hong Kong dollars (“HKD?”), Arab
Emir. dirham (“AED”) etc. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. In addition, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange controls promulgated by the
PRC government.
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4 BEEREEZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) TWHERERGE) (@) Market risk (continued)

1] SNEE R (4B ) (i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
REBAINEAENE The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
BEREKEBERSEE currency denominated monetary assets
HEBREBEST : and monetary liabilities at the respective

balance sheet dates are as follows:
—B-=F —E-CfF
+=—A=+—-H +=A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
= Assets

ET USD 2,509,950 3,386,632
BT EUR 765,643 306,447
HEFREL LKR 404,341 136,383
o B 2 e F 4 AED 130,520 152,823
B R R ) 35 28 A R DZD 72,903 29,234
BIT HKD 48,419 39,399
EHAftb Others 186,003 322,028
4,117,779 4,373,846
—E-=F —TE——F
+=A=t+-B +-A=t+-A
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

=L Liabilities
ETT uUSD 3,784,598 2,600,850
BL T EUR 1,313,881 296,440
HrEMREL LKR 741,113 382,856
BIT HKD 257,395 308,389
] Bt 2 26 U 4 AED 169,493 239,355
B B8 K2 7 35 28 AN R DZD 61,964 58,866
Hitb Others 176,016 176,518
6,504,460 4,063,274
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis on profit before tax of a 5%
increase in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for the respective changes

in rate.
—E—= —ET—F
2013 2012
AR¥TFrTr ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E75))
(Restated)
HETIEXRFESY% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against USD
EERMAEFIEIMN,  Increase/(Decrease) in the profit
OB ) before tax for the year 63,732 (39,289)
HEUTIER FE5% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against EUR
EERMAEFIEIM,  Increase/(Decrease) in the profit
O 2) before tax for the year 27,412 (500)
HHT B RE L IE R 5% appreciation in exchange rate
BE5% against LKR
FERRT AR F3E 00 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 16,839 12,324
WA TTIERFES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against HKD
FERRTRR F3E 00 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 10,449 18,450
B3 BT Bt 8 e A B R 5% appreciation in exchange rate
F1E5% against AED
FERRT AR F3E 00 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 1,949 4,327
R R AZsEARER 5% appreciation in exchange rate
FE5% against DZD
FEBRBINSMGRZL ), (Decrease)/Increase in the profit
#n before tax for the year (547) 1,482
AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk of its A share investments in
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange which are
classified on the consolidated balance
sheet as available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 19). The exposure of the price risk
of available-for-sale financial assets is not
material to the Group.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The table below summaries the impact of
changes in interest rate at 31 December
2013 with all other variables held at
constant on the Group’s profit for the year.

Fl=
Interest rate
10% L7 10% T &
10% higher 10% lower
FEBFCRL), /B
(Decrease)/increase
in profit for the year

ARETIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

TR X ER Borrowings at variable rates
REVERA (3B ), # A (Charged)/credited to finance costs (41,688) 41,688

N E 5 R F R &8 K
HAPA BT Q2 55 -

The interest rates and terms of repayment
of borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
Note 32.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with
initial term of over three months, restricted cash,
and trade and other receivables.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are held in state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. None of
cash at bank, bank deposits and restricted cash
of the Group that were fully performing has been
renegotiated during the year.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The top 5 customers accounted for more
than 19% of the balance of trade and other
receivables as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 28%).

The Group normally grants credit terms of not
more than 1 year to existing customers without
collaterals. Aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 24. Management
makes periodic collective assessment as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements:

rEEESER
Group Maximum exposure
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AREFT AEETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEAEEBERINERH Credit risk exposure relating to off-
FEERBRE : balance sheet items:
B HEAR Financial guarantees 1,070,112 733,018
REBEEER (c)  Liquidity risk

AEBEEEEBRERARRE
AR B RS ERENREBIR
TEE(BREHREEHRITE
FBEREEEREERPDES
a2

The board of directors of the Group manage the
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash to meet
the normal operating commitments and sourcing
adequate funding through banking credit facilities,
including short-term and long-term bank loans.
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4 BEEREEZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) HRBESEAMRE) (¢) Liquidity risk (continued)
TEBRBEEBHRTHEAZAL The table below analyses the Group’s and
FEIEMSMT  BAREBRAA Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
ANIETEEREBED BEBEE relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
HAEH4R c AKX ENSEA period at the balance sheet to the contractual
SHRBBIRESRE - ANELIR maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
IRETIK A T+Z@EARE table are the contractual undiscounted cash
B EHREE MRS - flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their

carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

PIME 1528 2Z55 BB5E

Lessthan  Betweeni  Between 2 Over b
iyear and2years and 5 years 5 years Total

ABBTL  ARETT  AREFn  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

bi3-1] Group
R-ZE-Z£+-B=+-R At 31 December 2013
ez Borrowings 13,422,456 2206519 2,442,694 1,003,494 19,165,163
BAREMENTE Trade and other payables

(PafiFeat) (excluded non-financial liabilities) 7,810,398 44,871 - - 17,855,269
EtEneakE Other non-current liabllties 128,434 855,361 30,869 14,209 1,028,873
BBERAD Financial guarantee contracts 345,130 70,000 352,960 302,022 1,070,112
&3t Total 21706418 3,176,751 2,826,523 1,409,725 29,119,417

SE 150F 2%5F LS
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over 1@zt
1year and2years  andb years 5 years Total
ANEETR  AEETT  AEEFT  ARETT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000

R=Z-ZE+=A=+-H At 31 December 2012

f&F Borrowings 11,008384 12304206 2,699,049 477405 15,579,043
BAREMENTE Trade and other payables

(PefEeBAR) (excluded non-financial liabilties) 7,007,751 46,128 - - 7143879
EtEREaE Other non-current liabilities 71,049 133,625 1,196,643 1180 1,402,497
HBERAD Financial guarantee contracts 458,018 135,000 = 140,000 733,018
@t Total 18725202 1618958 3,895,692 618585 24,858,437
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4 BH¥RREESE)

(d)

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

NREBEMET (d)  Fair value estimation

TREGEEDITIZ AL EET The table below analyses financial instruments

M T A - NRMAFEEDN carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

T different levels have been defined as follows:

o FifEEENBELERM . Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
% EWRRE CREAR)(F markets for identical assets or liabilities
—#R) o (Level 1).

. BRE—RATBEENRE o Inputs other than quoted prices included
Gy BESBENAERE within level 1 that are observable for the
BEmEE ABERER) asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
S B A St AE (R prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
HERBE)(EZR) - prices) (Level 2).

] I FEAR 45 A B R T 5 8UE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
ETWEESBER AR based on observable market data (that is,
(B RIER R AE) (F= unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

&) o

TREIINR=—_ZE—=%+_-A The following table presents the Group’s assets

Zt+—HEAABEFENAE that are measured at fair value at 31 December

BEE BHRERAABEFTEN 2013. See Note 12 for disclosures of investment

KREYHER W TERHE12 - properties that are measured at fair value.

£ E-H E=4 aF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ANEETFT AE®TFn AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BE Assets

TEERIEA Derivative financial instruments - 5,405 - 5,405

ELESRERE Available-for-sale financial assets 26,958 - 264,132 291,090

BEE Total assets 26,958 5,405 264,132 296,495
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BEEREEZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
d) 2AREEMGEGE) (d)  Fair value estimation (continued)

TRHEIR=_ZFE—=—F+=HA
Zt+—HERAABEIENSSE

The following table presents the Group’s assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31

BEAEREE - December 2012.
EF—H FR E=R Gl
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
NRETFrT ANREEFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BE Assets

TTESRMTEAE Derivative financial instruments - 3,110 - 3,110
AHEESRIEE Available-for-sale financial assets 23,449 - 236,370 259,819
BmEE Total assets 23,449 3,110 236,370 262,929

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2
during the year.

U

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1. Instruments included
in Level 1 comprise equity investments
in listed A shares of companies listed on
Shenzhen or Shanghai Stock Exchange.



PA ISR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 BHEREESE)
(d) DREEMHRTE)
() FE-REHITA

REBRMBUTEEENS
BT A (Bl anss gt £ T
B)MAnEBEMNAGER
MEE - ZEHAERMNE
EMATERTSEE (W
) BEOERBEENE
Efbst e WEtESHMT A
WAABEMEMEEXN
WABEATEZREE A

SZEMTAINAE MR -

fid — B2 % A E XN A B
W IERBAIBREM S RE
g BIZTAIAE=

A e

ARFEeRmIANAR

A ERMTT

. THBRERAED
RIANKSEH

& :

. MERE R R(E
BEREABENK
o R AR RF R R
BenEmRE

At
=
Ean

. EHINESHONA
REEIRAER
B EHEXRE
E o EANEE

BRRERE

. PIMBER IR SR E
7 B H At £ i A
REEHRTE®T

HEWMAR(EE-

BRTXEENE TEMN
FEELHR
ARBEGAEIAE R -

S H4

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

(d)

(i)

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniqgues.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments;

° The fair value of interest rate swaps
is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves;

° The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to
present value;

o Other techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis, are
used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

Note that all of the resulting fair value
estimates are included in Level 2 except for
certain forward foreign exchange contracts
explained below.
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—HRTEMNEE) -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value estimation (continued)
(iif) Financial instruments in Level 3
The following table presents the changes in
Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December 2013.

At &

TRMEE

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

BRR 4 A Opening balance 236,370

INE Additions 17,204
EEO(FEAERFEARAIRE  Transfer from investments accounted for

(Ht5#15(a) using the equity method (Note 15(a)) 15,000

HE Disposals (4,442)

HRR 4564 Closing balance 264,132

TRENBZ2-_ZT——F
+—A=+—RBItFESE
=RIENEE -

The following table presents the changes in Level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012.

AtHE

TREE

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

R EES Opening balance 181,070

NE Additions 84,066
BRI AEREARARE  Transfer to investments accounted for using

(H1aE150)) the equity method (Note 15(b)) (640)

== Disposals (28,126)

BIR &84 Closing balance 236,370
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

HERNEMAR K AEEIR Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
BEXBRE szﬁﬁ B o L monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
R BREFERER NE AN 45T ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
g aEFRRERemE(eEn by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
,?95%:@%2%:}:}5&?&7“.@& borrowings (including ‘current and non-current
JEmEER]) /F,Efﬁi&ii borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance
MatE o BAREREIR R J(ZZDZ* sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
AEEBERIR)MAGBFET capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
Ho consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
RIE— =T ——-F+= The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and
A=+—H®MEREELENT : 2012 are as follows:
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#E5)
(Restated)
fE AR EH() Total borrowings (i) 20,090,596 16,661,917
B BeMReEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents
(Hiz£28) (Note 28) (4,802,843)  (4,038,225)
BEFE Net debt 15,287,753 12,623,692
B Total equity 12,717,620 11,558,769
B Total capital 28,005,373 24,182,461
BEARBELE Gearing ratio 55% 52%
0] MIES A E RS ARK (0] Total borrowings comprised borrowings of
18,933,887,000t( =& — — RMB18,933,887,000 (2012: RMB14,606,566,000)
£ AR #14,606,566,000 (Note 32), borrowings included in other non-
7T ) (M sE32) = - 5+ A current liabilities of RMB940,000,000 (2012:
HEMIERDBBEABRARK RMB1,190,000,000) (Note 35), and borrowings
940,000,000 7t ( — & — — included in trade and other payables of
& - AR1,190,000,0005T) RMB216,709,000 (2012: RMB865,351,000)
(HM45x35) E’ME. RRFAE (Note 36).

%S}fﬂ

MEMEMNRELBHEARS
216,709, 0007c( T
A R¥865,351,0007T ) (FisE
36)HIfE T °
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4 BEEREEZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(f) HETHEENSHEE ) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities
The following financial assets are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting

THEemEESEE - ATEHH
TEFBR/RERFRBUBESN

218

R o arrangements and similar agreements.
REEEMER
8 1 B R REES/R
SRIBEEE 2INERmEE
ERFZE£m  Gross amounts ot
EEAE of recognised  Net amounts of

R=FB—=%+=-RA=1+—H
As at 31 December 2013

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets

financial liabilities

set off in the
balance sheet

financial assets
presented in the
balance sheet

AEB¥FT AE¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PTESRTA
Derivative financial instruments 5,405 - 5,405
REEBER
EHMEFER REEBEER
TRBEERE 2N e REE
DR SR Gross amounts FRE
BERT of recognised Net amounts of

R-B——-—H+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2012

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets

financial liabilities
set off in the
balance sheet

financial assets
presented in the
balance sheet

AE®TFT AERETFT ABE®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

fTEemMIA
Derivative financial instruments 3,130 (20) Syl
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

For the financial assets and liabilities subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar arrangements above, each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets
and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net
basis. In the absence of such an election, financial
assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross
basis, however, each party to the master netting
agreement or similar agreement will have the
option to settle all such amounts on a net basis
in the event of default of the other party. Per the
terms of each agreement, an event of default
includes failure by a party to make payment when
due; failure by a party to perform any obligation
required by the agreement (other than payment) if
such failure is not remedied within periods of 30
to 60 days after notice of such failure is given to
the party; or bankruptcy.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables with reference to the extent and
duration that the amount will be recovered.
Provisions are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification
of potential impairment requires the use
of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(b)

(c)

Mineral resources reserves

Mineral resources reserves and the
amortisation method are key factors in the
calculation of amortisation of extraction
rights. Mineral resources reserves are
also an important element in testing for
impairment. Changes in mineral resources
reserves will affect amortisation recorded
in the financial statements for extraction
rights. A reduction in proven developed
reserves will increase amortisation charges.
Proven reserve estimates are subject to
revision, either upward or downward,
based on new information, such as from
changes in economic factors, including
product prices, contract terms, evolution of
technology or development plans.

Impairment of exploration and extraction
rights and property, plant and equipment
Exploration and extraction rights and
property, plant and equipment are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and depreciation. These carrying amounts
are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.
In estimating the recoverable amounts of
assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with
the mining rights and depreciation and
discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions,
the recoverable amounts will need to be
revised, and this may have an impact
on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position. Management considered
that there was no impairment charge
required to be made to the carrying value
of the exploration and extraction rights and
property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2018.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(@)

(e)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Investment property valuation

The Group’s certain investment properties
are located in areas where there are no
active property market, in such cases, the
fair value is estimated by discounted cash
flow method, which involves a number of
key assumptions, including market rents,
occupancy rates, discounts rates. The
assumptions require the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value
of investment and fair value gain/loss on
investment property in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets
Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provision in
the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may
be different.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

®

@)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment annually
or, whenever there is an indication of
impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3.10. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. These calculations
require the use of estimates (Note 9).

Construction contracts

The Group uses the percentage-of-
completion method to account for its
contract revenue. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the contract
costs incurred to date compared to the
estimated total costs for the contract.

Significant assumptions are required to
estimate the total contract costs and in
making these estimates, management has
relied on past experience and industry
knowledge. Management monitors the
progress of the construction and reviews
periodically the estimated total costs for
each contract as the contract progresses.

If the actual costs differ from management’s
estimates, the revenue, cost of sales and
provision for foreseeable losses would be
adjusted.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 223



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

5

224

REaEsHhE kA7)

5.2 B

@

®)

AR EEFFH L RE0%
R ERE
AEBRKEMEFRHD
BERAB(IRE]) BR
DE(EE)BRHERRA A
(TReemE]) MEKHE A
BB RS R 545.62%
K 41.49% - E fth f% #
PREEZEE - AEHK
22 0 MR R L AR SR A 45 AR
EASHEEMmMS BT
NEBENE BB RE
BHEK - Bt - ARAE
ERE - WMEAEBRZ
RN EEWiN
50% ' 1B B D6 4+
RZEWBE RN E R
e BAEBEEESLH
LA B ARIEZTR -

AEBRKEBRFME T
BRRA(ITKERS])
FHANBRER30% ° AR
BB EACE RS B IR AR
PR ZK W - ARIRE
rEZEEEHRLLRERE
ARBER—HTH - &
it - AR B B SR i X AR
HRFAMB R RERHR

KAzt

REGOWE  AKEY
Z R LR
BfEERESHARSGE
BRI TN —REE -

AEEARAREHLR B
ARAF BIARER
BHTOREARHET
ARAFEEFENE
Fl o Bl ZBREER
AENE -

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.2 Critical judgments

(a)

®)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Consolidation of entities in which the Group
holds less than 50%

The Group’s equity interests held in
two listed subsidiaries, Tianma Micro-
electronics Co. Ltd. (the “Tianma”) and
Fiyta Holdings Limited (the “Fiyta”), were
45.62% and 41.49% respectively, other
equity interests are widely held by public
interests. The Group’s voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings
of other shareholders give the Group
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies. As such, the directors
of the Company considered that the Group
has maintained de facto control of these
subsidiaries despite its equity interests in
these two subsidiaries are below 50% and
the Group continued to report them as
subsidiaries.

The Group’s equity interests held in
Chengdu Tianma Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd. (the “Chengdu Tianma”) was 30%. The
Company has reached the agreement with
non-controlling shareholders of Chengdu
Tianma to act in concert with the Company
when casting votes in shareholder and
board of director’s meeting, pursuant to
which the Company is able to control
Chengdu Tianma and the Group continued
to report Chengdu Tianma as a subsidiary.

Joint arrangements

The Group has joint control over this
arrangement as under the contractual
agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements
for all relevant activities.

The Group’s joint arrangement is structured
as a limited company and provides the
Group and the parties to the agreements
with rights to the net assets of the limited
company under the arrangements.
Therefore, this arrangement is classified as
a joint venture.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. Management
has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used
to make strategic decisions.

The board considers the business from a product
perspective. The Group is organised into five business
segments:

° High-tech Electronic Products — manufacture
and sales of liquid crystal displays, printed circuit
boards and standard parts

° Retails and High-end Consumer Products —
manufacture and sales of mechanical and branded
quartz timepieces

° Real Estate and Hotel — providing construction
services, real estate development and hotel
operation

° Trading and Logistics — trading of commodities,

ship building and providing logistic services

° Resources Investment and Development — mining
and sales of minerals

The board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the profit.

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights,
exploration and extraction rights, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, construction-in-
progress, inventories, properties under development,
trade and other receivables and cash and equivalents.

Inter-segment revenue are carried out according to the
terms and conditions agreed by both parties.

The segment information provided to the board of

directors for the reportable segments for the year ended
31 December 2013 is as follows:
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6 HPBERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
REENDHERSTAT - An analysis of the Group’s segment information is as
follows:

BE-E-ZET-R=t-ALEE
Year ended 31 December 2013

2EH BRREE
R RE
ENKER Retalsand HEEEE Resources
High-tech  High-end Real E5M%  Investment
Electronic ~ Consumer Estate Trading and and RPEER st
Products ~ Products  and Hotel  Logistics Development Unallocated Total
PHEE Segment results
RENSEEHMA  Revenue from extemal customers 7,285,578 3,041,122 4,187,209 18,600479 373,210 - 33,437,688
DEEBA Inter-segment revenue 521 24,624 - - - - 25,151
7 | Results
Ve Segment results 400665 221,653 214,847 88,189 (89,203)  (46,662) 789,489
A H237) Other income (Note 37) 294,388 22,784 201 384,357 36,938 1,788 740,456
B/ (B%8)—%E  Other gains/(losses)-net (Note 38)
(Hiiis8) (1,945) 41 209 79,382 108 %373 113,538
REMER L EEME  Fairvalue gain on investment
(Hig12) properties (Note 12) 3,263 7,268 23,791 22,620 - - 56,942
BEEH/ (B8) Operating profit/oss) 696,371 252,116 239,048 574,548 (52,157) (9,501) 1,700,425
WENRFE(Mi#41)  Finance costs, net (Note 41) (146426)  (85286)  (5,719) (282,519 (86,207)  (179,919) (782,076
JE(L AR ARRIRE Share of proft of investments
wHit15) accounted for using the equity
method (Note 15) 5,515 1,589 421,996 90,538 - 735 526,373
FERER(ME43)  Income tax charge (Note 43) (57443) (25455 (17,021 (114,113 (5,109) - (280,047)
KEERA|/(BB)  Profit/loss) for the year 498017 142964 537,308 318,454 (143473)  (188,685) 1,164,675
EtnHEEmT Other segment items are as follows:
PHEE Segment assets 11,474,600 3546498 8212830 15628158 2,762,412 970,145 42,614,643
ERESENRORE  Investments accounted for using the
(Hi15) equity method (Note 15) 190,925 43238 3,314,535 802,039 - 35955 4,386,692
BEE Total assets 11,665,525 3,580,736 11,527,365 16,430,197 2,782,412 1,006,100 47,001,335
BafE Total liabilties 6,825,045 1,980,246 7,307,649 12,894,320 2,349.845 2,917,610 34,283,715
Bl Capital expenditure 602,924 17,946 96,639 576,878 661,349 1,338 1,957,069
LR Non-cash expenses
-W%  BERKENE - Depreciation of property,
(Hid39) plant and equipment (Note 39) 758,053 21,102 72,329 80,147 56,967 1,187 989,785
- T AR - Amortisation of land use rights
(Hit39) (Note 39) 15,315 - 11,540 1,511 435 - 28,801
-ORRRREEY - Amortisation of exploration and
(H39) extraction rights (Nofe 39) - - - - 15,716 - 15,716
-BEERR - Amortisation of intangble assets
(Hi#39) (Note 39) 6,250 1417 84 9,444 1,366 - 18,561
-HiEREEEZSE - Amortisation of other non-current
(139 assets (Note 39) 12,266 6,089 3,966 70 141 - 23,432
- BHRE - Provision for bad debts
(Hi#39) (Note 39) 8,807 2,257 580 108,32 2,79 - 12812
-BERSAE - Provision for inventory
(Hid39) obslescence (Note 39) 58,001 6,466 - 6,954 = - 71,421
-EREEANTRIUE - Provision for amounts due from
Bz customers for contract work
(Note 39) - - - 38,276 - - 38,276
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6 HPBERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

HE-T-Ft-A=t-HIER(EE5)
Year ended 31 December 2012 (Restated)

SEH
EF SWHER BRiER
SRRER  Retalsand B
High-tech Hgh-end  sEZER Z50in Resources
Electronic ~ Consumer  RealEstate  Tradingand Investmentand ~ AATER et
Products Products ~ and Hotel Logistics ~ Development  Unallocated Total
PHEE Segment results
RESNIZEEMA  Revenue from external customers 6,779,206 2987857 2,769,814 17,656,704 1,058,991 - 31,252,572
L LN Inter-segment revenue 1,106 4,008 - - - - 5114
R Segment results 321,245 207 404 99,919 396,305 (18,575) (61279 975019
A H#s7) Other income (Note 37) 301,818 25,209 1128 286,196 70,661 3,355 688,367
Bt/ (B%8)— %%  Other gains/(osses)-net (Note 38)
(Witss) (7,063) 299 1243 66,825 (23,971) (305) 37,038
RENEAR BEYE  Fairvalue gain on investment
(HiiE1) properties (Note 12) 1015 7,387 51,342 41,588 = - 101,332
LERh/ (58) Operating profitloss) 617,025 260,299 153,632 790,914 28,115 (48229) 1,801,756
BERARIE(MF41)  Finance costs, net (Note 47) (227,341) (99,083) (65,178 (201,571) (72884 (164.251)  (830,258)
FEEERESENENRE Share of profit/{losses) of investments
&R/ (B18)(Hat15)  accounted for using the equity
method (Note 15) 9,179 1732 497,189 (12,077) = (620) 477,045
FERRRZM#43)  Income tax charge (Note 43) (2867) (2674 (5410  (75914) (5,437) - (182,302
KEERH/(B8)  Profit/oss) for the year 337,638 140,324 550,233 501,352 (50,206) (213100 1,266,241
EABERMT : Other segment items are as follows:
NHEE Segment assets 10710815 3318344 5845020 12854527 25501314 756,302 35,787,222
BRESIARNAE  Investments accounted for using the
(Hist15) equity method (Note 15) 191520 4649 3188715 793,998 = 82409 4298291
BEE Total assets 10,902,335 3350993 9034635 13448525 2501314 838,711 40,085,513
g% Total liabilties 6404481 1853582 4901515 10204318 1981117 3,001,731 28,526,744
BAE Capital expenditure 585,470 118,245 89,519 439,820 188,720 - 1401774
IRERY Non-cash expenses
-% BERFBTE - Depreciation of property, plant and
(Hi39) equipment (Note 39) 723,530 11,010 51,534 75,856 51,544 1,206 914,680
~ it A - Amortisation of land use rights
(Hi39) (Note 39) 7756 - 11,480 9,745 872 - 29,853
-HFRERESS - Amortisation of exploration and
(Wit3) extraction rights (Note 39) - - - - 14,589 = 14,589
-BYEERS - Amortisation of intangble assets
(Hi#39) (Note 39) 4,604 1356 2 4,140 37 = 10,441
B ERSHEEEE - Amortisation of other non-current
(Hi39) assets (Note 39) 2,692 2,043 3671 4,693 1284 - 14,383
~BERIE /(BE) - Provision for/[reversal of) bad
(Hi39) debts (Note 39) 12,280 2,33 6,807 43,212 (7,143) - 57,581
-RERSRE - Provision for inventory
(B39 obsolescence (Note 39) 40,297 4553 = 526 = = 45376
-EUWRPANTIZZE - Provision for amounts due from
BE(is9) customers for contract work
(Note 39) - - - 2,808 - - 2,808
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6 HPBERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
KEFMMERD AR ARG ([ The investment income from AVIC Real Estate Company
EEkFPMmERERAF(TFmER]) Limited (“AVIC Real Estate”) and AVIC Vanke Company
MEERBE—_E——EFEBASHE Limited (“AVIC Vanke”) were included in Unallocated
B E-E—=Fa#HoBEaihESR segment in 2012. In 2013, it was reclassified to Real
¥R WEEARFEIBRELRS Estate and Hotel segment for better assessing segment
BLER - HHEESBHLEEY - performance and allocating resources, comparative

figures are also restated.

AEEZEBEE2MNFE - EREF The Group entities are principally domiciled in the PRC.
AREMBIZR S H# RN IR P = The result of its revenue from external customers in PRC
FEWABEENT - and other countries and districts are disclosed as follows:

—E—= —E——4F

2013 2012

AR¥Fr ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

KA Revenue

R A 3 Mainland China 23,775,579 22,376,960

a5 Hong Kong 1,864,894 1,812,764

B Europe and America 2,566,156 2,139,626

REERREE East Asia and Southeast Asia 3,298,170 2,981,482

HAtb Others 1,932,889 1,941,740

W R A 5 Total revenue per income statement 33,437,688 31,252,572
WARBEFATERRETORE - BIEB Revenue is allocated based on the country in which
BN EPEABBBIA10%H U customers are located. No revenue derived from a
Ao single external customer has exceeded 10% of the total

revenue.

—E—=F —ET—F

2013 2012
AEB¥FiT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREMITAREEMRIEEES Total of non-current assets other than
HERBEELE financial instruments and
deferred tax assets
R A Mainland China 16,402,787 14,420,247
55 Hong Kong 538,384 86,605
FES Europe and America 58,166 6,148
NS S At East Asia and Southeast Asia 243,521 23,564
Hith Others 277,705 17,687
17,520,563 14,554,251
FRAEREARNRE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 4,386,692 4,298,291

21,907,255 18,852,542
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6 HPBERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—E—= —E—_—4F
2013 2012
ARE®FrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BEARMRH Capital expenditure
el e Mainland China 1,947,897 1,399,860
BB Hong Kong 791 14,805
(FES Europe and America 2,456 3,688
ECEYNE ] East Asia and Southeast Asia 3,628 996
HAh, Others 2,297 2,425

1,957,069 1,421,774

BN MR EEMEETHR - Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

WABAIAT - Revenue consists of the following:
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AEB¥TFT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000

BER D EHWRA DT Analysis of revenue by category

BEmiEE Sale of goods 29,463,762 24,950,855
BEEHN Construction contracts 3,369,404 5,768,383
el A Rental income 245,612 200,260
BRFS U A Services income 189,903 172,073
HAth Others 169,007 161,001
WS R A B8 Total revenue per income statement 33,437,688 31,252,572

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 229



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 * b 5 R 7 LAND USE RIGHTS
AEE
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—H—B&ERERE Net book value at 1 January 1,293,452 1,214,682
NE Additions 178,358 244,465
B Amortisation (33,165) (30,503)
BB A Al Disposals of subsidiaries - (135,192)
RTZA=1+—HH/REFE Net book value at 31 December 1,438,645 1,293,452
AEH
Group
—_=—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBIBEIN » LAS0EB04 T4 Outside Hong Kong, held on leases
b= ¥ of 30 to 50 years 1,438,645 1,293,452
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T EREE) 7  LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)
B B A R#28,801,000( &2 —= Amortisation charges of RMB28,801,000 (2012:
F : AR¥29,853,0007T) (HizE39) & A RMB29,853,000) (Note 39) and RMB4,364,000 (2012:
R¥4364,000(ZF——F : AR RMB650,000) were included in the administrative
650,0007C) B 2 Blat ARFE1THE A expenses and capitalised in construction in progress for
NERAERTIIE - the year respectively.
AREBEH T HFEBEAMN B ARH o The Group’s land use rights are in the mainland China,
AL PR B A b Y 5 Bl £ b (F B 3 the respective land use rights in mainland China were
R kT HERRIKT FRHAERE granted by the Town Planning and Land Administration
2 BHEFT30E50F o Bureau for periods of 30-50 years from the date of grant.
R-E—=F+_-_A=+—H8 5T As at 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings
TEFEAEERERFESREARE were secured by the land use rights of the Group
504,031,000 c( ZZE—Z—_F : AR with net book value totalling RMB504,031,000 (2012:
517,952,0007T ) K £ {8 FA #E fE I 48 - RMB517,952,000). Details of the secured borrowings are
EHRE A FIEENMIFES2 o in Note 32.
B ¥R & BA £R A 8 EXPLORATION AND EXTRACTION RIGHTS
AEE
Group
—E—= —TE-—F
2013 2012
AR¥EFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—H—BMEREFE Net book value at 1 January 505,317 519,906
NE Additions 106,282 -
W BB BT B8 X B (A77250(b)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 50(b)) 240,660 -
it Amortisation (15,716) (14,589)
RTZA=+—HHWEMFE Net book value at 31 December 836,543 505,317
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B R R s (7)

BT H ARKA15,716,000(ZFE—=
£ AR#14,589,0007T) (Ft5E39) 5T A
REEBFERFZRNDEERHAR o

RZE—Z=F+ZA=+—H " &x&H
R IR M FARERTEIA T &IA -

= iR @ % B A R ¥ 213,074,000
T(ZF—=—F: AR¥
219,212,0007T ) B B TE R £R 1 B
492.4553F F R E MM AR AE o
ZIBUNPEZERERATE
J& o

= Bk mOF E A R % 210,226,000
T(ZZT—ZF: ARK
220,250,0007T ) #) #HIE F £R 1 B
#7284,526F A BRI AR T TR o
ZIBRUNFEEEEEEINAZ
AR o

i BREFE AR 66,301,0007T (=
T——4&: AR¥65,855,0007T)
M EARESLN6.8FHFRE
B AR T A o 2R RN EE
mERAMRIIE -

= AR EOF {8 A R % 346,942,000 7T
(Z2—Z=F : #) R ERIKR
BEH1,0200F A A EMHEER
& o %M B& 17 7 Mboukoumassi,
Kouilou Province, the Republic of
the Congo °

HEMFAREORIRAERFRBE10
F-EEEREREMNETEEETERAKA
RIS 3T B R M P ER A

2

TTE—=H+-HA=+—8  BTFH
TTEREANEE A & T & REER
- BERTFE A A R#6,540,000 7T
ZTE—ZF  E)  c MIBERFEBHR
RKIFES2 ©

Q
N

EXPLORATION AND EXTRACTION RIGHTS
(continued)

Amortisation charges of RMB15,716,000 (2012:
RMB14,589,000) (Note 39) were included in the cost of
goods sold in the consolidated income statement for the
year.

As of 31 December 2013, the exploration and extraction
rights of the Group comprised the following:

- the extraction rights of a phosphorus mine of
net book value of RMB213,074,000 (2012:
RMB219,212,000) has a site area of approximately
2.4553 sqg. km. It is located in Dongchuan District,
Kunming City of Yunnan Province, the PRC.

- the extraction rights of a potassium mine of
net book value of RMB210,226,000 (2012:
RMB220,250,000) has a site area of approximately
284,526 sqg. km. It is located in Lenghu District,
Haixi Prefecture of Qinghai Province, the PRC.

- the extraction rights of a phosphorus mine
of net book value of RMB66,301,000 (2012:
RMB65,855,000) has a site area of approximately
6.85 sq. km. It is located in Dongchuan District,
Kunming City of Yunnan Province, the PRC.

= the exploration rights of a potassium mine of net
book value of RMB346,942,000 (2012: Nil) has
a site area of approximately 1,020 sq. km. It is
located in Mboukoumassi, Kouilou Province, the
Republic of the Congo.

The remaining useful life of the exploration and extraction
rights is 5-10 years. Management expects to be able
to renew the exploration and extraction rights without
significant cost.

As at 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings were
secured by the exploration and extraction rights of the
Group with net book value totalling RMB6,540,000 (2012:
Nil). Details of the secured borrowings are in Note 32.
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EmE 9 GOODWILL

AEE
Group
AR TFr
RMB’000

BE—Z2——-—F+=-H=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2012
R_ZE——F—H As at January 2012 260,236
g — B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 4,308
N-_E——F+—_A8 As at December 2012 264,544

BE—Z—=F1+=-B=1+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2013
RZE—=F—A# As at January 2013 264,544
UL BE BT B A R (H12#50(a)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 50(a)) 120,891
RZZE—=F+_A As at December 2013 385,435

BAEEAR_ZZENFURESTEHME
BRERAB([FE8FMEIR])60%K
B RZE——FRERMESMHERE
PR AR ([ B MR J)69.77 %A% #E f £ il
ZERF(LE)ERQAR([FHER])
100% B - M- TE——FWHEIL =P
ERBREBROR([ER])70%H#E
MR = FREEMS AR
NE([{EMEM])100% X HEFTER -

EREMBERENRSELEUMAK
BEBRAABEBREEKATE - &
RS EEEL A A W E SRR ERE
REEE BRATEREEEMRR
BMERFHNMBEARBHANEESR
ERAET BBRAIFHNBRETRER
RNt At R R HEE -

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 60% interest of
Qinghai CATIC AVIC Resources Limited (“Qinghai CATIC
Resources”), 69.77% interest of AVIC Weihai Shipyard
Company Limited (“Weihai Shipyard”) (& fin & & 5 &R
BBRAT]), 100% interest of Superior Metal Hardware
Products (Shanghai) Company Limited (“Superior Metal”)
(EMBEZRLS (L&) BRAR), 70% interest of CATIC
Huatai Liankemao (Beijing) Company Limited (“Huatai”)
(tRPMERKEMEBR D E) and 100% interest of
Deltamarin Oy (“Deltamarin”) in 2008, 2011, 2011, 2012
and 2013 respectively.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to Weihai
Shipyard is determined based on fair value less costs to
sell calculation, the recoverable amount of other CGUs
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Those
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial forecasts prepared by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below.
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BE ) 9 GOODWILL (continued)
BEALBERBBEEKRANREREES The key assumptions used for fair value less costs to sell
ERNFE/REBWOT : and value-in-use calculations are as follows:
BRTPHMER
Qinghai 2 sE SEHEE
CATIC Weihai Superior HH B EM
Resources Shipyard Metal Huatai Deltamarin
HREFE Net book value 5,240 227,107 27,889 4,308 120,891
BT Gross margin 28.89% 13.87% 25% 30% 10.6%
BRX Growth rate 5% 3% 3% 3% 3.5%
BHIR & Discount rate 8% 14.50% 8.42% 12% 12.59%

HEBRREAROTEESHMAZRE
ELE -

EEERBEBERRAIEAMISERN
BEHRETRESENE - FRANINE
PR R KA R EHIER B -
PIERARBRER R STAIRAR R - WRMR
EARKE D AR R A R R o

RETHENER  ARAREZTRA/HE
ARTIRRES L -

HfEsTRRBELRER - TE—=F
TE——F+ - A=+—HEBEMNE:T
K10% @ BIAEBHBERREERES
B(ZE——F : &) -

WR—_E—=Fk_FT—Z—F+=_A
=+ —HBIRRIE 2% - | ANEEHAE
AHEFEEEB(ZE——F  M®) -

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The weighted average growth rates used
are consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant operating segments.

The directors of the Company consider that no
impairment charge was required after performing the
impairment assessment.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management’s estimates as at 31 December
2013 and 2012, the Group would have recognized no
impairment loss on the goodwill (2012: Nil).

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December
2013 and 2012, the Group would have recognised no
impairment loss on the goodwill (2012: Nil).
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10 |EEE 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EEALH
RENE BER
ElZ®R  Capitalised TR BHERE
Computer development Trademark  Maritime Vi -0 ac
software costs and licenses rights of use Patents Others Total
ARBTL ARETR AREFL ARETE AREFL ARETL  AREFZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R-8-z%-A-H At 1 January 2013

A Cost 94,161 948 7,086 25,670 66,947 5,043 200,755
ZHBEREE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (35,188) - (727) 4722 (1,619) (2213 (44,469)

FEFE Net book amount 58,073 948 6,359 20,048 65,328 3730 156,286
BE-%-=F Year ended 31 December 2013

tZB=t-HLEE
ENEESE Opening net book amount 58,973 948 6,359 20,948 65,328 3,730 156,286
EXER Exchange differences 610 - - - - - 610
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries

(H50)f) (Note 50)(2) 2,301 - 55,175 - 40,651 - 98,217
AE Additions 12,585 500 - - 1,000 - 14,085
k= Disposals (58) - - - - - (58)
B Amortisation charge (12,615) - - (1,465) (10,208) (329 (24610)
EREEFE Closing net book amount 61,886 1,448 61,534 19,483 96,771 3408 244530

R=E-ZE+-B=1+-8 At31 December 2013

A Cost 114,642 1,448 62,261 25,670 108,598 5,943 318,562
L EELAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (52,756) = (721) (6,187) (11,827) (2,535) (74,032)
RESE Net book amount 61,886 1,448 61,534 19,483 96,771 3,408 244,530

PRABERERRHERAT 2013FERE 235



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

10

236

W ERE =) 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
BER(A
RENA AR
Eh¥E  Capitalised TR SHERE
Computer ~ development  Trademark Maritime =7 2 fost
software costs  and licenses  rights of use Patents QOthers Total
ANRETT  ANEEFT  AREFT  AREfr  AREFT  AREFT  AREr
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RZE-Z5-f-A At 1 January 2012
KA Cost 85,142 57973 7,086 25,670 - 5,943 181,926
ZiEHRAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (24,331) - (719) (3,649) - (1,883 (30,690)
RERE Net book amount 60,811 57973 6,371 22,021 - 4,060 151,236
BE-E-CF Year ended 31 December 2012
tZB=1-HILEE
ENEESE Opening net book amount 60,811 57,073 6,371 22,001 = 4,060 151,236
NE Additions 9,066 9,922 - - - - 18,988
ERTES| Transfer to patents - (66,947) - - 66,947 - =
HE Disposals (35) - - - - - (35)
BETH Amortisation charge (10,869) - (12) (1,073) (1,619 (330) (13,903)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 58,973 948 6,359 20,948 65,328 3,730 156,286
RZE-Z£+-F=1-H At31December 2012
KA Cost 94,161 948 7,086 25,670 66,947 5,943 200,755
ZiEHRAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (35,189) s (21) (472 (1,619 R21Y (44469
FAZE Net book amount 58,973 948 6,359 20,948 65,328 3,730 156,286

B B AR ¥18,561,000t(ZE——
F : AR¥10,441,0007T) (BF5E39) KA
R#6,040,000 (=T —=F : AR%
3,462,0007T) A BIEF AR FEEITHE A
RERCERTIRE -

Amortisation charges of RMB18,561,000 (2012:
RMB10,441,000) (Note 39) and RMB6,049,000 (2012:
RMB3,462,000) were included in the administrative
expenses and capitalised in construction-in-progress for
the year respectively.
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11 Y¥E - BERRE 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AEE Group
ZE-=F
2013
EER
TRk
BERRE Computer
HEEE  Machinery RE and  FREEN U
#F  Leasehold and Motor electronic Mining Other a5
Buildings improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment  structures  equipment Total

ARRTR  AREFL  AREFL  ARETL  ARETZ  ARKTL  AREFT  AREFR
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BE-E-=F Year ended 31 December 2013
TZR=T-LEE

A Cost
2] At beginning of year 4,530,687 224,707 6,463,969 190,332 275,020 268,237 113,653 12,066,605
BEETRERH#13)  Transfer from construction-in-

progress (Note 13) 330,480 - 144,834 - 187 - 85 476,186
WEEMBARHita0)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 50) 187 - 189 1,395 4,39 - 513 6,680
HE Addtions 47,567 71,664 225,394 21,437 36,980 - 7,125 416,167
ERTRANE(H3112)  Transfer to investment properties

(Note 12) (22,869) - = - = - = (22,869)
HEMBAR Hit476)  Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 47(g)) - - (62) (1,900) (423) - - 2,385)
ERDARETR Transfer to construction-in-progress

(H#13) (Note 13) (7,062 - - - - - - (7,062)

R EWi47p)  Other disposals (Note 47(b)) (2,544) - (59,551) (13,077) (11,083) - - (87,155)
EEE Exchange differences (4,299) - (1,7111) (735) (414) - (146) (7,305)
£X Atend of year 4,872,147 302,311 6,773,062 196,552 305,263 268,237 121,230 12,838,862
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation
) At beginning of year 601,554 105,257 2,280,103 94,392 170,968 48,810 76,433 3,371,517
REEHR Charge for the year 178,134 73,013 644,418 32,009 3,1 20,963 12,963 995,167
ERTRANE(W3t12)  Transfer to investment properties

(Note 12) (8,794) - = - = - = (8,794)
HEMBARHit476)  Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 47(e)) - - m (1,602) (362) - - (1,971)
ERTERTR(M13)  Transfer to construction-in-progress

(Note 13) (1,077) - = - = - = (1,977)
R EWi47p)  Other disposals (Note 47(b)) (2,009) - (56,777) (9,967) (5,462) - ) (74,216)
EX At end of year 766,908 179,170 2,867,737 115,822 196,921 69,773 89,395 4,285,726
HE Impairment
EMRER At beginning and end of year 5,504 - 9,019 - 273 - - 15,716
RERHRE Charge for the year - - 20 406 55 - 10 7
EX Atend of year 5,524 - 10,159 406 328 - 10 16,427
BEFE Net book amount
X At end of year 4,099,715 123,201 3,895,166 80,324 108,014 198,464 31,825 8,536,709
2] At beginning of year 3,923,609 119,450 4,173,947 95,940 103,779 219,421 37,220 8,673,372
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11 Y¥E - BERREE) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
NEE(Z) Group (continued)
S
2012
ElRE
Tt
BERR Computer
HEXE  Machinery HE ad  FREED Btk
BF  Leasehold and Motor electronic Mining Other &8
Buildings ~ improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment structures  equipment Total

NEETL  NEETL  ARETT  ARRTn  ARETr  ARETr  ARETr ARETx
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

BZ-E-C- Year ended 31 December 2012
tZR=1-ALEE

A Cost
) At beginning of year 5,076,688 147,290 6,385,906 181,239 262,794 249,106 109,242 12,412,265
AEETRER Transfer from construction-i-

progress 91,520 - 346,881 - 546 13,798 - 452,145
WE—HHELR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 7 197 8 = = 252
RE Additions 103,094 17417 221,554 36,878 23,989 5333 9,853 478,118
BRENEER Transfer from investment properties 35,494 - - - - - - 35,494
ERoRENE Transfer to investment properties (17,221) - - - - - - (17,227)
LEHEAA Disposals of subsidlaries (714,537) = (360,500) (16,687) (4,058) (3,169)  (1,098,951)
AbiliE Other disposals (42,937 - (129,365) (10,683) (8,658) - (2,015) (193,658)
EXEE Exchange differences (1,408) - (514) (612) 359 - (258) (2,433
EX Atend of year 4,530,687 224,707 6,463,969 190,332 275,020 268,237 113,663 12,066,605
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation
) At beginning of year 535,034 36,871 1,860,789 82,439 132,329 21,847 61,351 2,736,660
RERFHR Charge for the year 157,891 68,386 598912 2,775 47,845 20963 17,28 934,004
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties (1519) - - - - - - (1519
HERBAE Disposals of subsidlaries (80,035) - (71,975) (3,307) (1,449) L (900)  (157,666)
Hipie Other disposals 9.817) - [to762) (7,515) (1,757) - (1250 (133,962
EX At end of year 601,554 105,257 2,280,103 94,392 170,968 48,810 76,433 3,377,517
HE Impairment
ENRER At beginning and end of year 5,524 - 9,919 - 213 - - 15,716
FETE Net book amount
EX Atend of year 3,923,609 119,450 4,173,947 95,940 103,779 219,427 37,220 8,673,372
&4 At beginning of year 4,536,130 110,419 4,515,198 98,800 130,192 221,259 47,891 9,669,889
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Y- BERRZEE) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
RATF Company
—E-=F
2013
BERRE
Machinery AE
¥ and Motor k]
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
AE® T AREFT AREFT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BZ-E-=F Year ended 31 December 2013
+TZRA=1+—-HLEE
R Cost
FORER At beginning and end of year 19,000 1,646 4,327 24,973
INE Additions - 1,333 - 1,333
FR At end of year 19,000 2,979 4,327 26,306
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation
E4) At beginning of year 12,801 907 4,134 17,842
REFR Charge for the year 855 290 42 1,187
FX At end of year 13,656 1,197 4,176 19,029
REFE Net book amount
FR At end of year 5,344 1,782 151 7,277
F1 At beginning of year 6,199 739 193 7,131
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11 9% BERREE) 11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
WNT () Company (continued)
—E-—F
2012
BRRFE
Machinery B
EF and Motor k)
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
ARETr AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE-E-——F Year ended 31 December 2012
TZA=+—HLEE
B Cost
FMRER At beginning and end of year 19,000 1,646 4,327 24,973
2HIFE Accumulated depreciation
=) At beginning of year 11,946 598 4,092 16,636
KEER Charge for the year 855 309 42 1,206
N At end of year 12,801 907 4,134 17,842
REFE Net book amount
FR At end of year 6,199 739 193 7,131
E4) At beginning of year 7,054 1,048 235 8,337
REENME - BFERRERELKA The property, plant and equipment of the Group were
HIER © stated at historical cost.
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W% BERREE) 1

RAF (&)
WEEBEUTHBETFERMEH ¢

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Company (continued)

Depreciation charge was capitalised or expensed in the
following categories:

—E—=F —E——4F

2013 2012

AREFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

SHERA Cost of goods sold 831,666 769,991
THER Administrative expenses 141,496 130,254
HEER Distribution costs 16,623 14,435
EEITR Construction in progress 5,382 19,324
995,167 934,004

AEBNETEIRMUNFTEARM -

R-B—Z=ZF+-"A=+—H BTR
TTERBEYE - BE K& E (EE32())
fEAN T HER -

The Group’s buildings are mainly situated in the mainland
China.

As at 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings were
secured by the property, plant and equipment (Notes
32(a))as follows:

—ZE—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREDVFE Net book value
B Buildings 1,426,288 1,444,472

Bz ZET—=F+=-_/A=+—8"
AEEDEFRBEEAFAEAARE
278,103,000 c (ZF ——F : AR¥
619,879,0007T ) IEFHIERERE o

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was still in the
progress of obtaining title certificates of buildings
with a net book value of RMB278,103,000 (2012:
RMB619,879,000).
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REWE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
ARB¥Fir AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RANREE At fair value
— H— B4 Opening balance at 1 January 2,099,314 2,030,986
BEWE  BEK Transfer from property, plant and
FtEEE Q) equipment (d) 25,848 22,539
AR BEARFRE Net gain from fair value adjustment 56,942 101,332
HEBRTYE  BENRE Transfer to property, plant and equipment - (35,494)
HE Disposals (28,954) (20,049)
T A=+—BHER&EH Closing balance at 31 December 2,153,150 2,099,314

(@) MNIESERNREVESENOT

(a)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties were as follows:

—E—= —E-—F
2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWBA Rental income 196,187 166,621
EAHESW AR YEREE Direct operating expenses from properties
JEFRT that generated rental income (46,462) (52,885)
TEAESWARYERE Direct operating expenses from properties
ERERSY that did not generate rental income (9,144) (3,629)
140,581 110,107

NR-ZE—=F+-A=+—H ' x&H
MERREBCRRENKRBHANE
Fo(ZE—ZF : #)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2012: Nil).
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REWME &) 12

(b)

(c)

EIERRNREE (b)
R=F—=F+=-—A=+—8 -
ETHRITEFAERBEBEAEE
¥ERAFR(EREBR])AAE
B # A R ¥ 881,372,000 7T ( —
T ——F : AR#¥857,700,000
TR EEERR - FTR
TERBEPBEMERME AR
AR RRAR D ARBELOA
R # 288,242,000t (=& — =
F: AR#283,956,0007T) K%
BEYEERE - BETHRITERA
R MIEEIREEESR AR
(TtEmwmED)AABEHOARE
31,035,000 (ZE— 4 : &)
MIREEIERT - BREE
SIS WNCIDSS s o =¥ =S
BAaE o IMIFERNF BN
532 0

HEZH (c)
ETHREDEZEBRBKERE
HHEFEBA  ABAAGAIN

e o

RETAHHEERSE - REY
BHREATERBNREMERIEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties pledged as security

As at 31 December 2013, certain bank
borrowings were secured by the investment
properties of the Guangdong International Building
Industrial Co., Ltd. (“GIB Company”) at the fair
value of approximately RMB881,372,000 (2012:
RMB857,700,000). Certain bank borrowings
were secured by the investment properties
of China National Aero-Technology Beijing
Company Limited (“Beijing Company”) at the fair
value of approximately RMB288,242,000 (2012:
RMB283,956,000). Certain bank borrowings were
secured by the investment properties of Beijing
Zhonghang Rixin Management and Investment
Company Limited (“Beijing Ruixin”) at the fair value
of approximately RMB31,035,000 (2012: Nil). GIB
Company, Beijing Company and Beijing Ruixin are
subsidiaries of the Group. Details of the secured
borrowings are in Note 32.

Leasing arrangements
Certain investment properties have been leased
to tenants under long-term operating leases with
rentals payable monthly.

Minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not

WHERENT recognised in the financial statements are as
follows:
—EB-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
AEB¥FiT AR Tr
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FEPA Not later than one year 213,947 134,461
—FAERFUA Later than one year and not later than
five years 472,069 330,305
HFELAE Later than five years 286,749 260,985
972,765 725,751

AEENREMFRGMNFE

The investment properties of the Group are
situated in the PRC.
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REWE#)

(d)

(e)

RZEBE—=F FEFEARE
14,075,000c( =T ——F : AR
#15,708,0007C ) K B (=W % &
FHERREME - HEERE Y
H ZEBREVENDAREBES
AR #258480007T (=& — =
F: AR¥22,539,0007T) - NEE
FHENAAEBEEEEDFEN
EZH(HRELEHIBEEER) AR
#8,830,000 T (=T —=—F : A
R #5,123,00070 ) E E b 2 E WK
wmHP AR ©

RENENRREE
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12

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

In 2013, owner-occupied property of buildings
with net book values of RMB14,075,000 (2012:
RMB15,708,000) were transferred to investment
properties. As at the date of transfer, the fair
value of these investment properties amounted
to RMB25,848,000 (2012: RMB22,539,000).
The difference between the fair value and net
book value, net of deferred tax liability at the
transfer date amounting to RMB8,830,000
(2012: RMB5,1283,000), was recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Fair values of investment properties

An independent valuation of the Group’s
investment properties has been performed by
valuer, China United Assets Appraisal Company
Limited, to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 December 2013
and 2012. The revaluation gain is included in ‘fair
value gain on investment properties’. The following
table analyses the investment properties carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(e) Fair values of investment properties
(continued)

R-Z2—=F+=-A=+—H
FEANTREHNEAREE
Fair value measurements at
31 December 2013 using

EEEER
JEETSE LN
HWE HhE X
(£—%) IR RS BX
Quoted BAE TR
prices in (F=#) WAE
active Significant (EB=%)
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(AER#FrT) (AER#EFT) (AEHFiT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
®EHNLEETE Recurring fair value
measurements
KB Investment properties
—WABF— - Office buildings - PRC - 301,464 1,337,472
—HEM—h — Manufacturing sites — PRC - - 462,755
—fFE— — Dwelling house — PRC = 18,261 33,198

AR BB R BN T R
MEHRERED Y B RAD A
[EEE BB AR -

RERN  F—H F_MRE=
A2 R SRR o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.
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REMENAABEGE)
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(e)

Fair values of investment properties
(continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

BAETF EEM Tz
Office Manufacturing Dwelling
buildings sites house
ANREFr) (AREFT) (AREFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
B4 Opening balance 1,309,104 452 376 32,459
AR EEFARMRE Net gains from fair value
e adjustment 28,368 10,379 739
HREH Closing balance 1,337,472 462,755 33,198
REEFAF R Total gains for the year included
BEBNITEYE in profit for assets held at
AREEKEIETH  the end of the year, under
gy ‘fair value gain on investment
properties’ 28,368 10,379 739
REEFAFERE Change in unrealised gains for
BERNNARER the year included in profit for
sy assets held at the end
of the year 28,368 10,379 739
KEE R E(E B FE Valuation processes of the Group

AEENRENENR_T—=F
tT_RA=T—"HHEBIYEX/E
RIGEETEE - ZAEME
BHBARAEEER  BOHE
R ERE MR A iR K 7 &6
ETEE- - FAREMEIAER
RIRA R RETAEAM -

AEBPBHRE -—EEK - &
B HRE BN BB
BEEETHGE ZBEEEZM
ESERE -N_FT—=F+=
A=1t—B ZEWENLAE
BEEHTHREENGEARRAAE

F o

The Group’s investment properties were valued at
31 December 2013 by independent professionally
qualified valuers who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investments properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a
team that reviews the valuations performed by
the independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the board
of directors. As at 31 December 2013, the fair
values of the properties have been determined by
China United Assets Appraisal Company Limited.
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(e)

REMENAABEGE)

1 1ERA
RAARBEEBRSE_HMNRE
MEME  HERBHEELBOE
B - AN ELBYES
EREBERA(PINYERER)F
ZREHAR - ZEEHDENR
EZRAEBRTVIIARNER -

RAREBEBEAF =FNRE
MEMS > HEREEXRTAEH
RHABBYERBRARSRE
(BERBEEREDFARETE - %
EFRABBEEE

ARBEE
BERA

RENEXERL 8
UREE  YAE[TRE
EREMER - Ad
R RSMEBRB RS -
PIEnEU M E R E D
SHE

BRE RMB RS & HRE
I HEE 1S ORI T

et

fhstz=Ex RETMRAHERR
& BB R IBET AR R

SRR

BRANENRHE
RENMEASERE
MLBRE

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(e)

Fair values of investment properties
(continued)

Valuation techniques

For investment properties which fair value
hierarchy level is Level 2, the valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square meter.

For investment properties which fair value
hierarchy level is Level 3, the valuations were
determined using discounted cash flow (“DCF”)
projections based on significant unobservable
inputs. These input include:

Based on the actual
location, type and quality
of the properties and
supported by the terms
of any existence lease,
other contracts and
external evidence such
as current market rents
for similar properties;

Future rental
cash inflows

Discount rates Reflecting current market
assessment of the
uncertainty in the amount

and timing of cash flows;

Based on current and
expected future market
conditions after expiry of
any current lease;

Estimated vacancy
rates

Maintenance costs Including necessary
investments to maintain
functionality of the
property for its expected

useful life;
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REWE &) 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
() BEVENAAEBEGE) () Fair values of investment properties
(continued)
BERER BEENER M, Capitalisation rates Based on actual location,
RNNKREE - Wit kih size and quality of the
& B MM EUE properties and taking
into account market data
at the valuation date;
RXREE SAREBEEBRAK - = Terminal value Taking into account
BEXRMGHAEHRK assumptions regarding
& e maintenance costs,
vacancy rates and
market rents.
RAFE @ ESIMIwEES o There were no changes to the valuation
techniques during the year.
EEIR 13 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
AEH
Group
—E—= —E—_fF
2013 2012
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F 1) At beginning of year 1,252,051 1,128,005
BEE - BE MR EER Transfer from property, plant and equipment
(Hfat11) (Note 11) 5,085 -
NE (Hita) Additions (Note (a)) 1,098,435 577,681
BRI R MR Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Hia£11) (Note 11) (476,186) (452,745)
EERESHMIERBEE Transfer to other non-current assets - (890)
1,879,385 1525210511

(@ AETZEREERE - KEX (a) Included in the additions were mainly costs
ENREFT T RREARKAR - incurred for the construction of production plants,

modernisation and renovation projects.

b) R-ZZ—=F :FAEEIEHN (b)  Bank loan interest capitalised-in-the construction
BERECBRTERFINEABARKE in progress in 2013 amounting to RMB53,904,000
53,904,0007C( =T ——%F : AR (2012: RMB10,457,000) and the capitalised
#10,457,0007T) * EAREFIER A interest rate was 6.73% (2012: 5.66%).

6.73%(—EFE——4 : 5.66%) °
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¢ MZZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
WERTEFBEEILRE(ZE
—— 4 : AR#¥16,361,0007T)1E
HH - BB ERNFEE
HFIEES2 ©

13 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS (continued)
(c) As at 31 December 2013, no bank borrowings
were secured by the construction-in-progress
(2012: RMB16,361,000). Details of the secured
borrowings are in Note 32.

RE QA BIWRE 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
RAF]
Company
—E—= =FE===
2013 2012
AR¥EFT ARETr
RMB’000 RMB’000
"E R Investments at cost:

— EWRARRES — shares in listed companies 432,838 432,838
— JE AR AE — unlisted equity interests 4,152,990 4,082,814

4,585,828 4,515,652

R-E—=F+-A=+—H ' LA
AP A TEL A AR #3,829,647,000
T(ZZE——F : AR¥3,005,864,000
JC) °

RZE—=F+="A=+—H ' &ARQ7A
RTIEEMBRAR(EERAEZEZMNEB
ARAEAEEFREIAEEBEELE
BER (R B EKRLLH)) A REE -

As at 31 December 2013, the market value of shares
in listed companies approximated RMB3,829,647,000
(2012: RMB3,005,864,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had equity
interests in the following major subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, materially contributed to the net
results of the Group or constituted a material portion of
the assets or liabilities of the Group.
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14 ARBATNKRE#E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERmELER
RRERKEN
EERILA
ERmALT mA£E  Proportion
BEN BEN  of ordinary
EERILA  BERLA shares
BRIRARE/ Proportion  Proportion directly
HhEx ARRIEFR of ordinary o ordinary held by
Particulars of issued £RHE shares directly shares non-
WEARLHE share capital/ TEE Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and Nature of business Company  the Group interests
R 674287600k BREE ~ BHARMRARMLH)  RERY 45.62% 45.62% 54.38%
Tianma ARBITHEER  Joint stock company B DREREETR
574,237,500 Ordinary (listed on the Shenzhen  Shenzhen, PRC
shares of RMB1 each Stock Exchange) Manufacture and sales of liquid
crystal displays
REERERAA(TREER) AR#139800000m  AREALT RER 93% 93% %
Shennan Cirouit Co, Ltd. (5CC') RMB139,800,000 Limited Liability company 248 kR EEIRIZ MR
Shenzhen, PRC
Manufacture and sales of printed
circuit boards
REE 302,767,870k BREE  HRHARMNARMLE)  RER 41.49% 41.49% 5851%
Fiyta ARBATALER  Joint stock company Qe
392,767,870 Ordinary (listed on the Shenzhen ~ Shenzhen, PRC
shares of RMB1 each Stock Exchange) Manufacture and sales of watches
and clocks
AefgRERAR(HHER]) AR®500000000r  2EEELT HELRY 100% 100% -
Shenzhen AVIC Resources Co., Ltd. RMB500,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ EEIEEERNRE ERE
(‘AVIC Resources’) Shenzhen, PRC
Investment and development of
agriculture-related resources
business
EXER ARH416420288m  ARRALT hEEN 75% 75% 25%
GIB Company RMBA416,429,288 Limited liability company ~ [EE REL4

Guangzhou, PRC
Hotel and property operations
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14 RHEBLARNRKRE®)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERHEER
REEREEHN
BRI
EREALT ©A%E  Proportion
AN BEN  of ordinary
EERLE  EERL shares
BRARARE/ Proportion Proportion directly
HREx HRRIEZR of ordinary  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued EHHE shares directly shares non-
HEAR%E share capital/ o] Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and Nature of business Company the Group interests
MIGERERERAA(RERR])  ARKI200000000  2EEAAR HERY 100% 100% -
Shenzhen Aero Fasteners AFM Company — RMB120,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ ZAE RIEE=ZED
Limited (*AFM Company’) Shenzhen, PRC
Manufacture and sales of standard
parts
A ARB800000000m  2EEBLT REER 100% 100% -
Beiing Company RMB800,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ BZEBREENE
Beijing, PRC
Trading activities and shipbuilding
PREREEERARAT ARH60,000,0007T EREAAR RELR 97.5% 97.5% 25%
(TggRa)) RMB60,000,000 Limited liabilty company ~ EEEFREKFAENRBEEE
China National Aero-Technology Trade Beijng, PRC
and Economy Development Company Trading of electronic and computer
Limited (‘TED Company’) equipment and tender
management
HERERERNERARD(EMAR]) ARK00000000C  2EEELF T 100% 100% -
China National Aero-Technology RMB300,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ EHER - BERE
Guangzhou Company Limited BEIREESMR
(“Guangzhou Company’) Guangzhou, PRC
Trading and logistics of machinery
vehicles, medical faciliies and
hitumen engineering
PERZROEFERAA(ENRA) ARMG0000000T  2EEAAA L 100% 100% -
China National Aero-Technology Xiamen  RMB550,000,000 Wholly owned company St - AR EE 595
Corporation (“Xiamen Gompany’) Xiamen, PRC

Trading and logistics of shipping,

stone materials

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 251



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

14 RHEBLARNRKRE#)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERmFER
REEESEN
ERIRLA
ERmELE MAKEE  Proportion
KEMN BEH  of ordinary
ERRMA  EERLA shares
BRTREAEE/ Proportion  Proportion directly
HEA AMEIERE of ordinary  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued £RKE shares directly shares non-
WEARZHE share capital/ LEER Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and Nature of business Company the Group interests
hEERIER TRARAT ARB4000000000  2EHELT hER 100% 100% -
([TRAA]) RMB400,000,000 Wholy owned company ~ B5EX7% BEEEE  FHELR
China National Aero-Technology RENMHEE LSRG
Engineering Gompany Limited Beijing, PRG
(‘Engineering Company’) Construction activities, project
management, Real estate
development, construction
material trade and rendering of
[abour service
IR RAEERRAA AR 60,000,000 BREMAF REL R 90% 90% 10%
([EE®wE) RMB60,000,000 Limited liability company ~ EiEZE
Beijing AVIC Ruixin Investment Beijing, PRC
Management Company Limited Real estate development
(‘Beijing Ruixin’)
ARPHAERREFERAA AR30,000,00070 BREMAF HERR 51% 51% 49%
((A%RE)) RMB30,000,000 Limited liability company ~ BiE%R
X'an AVIC Raise XiKong Real Estate Xi'an, PRC
Company Limited (‘Xi'an Raise”) Real estate development
REBTHREERARAT(KBRE]) ARK1200000000  BREAAR hERS 60% 60% 40%
Chengdu AVIC Raise Real Estate RMB120,000,000 Limited liabiity company ~ BHEZRE
Company Limited (‘Chengdu Raise”) Chengdu, PRC
Real estate development
PRERTERSRARAA(FER]) ARKI00000000T  2EEARA hER 100% 100% -
AVIC International Renewable Energy ~ RMB100,000,000 Wholy owned company BB BEHFRE
Development Co., Ltd (‘RED Beijing, PRC
Company’) Trading of renewable energy
equipment
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14 RHEBLARNRKRE®)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERHEER
REEREEHN
ERRMLA
EEARAF BA%EE  Proportion
AN BEN  of ordinary
EERLE  EERL shares
BRARARE/ Proportion Proportion directly
HREx HRRIEZR of ordinary  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued EHHE shares directly shares non-
HEAR%E share capital/ o] Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and Nature of business Company the Group interests
RGNS FERAA ARH1,030000000T  BREFAT e g 21% 51% 49%
([ HEXRE]) RMB1,030,000,000 Limited iabifty company ~ #ERHERRETS
Shanghai Tianma Microglectronics Co., Shanghai, PRC
Ltd. (‘Shanghai Tianma’) Manufacture and sales of liguid
crystal displays
BEThERARAA ARHE50000000T  2EEBAF hEE, - 100% -
(FEBnmER) RMB550,000,000 Wholly owned company  Delingha, PRC
Qinghai CATIC Resources Co., Ltd. Potassium resources business
(‘Qinghai CATIC Resources’)
NG ARH1,200000000T  BREFAT IR - 30% 70%
Chengdu Tianma RMB1,200,000,000 Limited fiabiity company ~ REREERRETa
Chengdu, PRC
Manufacture and sales of fiquid
crystal displays
TRERMRERERAR (ThfM]) 285576 00REREY ROARNEMEES  FK - 78.87% 26.13%
AVIC International Maritime Holdings LER SPHEBARLT)  BERE
Limited (*AVIC Maritime”) 285,576,000 Ordinary Joint stock company Singapore
shares and no par value (isted on Singapore  Sfip building
Exchange Ltd)
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FERRRERBEZATRIA

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The non-controlling interests comprised as follows:

REE
Group

—E—= —E——4F

2013 2012

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(C=0)

(Restated)

B Tianma 2,367,199 2,204,962

g Fiyta 1,032,797 971,024

&R AVIC Resources 227,120 169,731

NG Guangzhou Company 204,132 173,166

"ENT TED Company 109,966 79,308

R AE] Beijing Company 86,721 16,512

PNEIE NS SCC 84,839 76,359

AL InE Xi’an Raise 83,255 84,166

RE = Chengdu Raise 82,215 45,658

& 5B GIB Company 61,746 70,720

FBLIR RED Company 43,263 61,222

It 7 EE Beijing Ruixin 8,695 10,584

=L NGT Xiamen Company 7,822 4,168

TEAR] Engineering Company 33 569
MR ES ¥ AR AT Wuxi AVIC Raise Real Estate Company

(MEZHE]) Limited (“Wuxi Raise”) - 20,928

4,399,803 3,989,077
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EERERHYE
TXEHINEEHAKEMN S BEAAIE
ERBERERNESHMERRMBEERS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summarised balance sheet
Set out below are the summarised financial information of
each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are

2o material to the Group.
—E—=F T
PN -] Tianma 2013 2012
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE Current
BE Assets 2,814,162 2,191,280
aE Liabilities (2,853,270) (2,536,634)
MENE EBFRE Total current net liabilities (39,108) (345,354)
IR E Non-current
BE Assets 5,175,937 5,621,424
=L Liabilities (1,840,765) (2,212,945)
IEmEE ERFE Total non-current net assets 3,335,172 3,408,479
EEEE Net assets 3,296,064 3,063,125
ZHEHBARRYPE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—E—= B F
PN -] Tianma 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 4,411,602 4,247,596
B PTAS A0 A& A Profit before income tax 312,266 151,794
FriSfi Income tax charge (32,230) (12,343)
HEmemElas Other comprehensive income 9,507 4,765
FHEBMNE Total comprehensive income 289,543 144,216
DEEEIFEIR IR EZRAEME Total comprehensive income allocated to
U non-controlling interests 225,365 116,123
TR F IR IR B E S A9 A% 8. Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 43,236 -
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14 ARBATNKRE#E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
HERERBE Summarised statement of cash flows
—E—= —E——F
RE Tianma 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEIHELENRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
REEFEENRE Cash generated from operations 1,572,946 1,032,154
EAF B Interests paid (139,522) (180,133)
EEER Income tax paid (11,737) (35,075)
SIESEEEANIRS ERE Net cash generated from operating activities 1,421,687 816,946
BEESMARSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (248,355) (433,101)
BVEEEN TR G F Net cash used in financing activities (674,218) (525,116)
ReERBREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
#hn R ) FE cash equivalents 499,114 (141,271)
FUNRERIBLEED Cash, cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 459,635 601,195
BERESSEMENER Exchange losses on cash and cash
equivalents (3,561) (289)
FROBENMIRESZHEYD Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year 955,188 459,635
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EEEBERUE Summarised balance sheet
—E—= =&
FREEE Fiyta 2013 2012
AR¥FiT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TRE Current
BE Assets 2,677,251 2,494 571
A Liabilities (1,445,929)  (1,827,578)
MEEEAFE Total current net assets 1,231,322 666,993
FER Non-current
BE Assets 926,112 860,441
=L Liabilities (579,904) (51,947)
MBI EELFE Total non-current net assets 346,208 808,494
EEFRE Net assets 1,577,530 1,475,487
ZHBARRYPE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—Eg—= —E——F
FREmE Fiyta 2013 2012
AR F T AR Tor
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 3,065,746 2,991,865
BRPTS IR Profit before income tax 167,889 165,382
FriSfim s Income tax charge (25,455) (22,674)
HEmemElas Other comprehensive income (1,091) 186
EHEBWE Total comprehensive income 141,343 142,894
SR E IR IR R 2 E  Total comprehensive income allocated to
P non-controlling interests 84,753 83,248
TR F IR IR RS AME  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 22,981 22,981
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RBATINKRE &) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RERERYPE Summarised statement of cash flows
—_E—= —E——fF
FonE Fiyta 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEIHELENRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
WEEREENIRE Cash generated from operations 195,598 190,448
BERFE Interests paid (88,456) (100,017)
B AEH Income tax paid (28,095) (44,584)
SE R EA MRS R Net cash generated from operating activities 79,047 45,847
REESFRAR ST Net cash used in investing activities (118,283) (115,540)
MEEHEANIE S FE Net cash generated from financing activities 7,031 29,895

BEREESZEYNRLSE Net decrease in cash and cash

equivalents (32,205) (39,798)
FUNRESRREEED Cash, cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 140,421 179,972
ReRRSEEBMER Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash
(B18), ks equivalents (553) 247
FRORENIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year 107,663 140,421
ERAEREARNRE 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD
REEBBRERNSTELT ¢ The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as
follows:
rEH
Group
=F—= —E—_fF
2013 2012
AR¥EFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
/NG Associates 2,076,063 1,887,517
BEDE Joint ventures 2,310,629 2,410,774
R+-_A=+—H At 31 December 4,386,692 4,298,291
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RIS REROSEMAT

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows:
AEH
Group
—B—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AREFIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A /N] Associates 245,503 131,873
aRbE Joint ventures 280,870 345,172
R+—_A=+—H At 31 December 526,373 477,045
(a) REEQATNERE (@) Investment in associates
rEE
Group
—E—= —ET——F
2013 2012
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG At beginning of year 1,887,517 1,521,992
EE Capital injection 8,890 73,730
B 78 <+ A 6 B Transfer from prepayment - 40,300
ELGTEINGIE: B Transfer from subsidiaries = 248,923
[EAEdS Dividends received (34,464) (127,079)
EREAHHESFERE  Transfer to available-for-sale financial
(Ht5#19) assets (Note 19) (15,000) =
JE{GER N A B IEIERR AL Share of reserve of an associate arising
R B MEENREM  from its transactions with non-
(#1:30) controlling interests (Note 30) (17,299) (5,196)
JEIRINEE ST E = %A Share of currency translation differences 1,241 9,268
& Disposals - (6,294)
FE(E—EEE 2 A RIEEM  Share of an associate’s other
2HEWE (H7230) comprehensive income (Note 30) (325) =
FEAR R & N R E Share of profit of associates 245,503 131,873
FR At end of year 2,076,063 1,887,517
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15 FRAEZEAERMNEE &) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REE NTINIRE (&) (a) Investment in associates (continued)
UTEHINR-_E—=F+=_A8 Set out below are the associates of the Group
T+ HESRAULEEEE as at 31 December 2013, which, in the opinion
KB AN EFE AN T] o |5l Rh of the directors, are material to the Group. The
NABEHETBRAKIRE associates as listed below have share capital
BEEBAASERE MKk consisting solely of ordinary shares, which
SMMAAER AR T EE M, - are held directly by the Group; the country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal
place of business.
R-E—=ZFR T — —FR Nature of material investment in associates in
BARMEBEAKRENE - 2013 and 2012:
RN e
FMRILER EREDL
Place of business/ % of PBIEME TELE
1. £ country of EER ownership  Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity incorporation Type of legal entity interest relationship  method
RERS FE BREFLA 10% s Ea
Wuhan Tianma PRC Limited liability company Note 1 Equity
it E HE NGNS 22.35% B2 R
AVIC Real Estate PRC ) Note 2 Equity
Joint stock company
(listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange)
KHD Humboldt Wedag International ~ {2Ei R AR(RNEERE 20%  fffEE3 s
AG ([KHDJ) Germany BHER BT LEM) Note 3 Equity
KHD Humboldt Wedag International Joint stock company
AG (“KHD") (listed on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange)
i1 RERSFENFRERFEERRE Note 1: Wuhan Tianma is principally engaged in manufacturing
TR(IBRERS RRGBETRA and sale of liquid crystal displays (“LCD”) and liquid
(MRBETERA]) - NERSART crystal modules (“LCM”). Wuhan Tianma is a limited
#=ANRIEFE ([P ])FEMEKZHE liability company incorporated in the People’s Republic
RAr - ZREASEMFRERSR of China (the “PRC”). Although the Group holds less
ELIR20% - AREBMBZEREXRSE than 20% of the equity interest in Wuhan Tianma,
EESMBESHEEOE TER the Group exercises significant influence by virtue of
AITEEARE S - WHESHRZ its contractual right to appoint two directors to the
RGBS RASEBERHIRR « Bt - board of directors of Wuhan Tianma and has the
ZIREWE D FREENT] o power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of Wuhan Tianma. Consequently, this
investment has been classified as an associate.
Ko : At EREEME R YESER Note 2: AVIC Real Estate provides real estate development
o BT - Ak - FE - K and property management services. It develops its
L= AMNRIREEH R FRE R - business in China’s southwest, northwest, central-
south, the Yangtze River Delta and Huan Bohai region.
B15#3 © KHDAKJRIT ¥R B HER kRS Note 3:  KHD is an equipment supplier and service company

DA o & E RKHD# 7E BUM & X B
MmishERAEENKETIIZAR AL
(TEPC) BR7577 T AL 5K AE B M2 1L
REEINIORETR o
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for cement industry. Investment in KHD is strategic for
the Group’s expanding the cement engineering project
contracting (“EPC”) services in the European and the
America market and provides an access to overseas
cement businesses.
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16 FERESZEARNRE®)

(a)

REBEQATHRE(E)
R=ZE—ZF+_-_A=+—
B N&EBRFMERSD
BRARI(ERFIELERSZAT E
M EENAREBEERARR
904,963,000 T(=ZZF—=4F : A
R #997,397,0007T) °

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 -
REBRKHD (ER A R E &
HFRGFLET) RN AR BER
AR #538,963,000C(=ZFE—=
F . AR¥387,782,0007T) °

HiRBR/IARE - HRGH I
BEMIHWRE o

48 R R OB 2 2 A M 25
BRIMRARLE -

BENREENHE
ATEINRERFRAERIEA
A ENBE -

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a)

Investment in associates (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in AVIC Real Estate Co., Ltd,
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
was RMB904,963,000 (2012: RMB997,397,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in KHD, which is listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, was RMB538,963,000
(2012: RMB387,782,000).

Other companies are private company and there is
no quoted market price available for their shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the associates.

Summarised financial information for associates
Set out below is the summarised financial
information of Wuhan Tianma which is accounted
for using the equity method.
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15 FRAEZEAERMNEE &) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REEATRNWREE) (a) Investment in associates (continued)
BEBEXHE Summarised balance sheet
—_E—= T
REXS Wuhan Tianma 2013 2012
AR¥TFT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE Current
He MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 199,200 187,194
HnE&E (T eIEIR$ ) Other current assets (excluding cash) 2,390,440 1,470,560
mEEESE Total current assets 2,589,640 1,657,754
eHMAaBE(TeiEEs Financial liabilities (excluding trade
FERRIR) payables) 399,980 30,910
HEmnshaE(aEE 5  Other current liabilities (including trade
FERTFRIE) payables) 1,642,406 1,373,998
mEBREeRE Total current Liabilities 2,042,386 1,404,908
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 3,342,082 3,721,455
TRLAE Financial liabilities 2,210,020 2,400,000
HfmIEmsas Other non-current liabilities 103,123 140,690
FRBREAE Total non-current liabilities 2,313,143 2,540,690
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15 fFEAEZEARNKRE &)

(a)

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

NEEE N TINRE (EZ) (a) Investment in associates (continued)
ZERAREZZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—E—= —E——4F
REXS Wuhan Tianma 2013 2012
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 5,118,364 2,462,098
e L EH Depreciation and amortisation 14,082 8,297
BB YA Finance income 3,277 4,292
MERY Finance expense (164,235) (168,810)
BRFTSBLANER] (&)  Profit/(loss) before income tax 121,185 (144,767)
Frisfi (), H& Income tax (charge)/credit (47,493) 39,558
REERF(EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 73,692 (105,209)
B 2wl Other comprehensive income = -
EEAK R Total comprehensive income 73,692 (105,209)
B & K B WE AL B Dividends received from Wuhan Tianma - =

FIT 2 5 84 75 B L 2 B R £R B0
REXRGRaNREENHER

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in Wuhan Tianma:

—g—= —E——F

REXE Wuhan Tianma 2013 2012
AREFT AR TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FHEEFEAE Net assets at beginning of the year 1,433,611 1,427,710

AELHEF,(E8) Profit/(Loss) for the year 73,692 (105,209)
EE Capital injection 68,890 111,110
HAREEFE Closing net assets 1,576,193 1,433,611

REERFHER Interest in Wuhan Tianma
ZE=F :10% : (2013: 10%; 2012: 10%)

ZE—ZF 10%) 157,619 143,361
BREE Carrying value 157,619 143,361
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15 FRHEZEARNKRE ) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REEATRNWREE) (a) Investment in associates (continued)
VAT &5 51] HR i it 25 BR R A 2R A Set out below is the summarised financial
RHBEERBE - information of AVIC Real Estate which is

accounted for using the equity method.

BEEBEXMZ Summarised balance sheet
—E—= —E——F
o i 3th AVIC Real Estate 2013 2012
AR¥TFor AR Tr
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE Current
Re RIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,393,211 1,436,049
Hpymsh&E(ReFEER 4 ) Other current assets (excluding cash) 11,326,179 8,309,031
MEEERE Total current assets 12,719,390 9,745,080

TRIBE(TRIEE SEN  Financial liabilities (excluding trade

FIA) payables) 1,964,700 1,840,000
HimBAaE(8iES5  Other current liabilities (including trade

R FRIE) payables) 6,209,421 5,485,932
mEaEesE Total current Liabilities 8,174,121 7,325,932
IERE Non-current
BE Assets 4,998,657 4,681,064
STRBEE Financial liabilities 4,923,127 2,593,621
HEMIERESBE Other non-current liabilities 508,036 471,031
R BGERE Total non-current liabilities 5,431,163 3,064,652
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15 fFEAEZEARNKRE &)

(@ REEXANREE)

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates (continued)

ZERAREZZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—E—= —E——4F
Fh fi 3t 2 AVIC Real Estate 2013 2012
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 6,224,574 4,073,868
e L EH Depreciation and amortisation 28,007 19,433
A WA Finance income 6,654 7,119
RE R Finance expense (271,329) (220,939)
BR T8 BL AT 2 A Profit before income tax 740,996 677,886
Fri8fif X Income tax charge (241,570) (242,390)
REERF Profit for the year 499,426 435,496
Hih 2 HEEE Other comprehensive loss (1,452) (111)
S HEAW S Total comprehensive income 497,974 435,385
B it 2 WER R AR B Dividends received from AVIC Real
Estate 14,909 16,767
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15 fFAEZZEARNKRE &)

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) REZELATNKREE) (a) Investment in associates (continued)
DEMAFFRGE (&) Summarised statement of comprehensive income
(continued)
FrE5FEERSEEANEBR Reconciliation of the summarised financial
PR b E A v O BR TN (B O TR information presented to the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in AVIC Real Estate:
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
ARB¥Fir AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
FNEEFEE Net assets at beginning of the year 4,035,560 3,399,817
REF @ Profit for the year 499,426 435,496
Hfh 2 mEEE Other comprehensive loss (1,452) (111)
AE Capital injection 245,500 402,777
B IEIERG IS R AE T 2 5 Transaction with non-controlling interests (480,764) (129,776)
HEES Special fund 1,687 2,377
8 Dividends (187,194) (75,020)
HAREEFE Closing net assets 4,112,763 4,035,560
B FEIEIRAR R Less: non-controlling interests (871,197)  (1,115,513)
it EEREE A Net assets attributable to owners of
EEEESE AVIC Real Estate 3,241,566 2,920,047
Rt ENER Interest in AVIC Real Estate
ZE—=F :2235%:: (20183: 22.35%; 2012: 22.35%)
T —F :22.35%) 724,490 652,631
REE Carrying value 724,490 652,631
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15 FHERZEIARNKRE®2) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REEATRNWREE) (@) Investment in associates (continued)
AT # 5 KHD£R FA #2505 A BR B9 Set out below is the summarised financial
B ERBE - information of KHD which is accounted for using

the equity method.

BEBEXHZE Summarised balance sheet
—_E—= —E—_F
KHD KHD 2013 2012
ARB¥ETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE Current
B MIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,920,932 2,350,845
HinE&aE(TaiER4E) Other current assets (excluding cash) 1,469,856 1,127,758
MEEEBE Total current assets 3,390,788 3,478,603
BB ELAR Total current liabilities 1,349,760 1,348,333
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 129,028 145,259
EmB B EERE Total non-current liabilities 297,271 368,387
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15 fFEREREARNKREE) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REZELATNKREE) (a) Investment in associates (continued)

ZERALEZZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income

—E—= —E——4F

KHD KHD 2013 2012
AREFIT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

YA Revenue 2,088,916 1,759,630

s ks Depreciation and amortisation 8,133 8,584

RE WA Finance income 22,527 39,371
BB Finance expense (12,092) (19,891)

FRET BB AR R Profit before income tax 20,293 72,455

FREY Income tax charge (14,134) (14,544)

AEERF Profit for the year 6,159 57,911
HEme2mElas Other comprehensive income (2,646) (7,797)
EEAK R Total comprehensive income 3,513 50,114

B KHDUWE K iR 2 Dividends received from KHD 7,487 9,784
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15 ERARHRZEARNRE®) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REEATRNWREE) (@) Investment in associates (continued)
DEMAFFRGZE (&) Summarised statement of comprehensive income
(continued)
BT 27 BF 15 & B B B AR & [E 54 Reconciliation of the summarised financial
KHD#E i HY BR [E {8 # ¥ B information presented to the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in KHD:

=2 = —E——F

2013 2012

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FNEEFE Net assets at beginning of the year 1,907,143 1,906,205

AN g A Profit for the year 6,159 57,911

Efh 2 Other comprehensive income (2,646) (7,797)

BRI R IR R TR S Transaction with non-controlling

interests (321) (346)

g Dividends (37,550) (48,831)

HREERHE Closing net assets 1,872,785 1,907,142

R FEIERAR R Less: non-controlling interests (865) (25)

KHD# A AFE(EEEE{E Net assets attributable to owners

of KHD 1,871,920 1,907,117
RKHDAY#E = Interest in KHD
TTE—=F:20% (2013: 20%; 2012: 20%)
ZE—ZF 1 20%) 374,384 381,423
(EES Goodwill 6,860 6,860
BRHEE Carrying value 381,244 388,283
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270

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) REELENRE (b)  Investments in joint ventures
AEH
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F ) At beginning of year 2,410,774 2,216,165
AE Capital injection 25,904 19,204
g ESREEER  Transfer from available-for-sale
financial assets - 640
UeBE BB A R (K7 7£50) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 50) 3,232 =
B IR B Dividends received (339,052) (168,541)
JEAEINE KRR Share of currency translation differences 1,175 (23)
ERENE AR Transfer to subsidiaries (2,309) (882)
L& (Hat47) Disposals (Note 47) (101,732) =
(R mBEREEFE Increase in the share of net assets of
20 AVIC Vanke (i) 31,767 =
THEZSAER S  Elimination of unrealised profit from
downstream transaction - (961)
JEhEERERN Share of profit of joint ventures 280,870 345,172
FR At end of year 2,310,629 2,410,774

(i) AEEREFBETMER
B0% At - BEMEE
ERENEERE 5%
BEREMEXRBEHERA
A([&#]) REFEF40%
A fEm  ARENESS
RE-BESE - REPH
EMmMAEZERMEN X
MEREEBREREE
REL=DZ —_KREH#EHN
BRALE - Bt - FHE
MarsEkERARE
B WHAEEZE LR
EPN:

(i) The Group originally held 60% equity interests
in AVIC Vanke and is able to nominate 4
directors in the board of directors. Vanke
Enterprise Company Limited (“Vanke”), the
other shareholder, originally held 40% equity
interest and is entitled to nominate 3 directors
in the board of directors. According to the
article of association of AVIC Vanke, its financial
and operating policies shall be approved by
shareholders representing at least two thirds
of the voting rights. Therefore, AVIC Vanke is
jointly controlled by the Group and Vanke, and is
accounted for as a joint venture by the Group.
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16 FERESZEARNRE®)

(b)

REELENKRE(E)
RZZE—=FWMA+=8 " FH
=R B B R A A ([
MBI BRI S IR e R
1R & E AR A R#600,000,000
ot & A R # 400,000,000 7T ([ E
Bl xE®E HMBERBLE
KiEf & A AR #3,820,030,000
L MASEESRH4712% K
B AT AEERERER
—REERTMBERRERNEE
B NESZREAMBES o
1R IE i B B9 H AR A = AR 48
Bl BB REERREREE
REL=D 7 ZREENREH
e At - FMmBRIBEAEE -
FMBERR R BRI ERES - I
BEHAEERAELEAR - &
SERMEAFENT

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

On 12 April 2013, AVIC International Holding
Corporation (4 Efin 2% & iTBERIER A R A
a)) (“AVIC International”) and Vanke increased
the investment capital to AVIC Vanke with
RMB600,000,000 and RMB400,000,000,
respectively (the “Capital Injection”). After the
Capital Injection, the AVIC Vanke had an enlarged
registered capital of RMB3,820,030,000, and its
equity interest was owned as to 47.12% by the
Group, which allowed the Group to nominate
2 directors in the Board of Directors, followed
by 3 nominations for Vanke and 2 nominations
for AVCI International. Pursuant to the new
articles of association of AVIC Vanke, its financial
and operating policies shall be approved by
shareholders representing at least two thirds of
the voting rights. Therefore, AVIC Vanke is jointly
controlled by the Group, AVIC International and
Vanke, and continues to be accounted for as a
joint venture by the Group. The dilution gain is
calculated as follows:

—g-—=
2013
AR¥FT
RMB’000
AERIRMERERFEA Net assets attributable to owners of AVIC Vanke
EIEEEFE before the Capital Injection 3,411,744
TEMAEENPMERMAAE  The Group’s equity interests in AVIC Vanke
before the Capital Injection 60%
2,047,046
AERPMER ERFEA Net assets attributable to owners of AVIC Vanke
EiEEEFE after the Capital Injection 4,411,744
STEERNEENTHRERARE  The Group’s equity interests in AVIC Vanke after
the Capital Injection 47.12%
2,078,813
BE s A Dilution gain 31,767
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15 FRAESZZIARNERES) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

272

(b) REELENKREE) (b)
ATHINRZ=ZFE—=F+=A4
=+ HESEREHLAEEBSE
ANAEBEGERE - FHEE
PEBERETBRAEKHRAE
BEEBHASERE - MKk
MR AEEEE i -

—EZHERFT—_FREE
TEMNEAREMNEE

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group
as at 31 December 2013, which, in the opinion
of the directors, is material to the Group. The
joint venture as listed below has share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which is held
directly by the Group; the country of incorporation
or registration is also its principal place of
business.

Nature material of investment in joint venture in
2013 and 2012:

BENY
MR LB R
Place of business/ %37 BELE HERREE
BERZE country of Type of legal BERERT AL Nature of the  Measurement
Name of entity incorporation entity % of ownership interest relationship method
“E-=F =F=mas
2013 2012
HER HE N OLEA 47.12% 60% At B
AVIC Vanke PRC |z Note 1 Equity
Contractual
jointly
controlled
entities
KaEr - FMBRABRAR  =Z Note 1: AVIC Vanke is a limited liability company
REEHERBREY £ principally engaged in real estate development
HFE - R BERDE and operation, land development, construction,
EE  RERBHRESE - hotel and property management, investment
and consultation services etc.
FiEaEt¥ARILARA  HE All joint ventures are private companies and there is
DI ETISIRIE © no quoted market price available for their shares.
REBBRESEDER THFEWE - The Group has the following commitments relating
to its joint ventures.
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E—= —E—F
2013 2012
AREFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHEFEE Guarantees in respect of mortgage
BB K ER facilities for certain purchasers 60,879 54,811
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15 fFEAEZEARNKRE &) 15

(b)

REELENREE)
MEEASENGELEMNER
BRMHARIE -

THSI P HERERAERAA
REBI S ERBE -

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the joint venture.

Set out below is the summarised financial
information of AVIC Vanke which is accounted for
using the equity method.

Summarised balance sheet

BEBEXHE

—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FE Current
He hkIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,218,226 1,528,296
EingEE (T eHEIR4) Other current assets (excluding cash) 16,476,865 5,620,798
mEEESE Total current assets 18,695,091 7,149,094

SRBE(TEIEZ ZER  Financial liabilities (excluding trade

RIE) payables) 2,377,960 1,852,000
HEmrsaE(aiEg 5 Other current liabilities (including trade

FFRIE) payables) 9,554,158 6,207,142
mEN A BB Total current Liabilities 11,932,118 8,059,142
FERE Non-current
BiE Assets 253,165 6,600,603
SRBE Financial liabilities 1,250,000 888,800
EMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities 3,433 6,463
EmB B EERE Total non-current liabilities 1,253,433 895,263
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15 FRHEZEARNKRE ) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) REELEMNKREE) (b) Investments in joint ventures (continued)
ZERALEZZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AREFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 6,770,615 6,081,334
e Ny Depreciation and amortisation 762 1,439
AR A Finance income 35,459 215,797
B E ST Finance expense (18,772) (193,187)
BR T B8 B R Profit before income tax 1,195,580 1,433,578
R8RS Income tax charge (386,141) (553,355)
5 B3R F Profit for the year 809,439 880,223
Htt 2wk Other comprehensive income - -
2 HEA WS Total comprehensive income 809,439 880,223
B BRI ER R AR S Dividends received from AVIC Vanke 299,957 165,000
FIE2% B ERZEmAREER Reconciliation of the summarised financial
i R R O RRE B AV AR information presented to the carrying amount of

the Group’s interest in AVIC Vanke:
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15 fFEAEZEARNKRE &)

16

(b)

REE AT RE KA

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

REELENRE(E) (b) Investments in joint ventures (continued)
ZEMABRFZE () Summarised statement of comprehensive income
(Continued)
—E—= —EF——F
2013 2012
AR¥ETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHEEZRE Net assets at beginning of the year 4,795,292 4,604,910
REF @ Profit for the year 809,439 880,223
BEEARTHWEBARR Repayment of capital to owners of
BEEFEA subsidiaries (17,400) (360,084)
xE Capital injection 1,000,000 -
% & Dividends (824,626) (329,757)
HAREERE Closing net assets 5,762,705 4,795,292
W FEIERAR R Less: non-controlling interests (920,937)  (1,001,549)
P EREREE AR Net assets attributable to owners of
BEERE AVIC Vanke 4,841,768 3,793,743
REEDERNER Interest in joint venture

R F 147 12%

—TE—TF : 60%)

(2013: 47.12%; 2012: 60%)

2,281,441 2,276,246

AREE

Carrying value 2,281,441 2,276,246

16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES-

COMPANY
P NN
Company
—ZE—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AEB¥FT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
WE IR Investments at cost:
— _Em ARG - shares in listed companies 288,087 288,087
—JF TR AE — unlisted equity interests 10,111 10,111
298,198 298,198
R—E—=Z=F+-_A=Z+—H ' £ As at 31 December 2013, the market value of shares in
MBEARAROCOTMEINRARE listed associates approximated RMB904,963,000 (2012:
904,963,000 L (ZE—Z=F : ARM RMB997,397,000).

997,397,0007T) °
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16 REZEQTINKRE—ERQT(E) 16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES-
COMPANY (continued)

ﬁé:%—;iﬂ—;ﬂ Ejl_/E' NN As at 31 December 2013, the Company had direct
RTIEEE A RS B interests in the following associates:
TEER/
EMELRE S
HMARL/ R RS FEfL R Principal activities/
NS Date of incorporation/ Attributable TEER place of incorporation
Name of associate establishment equity interest Type of legal entity and operation
“§-=f -T-CFf
2013 2012
RYIF R AR EER A —W\RET-ATER 50% 50% EREMFAHA SUERHERS
CASTIC-SMP Machinery 15 November 1986 Limited liabilty company ~ $Efki -
Corporation Limited Manufacture and sales of
dry cleaning machines,
PRC
AIRETREHERAR —ANE-RATLH 30% 30% BEREMFARF SEREE AN
Shenzhen Shenrong Engineering 17 January 1989 Limited liability company ~ Manufacture and sales of
Plastics Co., Ltd. plastic casings, PRC
APRHERTREERAR —TRRF-_A-T/A 39.51% 3951% FRELAR YFBRANHE  RER
(g ]) 26 February 2005 Limited liablity company ~ $4%& + =
Shenzhen CAERO Digital Display Research and development
Inc. (‘CAERQ") and sales of digital
displays, PRC
PRME —W\RERAZTAA 22.35% 22.35% BRABRAA NEREREE RS
AVIC Real Estate 29 May 1985 (RIERMLHRE) TEREEEE &

Joint Stock Company Property developing and
(Listed on the Shenzhen  construction, investment,
Stock Exchange) retailing and hotel

operation, PRC
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17 REELEMNKRE—AXRQT 17 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES-
COMPANY
PN
Company
—E—= —ET——F
2013 2012
ARHTF T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE R Investments at cost:
F1) At beginning of year 2,385,857 -
Jlogis3 Acquisition - 2,385,857
HE Disposals (14,448) -
FR At end of year 2,371,409 2,385,857
R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H ' ARQ7 As at 31 December 2013, the Company had direct
RTIEGEtEREEEEER interests in the following joint venture:
IBER/
AR R E
Principal activities/
HMEL/RIAH e place of
RELELR Date of incorporation/ Attributable HfEA TEER incorporation
Name of joint venture establishment equity interest Registered Capital ~ Type of legal entity  and operation
—E-=f —Z--f
2013 2012
miER ZZEtE=ATAA 47.12% 60% ARH38200300007 RAFIARAHEE NERRRRE 4
AVIC Vanke 15 March 2007 RMB3,820,030,000  Contractual jointly Property development
controlled entities and construction,
PRC
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18 RERI/ENESHMITAE 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
ANEF : The Group:
R-EB—=%5+-H=+—H At 31 December 2013
BE WNiEEEEBEXRAH Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
EXR T AfHE
PEW R ERMIA CHEE @ct
Available-
Derivative for-sale
Loans and financial financial
receivables instruments assets Total
ABBEFT AEEFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets

(K1i19) (Note 19) - - 291,090 291,090
TES@MTA Derivative financial instruments

(Htet26) (Note 26) = 5,405 - 5,405
B 5 N E A EWEIR Trade and other receivables

(TBEEECRERE) excluding non-financial assets 7,146,256 = - 7,146,256
EIRIRITIE 3R (H75227)  Pledged bank deposits (Note 27) 641,426 = - 641,426
Be RIREFEY Cash and cash equivalents (Note 28)

(K1:£28) 4,802,843 - - 4,802,843
HEt Total 12,590,525 5,405 291,000 12,887,020
BIE WS EERERAE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet

HihSm

=Ly

BRI

Other financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

B (Ha232) Borrowings (Note 32) 18,933,887
B 5 REMERNRIE Trade and other payables excluding

(TefEEemas) non-financial liabilities 7,855,269
Hu3emeha&(#235) Other non-current liabilities (Note 35) 956,152
st Total 27,745,308
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18

BRERTENEMIA(E) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
RER - (2) The Group: (continued)
R=-—B——-H+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012
BE  Wts BEREXIE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
AfHE
T4 CHEE
BRR £®MIE Available-
FEWFIE  Derivative for-sale
Loans and financial financial st
receivables instruments assets Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AN ESREE Available-for-sale
financial assets - - 259,819 259,819
PTEEMTE Derivative financial instruments - 3,110 - 3,110
B 5 K EAME R FE Trade and other receivables
(TBEIESREE) excluding non-financial assets 7,658,804 - - 7,658,804
IR TIER Pledged bank deposits 510,563 - - 510,563
HERIEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,038,225 - - 4,038,225
=t Total 12,207,592 3,110 259,819 12,470,521
BE  WiGseEEBEXAE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
Efh<
BE®
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARETFT
RMB’000
& Borrowings 14,606,566
5 N EAMER IR Trade and other payables excluding
(TREESREE) non-financial liabilities 7,143,879
HipIEmEasE Other non-current liabilities 1,202,424
HEt Total 22,952,869
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18 RERSIENERMIAE %) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
P /N S The Company:
R=B-—Z=Z5+=ZH=+—H At 31 December 2013
BE  WEEBEXAE Assets as per balance sheet
At &
ERMEE
BRR Available-
PEURFRIE for-sale
Loans and financial st
receivables assets Total
AR¥FT ARHEFT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AP ESREE Available-for-sale financial
(K15£19) assets (Note 19) - 15,224 15,224
A E U 708 K Y A% 8. Other receivables and
(Hiat24) dividend receivables
(Note 24) 797,762 - 797,762
B RIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
(H1iz28) (Note 28) 206,467 = 206,467
=t Total 1,004,229 15,224 1,019,453
BE WEEBEXRAE Liabilities as per balance sheet
Hih & m
=i tin)
B A
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARKETFT
RMB’000
B (H75232) Borrowings (Note 32) 2,048,000
B 5 & E M FER R Trade and other payables excluding
(TefEEsmas) non-financial liabilities 118,142
HiIEms & & (H7735) Other non-current liabilities (Note 35) 800,000
@t Total 2,966,142
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18 RERI/EHNESMIE(2) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
AT (&) The Company: (continued)
R=B-—Z=F+=ZH=+—H At 31 December 2012
BE  WEEBEXAE Assets as per balance sheet
AR E
SREE
Bk Available-
FEWRIE for-sale
Loans and financial 4t
receivables assets Total
ARETFT AEREFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AN ESREE Available-for-sale
financial assets - 1,400 1,400
B G Other receivables and
dividend receivables 666,609 - 666,609
He MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 81,117 = 81,117
1A=t Total 747,726 1,400 749,126
BlE  WEEBEXIEH Liabilities as per balance sheet
Efh st
=N
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR TT
RMB’000
BN Borrowings 1,800,000
B 5 LEMER A Trade and other payables excluding
(TpiEELREE) non-financial liabilities 278,396
HEM3EmeaE Other non-current liabilities 1,050,000
Rt Total 3,128,396
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19 T§mHHEELSREE 19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
S ! PN
Group Company
—E-=£ —ZE——F —E-=E —E—CfF
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARETT  AREFT  ARBETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RFYNS LB EEZ ST Investments in listed A shares of

LIRARARIMRE companies listed on Shenzhen
or Shanghai Stock
Exchange 26,958 23,449 - -
RIELETRARBRB IR E Investments in shares of unlisted
companies 264,132 236,370 15,224 1,400
291,090 259,819 15,224 1,400
FraEAHEESmEEUARKESIE - All available-for-sale financial assets are all denominated
in RMB.
FAOHREECHEENSENOT ¢ The movements of available-for-sale financial assets

during the year are as follows:

ARE ARH
Group Company
—g-=§ -E--f -B-=§ C-E-=fF
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

L)) At beginning of year 259,819 205,046 1,400 1,400
BREGHERZE Transfer o investments accounted
ARRRE for using the equity method = (640) - s

A& AT (#1:215)  Transfer from investments
accounted for using the equity

method (Note 15) 15,000 - - -

NE Additions 14,891 85,633 13,824 -

HE(HiF471a) Disposals (Note 47(d)) (9,484) (30,403) = 5
AR AR EEEE - Fair value change charged to

iESiEA equity, gross of tax 10,864 183 - -

FR At end of year 291,090 259,819 15,224 1,400
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20 EEMRSESB 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
rEE b/
Group Company
—E-=& —E—fF —E-=& —E——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARHEFT ANEEFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&=5)
(Restated)
BREFIBEE Deferred tax assets:
— BT —EA%EE - to be recovered after more than
12 months (306,126) (249,871) - -
-+ EAREE - to be recovered within 12
months (5,509) (14,928) - -
(311,635) (264,799) - -
EERBEAE Deferred tax liabilities:
BB+ _AA%EE ~ to be settled after more than 12
months 624,760 539,245 - -
ERFIEEE - 38 Deferred tax liabilities - net 313,125 274,446 - =
IEIEFT SRR IEAFEE T ¢ The net movements on the deferred income tax account

are as follows:

AEE N
Group Company
—ET =& —E—CfF T =F —E-——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARETFT  AREFT ARBBFT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(=51
(Restated)
=) At beginning of year 274,446 292,431 - -
N EE DN Credited to income statement
(Hiz43) (Note 43) (37,822) (22,635) - =
EEREM2ERET Tax charged directly to other
MR MFIE comprehensive income 6,174 1,349 = =
HEWBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - 3,405 = =
W B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Bi3250) (Note 50) 70,327 (104) - =
ER At end of year 313,125 274,446
PTG BiF X PAM 5T 435+t The income tax charge is detailed in Note 43.
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20 EILEFFBF (&) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
FRELEHRBEERBE(TES L ATRN The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
B — R NSRS s T during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are
as follows:
RIERIBEE : Deferred tax assets:
¥ |
Group
Eige
g5% HREKR
Ak AR
SERE Bilgf
FERR Salaries
Provision for payable and
impairment retirement
losseson ~ RERERE and other
trade  Provision HEFE  BRER  ARBER suplmentdl  EREX  EAfFE
and other ~ for inventory BE Tax  Government  Unrealised benefit  Accrued Interest Ht &
receivables obsolescence  Provisions losses grants profits  obligations  expenses payable Others Total
NRETL  ARETT AREFrT ARETr AREFr AREFr ARETr ARETL AREFr ARETL ARETL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
R-E-ZE At1 January 2012, as restated
-A-R &85 (37,869 (27.56) 2010) (3469) (148%9) (30.466) (1782 (27,369 (3684 (38,64 (235,063
(3A)/ABBkER  (Credited)/charged to the income
statement (13,546) 7,202 220) (31520 [4873) 21517 (02 2.9% 1518 B116 1,269
ERARMRE Tax credited dirctly o other
e comprehensive income - - - - - - (40g) - - - {40)
WE-RMEAR Acouisiton of a Subsiolary (104) - - - - - - - - - (104
HEHEAR Disposals of subsidaries 6,989 - 20 - - - - - 2166 - 11445
H8-Z%
tZR=t-H At 31 December 2012 (44523 20,360) = (66214) (3772) (32009 (3249 {31 = (14928 (265412
(3))/MBEkEAR  (Oredted)/charged to the income
statement (23,163 (14,532 - 481 1015 (I7473) 9 (1,13%) - 1752 #8373
ERAR2E Tax crecited directyto other
e comprehensive income - - - - - - 515 - - - 515
WEMBARHa#50)  Acguistion of subsicaries Note 50 243 - - - - - - - - - ]
H-§-z%
tZR=t-B At 31 December 2013 (67,929) (34.882) - (61,342) [36,757) [69,475) (244 (09 - (18,178) (313513

284
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20 EEFFBH(&) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
BEEBIREME : Deferred tax liabilities:
pis-1C)
Group
qftLe
SHEEN  EHUEN BihzE
MER BELR RENE
W& BELE  REMEN  Transfer of
MEHE  Fairvalue  Fairvalie ALEEED owner-
it gains of gainonassets  Fairvalue  occupied AED
Accelerated ~available-for- acquiredfrom  changeon  property to HERA
tax  sale financial business investment investment Unrecognised Eh
depreciation assets  acquisition  properties  properties financial cost Total
ANRETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RZE-%-5-8 £E3) At 1 January 2012, as restated 128 1,801 314,112 176,308 34,584 526 527,514
(3tA)/ Mk akER (Credited)/charged to income statement (129 580 (5,515) 23,69 - - 18630
EREEMZERETRNHE Tax charged directly to other comprehensive
income - 46 - - 1,708 - 1,754
HERBART Disposls of subsidiaries - - (8040 - = - (8,040
RZB-ZE+ZF=1-A At 31 December 2012 - 2421 300,617 199,99 36,292 526 539,858
HA/ (k) BhER Credited/{charged) to income statement - (3,792) (5,117) 15,792 - 3,668 10,551
BREEMAANENRNTE Tax charged directly to other comprehensive
income - 2,716 - - 2,943 = 5,659
WEHB AR Wis0) Acqistion of subsiciartes (Note 50) - - 70,570 - - - 70,570
R-E-=E+-A=t-A At 31 December 2013 = 1,351 366,070 215,788 39,235 4194 626,638

ARREBEANEERENAEERT

The potential deferred tax assets not recognised in the

HEER accounts were related to:
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥EFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEE T IE B Tax losses carried forward 1,691,242 1,424,425
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20

EIEFTSH(2)
EEBEAM : (48)

R EFEBE - RERRBEE
181 B 45 8 R oA 95 K 2R L 4F A0 FE R B
K

70 AT TR R A SR AT BT BE G B RR B st A
L L AT B9 A L st AT 0 A% 5 18 K B B 1
ZR2  RUBERELEASHEE

R-_TE—=%F+-_HA=+—8 R
MEEEMEENBAEGERARYE
1,878000 T (ZE ——_F : AR¥
613,0007C) R — R A H B - WL iE
B3 o

B AR S T TR B R AR B A R B AR IR AT B TR
BEZHAWT :

20

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

According to the new Corporate Income Tax Law, tax
losses of the PRC companies can be carried forward to
offset future assessable profit for a period of 5 years.

Deferred income tax assets had not been recognised as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be made available
to utilise the deductible tax losses and temporary
differences in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2013, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities balances of RMB1,878,000 (2012:
RMB613,000) were related to the same company and
were offset against each other.

The expiry date of deferred tax assets not accounted for
in respect of tax losses carried forward is as follows:

—E—= —F——fF

2013 2012

AEB¥FT AR TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F AR H Expire within 1 year 336,743 87,461
—EWFERNEIER Expire in 1-2 years 223,216 336,743
M2 =F RN E|H Expire in 2-3 years 487,923 223,216
— Z2F RN EEA Expire in 3-4 years 135,261 487,923
Oz hAFERNE|EA Expire in 4-5 years 508,099 289,082
1,691,242 1,424,425
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21

HiIEREEE 21 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
PN | VNN
Group Company
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —T—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ABEFT AREFT AREF AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
G ENG AR Prepayment for acquisition a
subsidiary (a) 1,876,460 - = 40,000
B =UNEEE Prepayment for the establishment
of subsidiaries 6,192 120,756 - -
BEREANR Prepayment for purchase of
equipments 97,314 115,850 - =
ELEBRBENR Prepaid for advertisement fee 15,296 6,801 - -
Hif Others 50,904 66,509 - -
2,046,166 309,916 - 40,000

(a) RZE—=Z%F+A+—H &
NRAEEZ2ENBEB R FAVC
International Engineering Holdings
Pte. Ltd.([AVIC Engineering])i&
AZEFMERR(EARAE
BB 1% - BlEurope Engineering
Holdings Pte. Ltd. * Europe Project
Management Pte. Ltd. } Europe
Technology Investment Pte. Ltd.)
R TE R B ) & B AR SR U BB KHD AR (5
BB ZA) - % & FRE AKHDAR
PRIFERIFR o

On 11 October 2013, AVIC International
Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“AVIC
Engineering”), a indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, together with the Singapore
Companies (essentially affiliated entities of the
Company, named Europe Engineering Holdings
Pte. Ltd., Europe Project Management Pte. Ltd.,
Europe Technology Investment Pte. Ltd.) had
decided to launch an offer to acquire shares of
KHD from the then shareholders. The amount
represent the prepayment for purchasing of KHD
shares.
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22

288

FE 22 INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT AERETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE LKA Inventories — cost
R AT H Raw materials 634,659 526,091
TERE Work-in-progress 394,581 316,045
SURK TR Finished goods 3,751,169 3,099,566

4,780,409 3,941,702

B T R OB

Less: provision for write-down of

inventories
B Raw materials (50,786) (34,965)
TR Work-in-progress (9,800) (6,122)
RIEY Finished goods (104,953) (75,558)
(165,539) (116,645)
FE—FE Inventories — net 4,614,870 3,825,057
HBRAHFAZ LI AHEKANFEKAR The cost of inventories recognised as expense
B AR #26,537,685000 (=T — = and included in cost of sales amounted to
£ AR#25,123,249,0007T) ° RMB26,537,685,000 (2012: RMB25,123,249,000).
AEEFBER T —=FHMERBEFE The Group had written-off provision of RMB22,527,000
EE M B A R¥22 527,000 (=& in 2013 (2012: RMB29,559,000) that was made in prior
—— 4 : AR¥29,559,0007T) - AEE years. The Group has sold all the related goods and
BEHEMBEHEBER  HeBEit Al the amount has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the

MR HEKAK] -

income statement.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 REDYE 23 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
rEH
Group
—E—= —E-—F
2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEERE SR Properties under development expected to
BERERAPYE be completed:
RIEFLLRIETA Within the normal operating cycle included
MBEE under current assets 2,317,086 1,256,078
EHRBTE Balance comprises:
FREERAR Construction cost 1,839,558 711,373
(s PR AEE Land use rights 395,038 514,460
N Interest capitalised 82,490 30,245

2,317,086 1,256,078

TEE
Group
—E—= —E-—ZF
2013 2012
AREFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R 218 B A4 E To be recovered within 12 months 590,803 =
15 AR E1 218 B 1 Uk [a) To be recovered after more than 12 months 1,726,283 1,256,078
2,317,086 1,256,078
RZZFE—=F+=-A=+—8"  &FR As at 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings were
TEXARASERAFESAEARR secured by the properties under development of the
320,629,0007C(ZF — =4 : H)HNEE Group with net book value totalling RMB320,629,000
YRR o IR E R FF B E M (2012: Nil). Details of the secured borrowings are in Note
32 32.
EE_T——FFEERNLEEERS The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount
SREMERNEEAE10.99%(ZF— 5 - of interest incurred eligible for capitalisation in 2013
10.8%) ° FREERTYEHIANHE o was 10.99% (2012: 10.8%). The properties under

development are all located in the PRC.
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24 EBFRKHMEWIE 24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
bS] YN
Group Company
—E-—=f —Z-—-F —E-=F —T——fF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT ARETF AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B S RElzE Trade receivables 5,034,247 4,843 417 - =
B UG RE R Q) Less: provision for impairment of
receivables (a) (158,970) (91,076) - -
2 S EIE — 55 Trade receivables - net 4,875,277 4,752,341 - =
H A YK () Other receivables (o) 1,364,613 2,195,818 743,367 660,709
EBEE«C) Note receivable (c) 529,978 384,993 - -
Tt EREAR Prepayments to suppliers 2,989,918 1,789,545 = -
HAREIAE B Excess of input over output
value added tax 480,376 465,776 - -
FEUFI S, Interest receivables 21,255 7,365 - -
FEUAR S, Dividend receivables 79,892 85,578 54,395 5,900
g Deposits 247,169 232,709 - -
REMEERKHIEQ) Financial lease receivables (d) 28,072 = = -
10,616,550 9,914,125 797,762 666,609
& FERNEREE Less: non-current portion
—EREMALER T — Excess of input over output
value added tax (106,074) (205,860) - -
~%e - Deposits (84,942) (133,036) - -
—BoRRE - Trade receivables (25,975) (45,975) - =
—EE SR FIE() - Financial lease receivables (d) (28,072) < = -
—Hit - Others (2,977) (3,729) = =
(248,040) (388,600) - -
ENEREE 7 Current portion 10,368,510 9,525,525 797,762 666,609
RE=Z==FHL A=+—H ' =T As at 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings
&R E A R#35,885,00070 (= were secured by notes receivable with book value of
TE-——FF+-A=1+—H: B)NEKE RMB35,885,000 (31 December 2012: Nil). Details of the
BEER - FHECEEERNFEIHIR secured borrowings are in Note 32.
FMI5E32 ©
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24 EBIZNHEHMEWRIEZ) 24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
AEBEMHENERAERA—EAZ The Group’s credit term on sale of goods is from
+={@A - B S EWFKIAR KRR DT 1 month to 12 months. The aging analysis of trade
TS 3 receivables is as follows:
AEH
Group
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—E R Within 1 year 4,295,360 4,642,022
—EWF Between 1 and 2 years 626,132 128,377
WE=F Between 2 and 3 years 63,893 30,101
HiE =4 Over 3 years 48,862 42 917
5,034,247 4,843,417
B OREBERE Less: provision for impairment losses (158,970) (91,076)
4,875,277 4,752,341

AEEE ZRBFIEREEA NG

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables

FHE are denominated in the following currencies:
AEH
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 3,320,832 2,810,927
e usb 1,069,936 1,733,426
HEMREL LKR 249,898 119,506
(5 EUR 222,670 16,523
o] Bk 2 26 Ty 4 AED 96,248 107,348
BT HKD 20,688 8,269
Hih Others 53,975 47,418
5,034,247 4,843,417

PHERERROERAE 2013FEHE
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292

B R EMBWREE)

(a)

24 TRA

DE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
B REWRIEREREGE SN (a) Movements on the provision for impairment of
™ trade receivables are as follows:
—_E—= —ET—F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
H—A—8 At 1 January 91,076 201,215
FEMGRIE R B B Provision for receivable impairment 136,108 30,591
FERVEAT U E ZIE Uncollectible receivables written off
TSR B R UK IE during the year (60,232) (126,572)
FREMD Reversals during the year (7,982) (14,158)
R+=-—HA=+—H At 31 December 158,970 91,076

R=ZF—=%+—A=+—8 -
AR #312,205,000c(—E—=
F: ANR%14,164,0007T) 0 E
SREWFIBEBEBERRE - R
BRATER BN ERERLE
EAEH  BEZRSEBTNEEE
AIREE - WERERABA
MZSEBETIRBERE - NZ
LBt EFRUGKIBARK
107,894,000 7T A8 E i ¥ ;% 1K
o ZEEMNE FHEBGER

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables
of RMB312,205,000 (2012: RMB14,164,000)
were past due but not impaired. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. Among these
balances, trade receivables of RMB107,894,000
are collateralised by 8 sets of turbine equipments.
The aging analysis of these uncollateralised trade

BREROMTAN T - receivables is as follows:
—ZE—= T
2013 2012
ARHEFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—EWF Between 1 and 2 years 197,273 14,111
ME=F Between 2 and 3 years 6,985 53
=FHE Over 3 years 53 —
204,311 14,164
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24 ESZNKEMERIREE)

(@)

(#&)
R—E—=F+-_A=+—8"
H 5 e B A R#426,682,000
T(ZF—Z%: AR®
187,231,0007C) BJRE - RN=F
—=%#+-"RA=+—8 " B&#E%
%85 AN R #158,970,000L (=&
— 4 : AR%91,076,0007T) °
JEWFIBIRES DT

24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(@)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of
RMB426,682,000 (2012: RMB187,231,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was
RMB158,970,000 as of 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB91,076,000). The aging of these receivables
is as follows:

—E—=F T

2013 2012

AR¥FiT AREFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

—EMFNR Between 1 and 2 years 320,965 114,266
ME=FA Between 2 and 3 years 56,908 30,048
=FLAF Over 3 years 48,809 42,917
426,682 187,231

& M5 R TR (B 1R s RO 38 0 % 3 [
BEFFATHER - fF ABERA
TR RN B A B IR

R{RER - FEERBRNERASE
MWK REE - NREREY &
Fr A T EH mIERTER -

H h fE R X8 B 4R M sE51(d) BT
BEGHTHEBETHERARE
229,822,0007L(ZF—=4F : A
R #360,191,0007T) ° %2 E A
BEEE - ULFFEO%ES%ET
B WERENRERE -

The addition and reversal of provisions for
impaired receivables have been included in
administrative expenses. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

Included in other receivables were loans of
RMB229,822,000 to related parties as disclosed
in Note 51(d) (2012: RMB360,191,000). These
amounts were unsecured, bearing annual interest
rate from 0%~5% and are payable on demand.
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24 EBEFREMEBWREGE)

24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(© R ERBERITALIEZERE () Notes receivable include bank acceptance bills

FAGLES - pTan T

and commercial acceptance bills which are
analysed as follows:

AEH
Group
—B—=F —E——4fF
2013 2012
AR¥TFrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRITA IESE Bank acceptance bills 511,465 302,338
AN ES Commercial acceptance bills 18,513 82,655
529,978 384,993
BVER R 5) i WOk T8 2 H b e W 5K The carrying amount of current trade receivables
MRAESRE A A BEES - and other receivables approximated their fair
values.
(d) mERAERKIE (d)  Financial lease receivables
ME#ERE MR SEMESE N Reconciliation between the gross investment in

REZEOHEHIIMT

leases and the present value of minimum lease
payments receivable is set out below.

rEE
Group
—E—=F —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥EFr ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERIEE Gross investment in leases 52,684 =
W RERFISEEB Less: Unguaranteed residual values = 3
FEW AR E R K Minimum lease payments receivables 52,684 =
W BBEWSRIEMAE  Less: Unearned finance income related
R ARERBE to minimum lease payments
WA receivables (24,612) =
EWRIRAENFERE Present value of minimum lease
payments receivables 28,072 -
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24 BENHMEWERIEZ) 24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(d) BEHESEWTIA(E) (d) Financial lease receivables (continued)
&R 2 AT 7N & B 124 B E BR 48 R The table below analyses the Group’s gross
DI E investment in leases by relevant maturity
groupings:
—E—= —E—_4F
2013 2012
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
——FNK - Not later than 1 year 2,184 =
——FUERFA — Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 8,736 -
—RFENUE — Later than 5 years 41,764 =
52,684 -
25 EBEALY 25 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
biS-1:] N
Group Company
—E-=& —E——fF —E-=& —T—CF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT ARET ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTEE £ & KRN Contract costs incurred plus
iyl attributable profits 11,830,949 8,461,545 - -
LS HERENT Less: progress billings to date (10,508,310) (7,497,977) - =
W B Less: provision (28,644) (2,808) - =

ETPROMNEESER Net balance sheet position

FEMR for ongoing contracts 1,298,995 960,760 = =
Z5mT Presented as;
EREFEAHTIRIIE Amounts due from customers
for contract work 1,493,175 1,161,194 - -
EREFAHTREFUR Amounts due to customers
for contract work (194,180) (200,434) - -
1,298,995 960,760 - -
AEBDHMENBAEFEEERAOBEEA The Group had written-off provisions of RMB17,440,000
R¥17,440,000 (= ——4F : AR¥ (2012: RMB51,298,000) that was made in prior years.
51,298,0007T) - H4 BEE st ARFER The amount has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
[SHERMA ] - income statement.
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26 @I A 26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Ax5E YN
Group Company

“E-=% —T-CF “Z-=F —Z-CF

2013 2012 2013 2012

ARETR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

SNES #(a) Foreign exchange contracts (a) 5,405 3,110 - =
(@) HARITHEREIINES LR B ERAR (a)  The notional principal amounts of the outstanding
SR forward foreign exchange contracts are as follows:
x5E NG
Group Company
—BE-=F S—tE —E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AE¥FT ARHFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SNEA 4 Foreign exchange contracts
—BHETHBARE - Selling USD for RMB 31,400 38,400 - -
-“UARBEAZT - Buying USD with RMB - 84 - =
—-ELBUTRARK - Selling EUR for RMB 101 = = -
-UAR®E BT - Buying EUR with RMB 447 2 - _
31,948 38,484 - -
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27 ERBRITER 27 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
ETIRITERRERER - BREMNR Certain bank balances were pledged deposits which will
TEFRRERERBEEERBRRER be released upon the settlement of the repayment of the

bank loans and the use of credit amount.

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITIEFER (M £32) Collateral for bank borrowings (Note 32) 54,164 =
BEREHAENERER Guarantee deposits for issuance of
letters of credit 311,054 87,978
BITHGL EERNERTR Guarantee deposits for issuance of
bank acceptance bill 124,542 165,193
[BITIREE S WM ERTER Guarantee deposits for performance
security of construction contract 6,975 22,975
FRTEEMEMERER Guarantee deposits for construction
of pre-sale properties 140,600 -
UgBE — R B A AIMERTFE Guarantee deposits for acquisition
of a subsidiary - 216,618
EAth Others 4,091 17,799
641,426 510,563
28 HERAELEEY 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AEBFFENT0.35E=E3.33EMNRE The balance of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
MRS EBMMEHRITIT with an annual interest rate from 0.35% to 3.33% are
analysed as follows:
i NN
Group Company
—E-=f —E—F —E-=E —E-—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBEFT AREFIT ARETF AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ROIERRFERE Cash at bank and on hand 4,802,843 4,038,225 206,467 81,117
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28 HBENHELZEEBY &) 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
REBNRS MRS EEBYHNETEIN The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
T EEETIME : equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

bS] N
Group Company
—E-=F —E—CfF —E-=F —T—CfF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AEEFT AREFIT ARETF AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 3,082,790 2,551,523 200,681 74,855
e UsD 994,048 981,019 - -
BT EUR 504,637 62,126 - -
HEHREL LKR 26,566 16,877 - -
(ks e:barg s AED 25,199 45,475 - =
B HKD 21,705 24,410 5,786 6,262
Hih Others 147,898 356,795 - =
4,802,843 4,038,225 206,467 81,117
29 RAERKRGEE 29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
AERRALT
Group and Company
gt ] e
Number of share Capital
gt
NER Total LER REE
Domestic HE  Numberof  Ordinary Share @t
Shares H Shares shares shares premium Total
(F&) (F&) (F]) (AREFL) (\BEFT) (ARETFT)
(thousands) ~ (thousands)  (thousands) ~ (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)
RZE-—5-f-H As at 1 January 2012 395,709 277,658 673,367 673,367 354,513 1,027,880
ARERBARRTRA Issuance of shares for acauisition of
subsidiaries 437,265 - 437,265 437,265 940,120 1,377,385
RZE-—ZFR=F-=F  Asat 31 December 2012 and 31
+-A=t+-H December 2013 882,974 217,658 1110632 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,405,265
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30 HftbfwiE 30 OTHER RESERVES
BfEE
BRENE
e MEfKE  EfifE
SHEE  Revaluaton  EEEF
EfifhfE gain on Bft
EERS  Available- transfer Re-measure-
BES for-sale  of owner- ments S
Statutory  financial  occupied  ofpost-  HEEE
ERGE general assets propertyto employment  Currency
Capital reserve  revaluation  investment benefit  translation @t
reserve fund reserve property  obligations  differences Total
ANRETT AEEFT AREFTr AREFn  AREFT  AREFT  ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ZFEI Group
WZE-ZF-F—-BH  Balanceas at 1 January 2012,
& ﬁ? HE]) as restated 3,676,292 70,001 15,385 116,957 - (62,498) 3,816,137
—H#ﬁ‘ﬁ REER Fair value gain on available-for-sale
N EENE financial assets - = 448 = = - 448
BENFERENEY  Revaluation ga on transferof
EfflE owner-occupied property to
investment property - - - 2,337 - - 2,337
BERNELER Re-measurements of post
-employment benefit obligations - - - = (1,151) = (1,151)
EnEEE Currency translation differences = - - - - 23505 23505
HEARHFESGHTS  Transactions with non-controling
interests (4,892) - - - - - (4,892)
EEBAATRE SR  Share of reserve of an associate
BEEARSMELRS  arising fom s transactions with
e non-controlling interests (5,196) = = = = = (5,196)
AbHER Merger reserve (4,211,269) = = - - - 4211269
R-E-—F+-f Balance as at 31 December 2012,
=t-AMksE £E)  asrestated (545,069) 70,001 15,833 119,294 (1,151) (38,993) (380,075)
R-E-Z%-A-H  Balanceasat 1 January 2013
Eg ot as per above 45059 70,001 1583 119,29 (151 (38993 (380075
EFGERBEFEE  Re-measurements of post
-employment benefit obligations - - - = 2,953 = 2953
BEMEERENER  Revaluation gain on transfer of
ks owner-occupied property to
investment property = = - 4008 - - 4028
Wiﬁ‘ﬁ BEED Fair value gain on available-for-sale
DrEENE financial assets = - 5607 - - - 5,607
BEEHELREED  Recycle of fair value gains on
LrEEYE avallable-for-sale financial assets - - (5,430) - - - (5,430)
Q\Wﬁ%%%ﬁ Currency translation differences = = = = = (27,356) (27,356)
EEBLDTEMRAME Share of an associate’s other
comprehensive income (325) = = = = = (325)
BIFARFERESNHTS  Transactions with non-contraling
(//75//) interests (Note (3) (10,387) = = = = - (10,387)
TElBa N R EEIEEE  Share of reserve of an associate
BREZRFMELR  arising from fts transactions with
fiE non-controlling interests (17,299) - = = = - (17,299)
ROAERRLES Appropriation to statutory general
reserve fund - 24,083 - - - - 24,083
RZE-=F+-f
=+-RHEH Balance as at 31 December 2013 (573,070) 94,084 16,010 123,322 1,802 (66,349) (404,201)

PHERERROERAE 2013FEHE

299



R R M

Notes

to the Financial Statements

30 HFEE) OTHER RESERVES (continued)
(REHER),
EERER AR 43 B I
ATEE (Accumulated
Statutory losses)/
general Retained
reserve fund earnings
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAT] Company
R-E——F— A —HR&ER Balance as at 1 January 2012 70,001 (591,858)
NF E s A Profit for the year - 195,877
RZZTE——F+-_A=+—HHW4%H Balance as at 31 December 2012 70,001 (395,981)
REE g A Profit for the year - 449,937
RIVEERB#BAES Appropriation to statutory general
reserve fund 24,083 (24,083)
R-ZE—=F+-"A=1+—HH#%% Balance as at 31 December 2013 94,084 29,873
BEF B A RARARE B H L2 H According to the Company Law of the PRC and the
8 REFHIRMAFE » KAFIZHED R Articles of Association of the Company, when distributing
W BRSE T ERE B AT 2 3R 4T A B 10% 1 5 net profit each year, the Company shall set aside 10% of
EEBMAER (RIFZDEREELAR its net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts
AIEMIRAEEMNS0%) o BRFEHRIH for the statutory general reserve fund (except where the
BRsh - ZEETSREEMBE RS fund has reached 50% of the Company’s registered
SRERERENIK ° share capital). This reserve cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they are created and are not
distributable as cash dividend.
EEBBAES Statutory general reserve fund
BEFBEEEEN AR  AEERS In accordance with relevant laws and regulations of
BB ARRIEEBTEFEE RTEIEE the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should
KRBRRY IR &FA - BEEAFBERE make appropriations from the net profit to the reserve
HEES  BEEGRFEEMCERRER fund, discretionary surplus reserve and the enterprise
& BAREESHOFIBRMAFI10%ET expansion fund, after offsetting accumulated losses
R BEEEcHEBEZTEIMELRS0% from prior years, and before profit distributions to the
Bl BANBRBBERCEZRER shareholders. The appropriations to the reserve fund
SHFIERT BB AREEEE ° are made at 10% of the net profit until the balance of
the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
amounts of appropriations to the discretionary surplus
reserve and the enterprise expansion fund are determined
by the directors of the PRC subsidiaries.
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30

Hittf# e 2) 30 OTHER RESERVES (continued)
EEEBLABE(E) Statutory general reserve fund (continued)
EEZoH ER  HEESP AREE Upon approval from the board of directors, the reserve
BxtEEfigE s PEXRERESTAR fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
EAREESIEE - increase capital; the enterprise expansion fund can be

used to expand production or to increase capital.

(a) HFEPEAR R B 1 2 1) R 5 (a) Transaction with non-controlling interests
(i) RZE—=F A=+ () On 30 June 2013, Tianma purchased
H REUAREBARK 10% shares in its subsidiary, Tianma
1,678,000 C B H [ B A Microelectronics Korea Company Limited
Al Tianma Microelectronics (“Korea Tianma”), at a consideration of
Korea Company Limited RMB1,678,000. The effect of change in
([Korea Tianmal)&310% the ownership interests of Korea Tianma
f& 15 ° Korea TianmalE#& on the equity attributable to owners of the
BREDEHRNFANHAA Company during the year is as follows:
AR A ARGEZD
FEWNT -
AREFT
RMB’000
T IR AR RS MIR {8  Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 1,678
o PTER IR IR R AR Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling
FREE interests acquired (1,324)

(i

PRERFERM TR B#BE  Excess of consideration paid recognised

et -] within equity 354
RZEBE—=FhhA=th ()  On 29 September 2013, Engineering
B ITREAAWEENES Company purchased 10% shares in its
NEF MBI EHRZE subsidiary, AVIC Tanzania Real Estate
mARAR(EBEREZRA Company Limited (F#iEEEEEE
A E10%ED - REA AR AT (“Tanzania Company”), at
AR #1,615,0007T © HE a consideration of RMB1,615,000. The
B RAelEREER effect of change in the ownership interests
RERNEARDNGETFE of Tanzania Company on the equity
ANELERNZENT ¢ attributable to owners of the Company

during the year is as follows:

AEETF T

RMB’000

S FIEERRAR B RS HIRB  Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 1,615
W PTHE SRR AR AR R AR Y Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling

BRmE interests acquired 69
RS TERMFNEBHH  Excess of consideration paid recognised

EH within equity 1,684
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30

302

HAthf# 5 ()
AERBARS(H)
(0 HEIFRRFMER L (E)

(i)

(iv)

RZEBE—=F+A+=
B dMEBREEARAD
&) U BE EL BT B A 78 R B
BB AR AR (8
R ) B30% A% - K
Bh ARE3,123,0007T °
MEEBEEEER Y

REREARRAERIEE
ANERERHTZEMT -

30 OTHER RESERVES (continued)
Statutory general reserve fund (continued)
(@ Transaction with non-controlling interests

(continued)

(ifi) On 12 October 2013, AVIC Lutong
Company Limited purchased 30% shares
in its subsidiary, Hunan Lutong Machinery
Equipment Company Limited (573 38 i@ %
WEREAR AR (“Hunan Lutong”), at a
consideration of RMB3,123,000. The effect
of change in the ownership interests of
Hunan Lutong on the equity attributable to
owners of the Company during the year is

as follows:
AREFr
RMB’000
ST IR IR R RS BB Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 3,123
W P IEEAR AR R RS A Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling
FREE interests acquired (3,123)

RIS R AP ERH
=5

Excess of consideration paid recognised
within equity -

R-E—=%+_-A+=
B AR &K EE B
N A HRE R A Bl A 40%
BH REABEARK
42,000,000 7T ° #1RE R
BREEZEHNFALEAR
NRIE=EE ARG ER
VRSB

(iv) On 12 December 2013, the Company
purchased 40% shares in its subsidiary,
RED Company, at a consideration of
RMB42,000,000. The effect of change in
the ownership interests of RED Company
on the equity attributable to owners of the
Company during the year is as follows:

AREFT

RMB’000

S F IR IR R AIE  Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 42,000
B PTEE FEIE AR AR R A A Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling

AREAE interests acquired (33,642)
WSS HRMFTNBHEH  Excess of consideration paid recognised

ZEH within equity 8,358
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30 HiEE) 30 OTHER RESERVES (continued)
EEBHBABE (&) Statutory general reserve fund (continued)
(a)  HEIFFERRFE A Z(E) (a  Transaction with non-controlling interests
(continued)
) R-E—=F+tA=-+=H (V) On 25 July 2013, Beijing Company
B db R A U S E purchased 4% shares in its subsidiary,
NI RIUE R ERE Beijing Kaijiu Technological Development
REERA(ER]) B Co., Ltd. QLR AR ERBEREEAR])
4% Hm  RKEAARK (“Kaijiu”), at a consideration of RMB50,000.
50,0007T ° S\IAHEH % The effect of change in the ownership
HWEHRERNE A B E interests of Kaijiu on the equity attributable
mEAEAELEZNTZE to owners of the Company during the year
LU is as follows:
ARETFT
RMB’000
ST IR IR IR R AR (B  Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 50
B PTEE FEIE R AR R AE RS A Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling
FRmEE interests acquired (59)
RERERNTMRERE Excess of consideration paid recognised
=R within equity 9)
vy REZERZANTRER (vii  The excess of consideration paid
HERESS AT recognised within equity were summarised
as follows:
ARETT
RMB’000
ST IEIE IR IR S s 2818 Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 48,466
A PR IEIEARAR B 4ERS Y Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling
REE interests acquired (38,079)
WSR2 PR B Excess of consideration paid recognised
=% within equity 10,387
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31

304

KR IRAR TR 2

RZE——FENAAB » ARAAETAK
LA+ AR M2 781,674,000 7T K 7K
AR BRI IRRR 38 5 ([ K AR A AT 2R 75
1) FRMmBEIE - BM I RIE
BRAFHER AR ([FAFEY] - HHEARRD
A]35.63% R IEMARAFIRE) KL RIHE
BEaRAR([ERIEE]) - 2REA
WEZRMNBERARNEENRE - thFXK
ARB AR B A IR P ERE TR
ANR#3.47 082 5801,634,0008 A A
AINERR o

KARB AR EHFERAR R EE
EIKHREEEE  TEZERSZMA -
Wz MY BT EBEES BRI -
HMARRDNBER » KARB A B 5
BEAREF R RELE : (VBARIA
RNElEARAERIRERER AL - (i)
RBEFRA T FARRB A EAIR
B R RPRE S ERE AR « i) & B
ZHRESFHAL ©

31

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

The Company issued an aggregate principal amount of
RMB2,781,674,000 perpetual subordinated convertible
securities (“PSCS”) on 5 September 2012 to AVIC
International, the holding company, AVIC International
Shenzhen Company Limited (90 B i 2= & {7 & 31| A BB
A|]) (“AVIC Shenzhen”), the Company’s shareholder
holding 35.63% of the equity interests of the Company
and Beijing Raise Technology Company Limited (it 7135
EREABRAT) (“Beiing Raise”), respectively as part of
the purchase consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries.
These PSCS being convertible into 801,634,000
domestic shares of the Company at an initial conversion
price of RMB3.47 per share.

The PSCS constitutes direct, unsecured and
subordinated obligations of the Company and rank
pari passu without any preference or priority among
themselves. In the event of the winding-up of the
Company, the rights and claims of the PSCS holder(s)
would; (i) rank ahead of those persons whose claims are
in respect of any class of share capital of the Company,
(i) be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of
all other present and future preference creditors of the
Company, and (i) pari passu with each other.
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31

KARBTRRE S (&)

KARBAMBESF L ED R E kB
WEK AR AR T3 78 75 B 31T B i 8
(BEZB)REAERITEASRIZSF
BB ENEFLA=T—AERHE
NEEDIRNIE - A KRB A
IRE SRR » AR R BREIZKA
IRAR T HA B RE 55 N IR SR R HI 0 TR 3K
B o KARBABRBRERTE ATESE
MR ARAEEBREHEAETR
10 & AR LE T (] LK AR AR AT 3R IR RE 75
B HIE) IR R K ©

IKARMATR B E B AR RIKAIR
MAMRESHTE B ERERIZERE
ARHE3.47 T K AR AR AT AR E 55
RAER - MR KA IR AT AR 5 15
RPTRE R RE RSP IR - BIR(E AR
BITAN  BREAFREIREMEES
THAE o KARMATBBESTH AT
TR B S EHR B0 ok AR AR AT 3R
&5 (ERETESIBARRFEREE
ERHMERAAES EMARA( £
MR EX - BREARR EHARR
AT RERARTRERE + R(i)BH5E
ST ERED SRR (BRETRR L
MR RBEBRBWEREHTAD -

B K AR AT R B 38 27 31T B HI R 1218
ASERERE - AR R 2E LR E K
ARFE BB B HGFEEE R 2 (E
BB ) K ARB AR E R SRNER
HEZR SO AR AR PTH8 BR 38 55 (R SR P 8
HABR HI R SCATIR -

KARMA BB ES B AERERE
ERKARBA M ESTE AMZEK
ARBBRAREGREE  HFEREINE

ERE-
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PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES (continued)

The PSCS have no maturity date and conferred a right
to receive distributions from and including the date of
issue of the PSCS at 1% per annum on any outstanding
principal amount of distribution payable annually in arrears
on 31 July each year, subject to the terms of the PSCS.
The Company was entitled to elect to defer a distribution
pursuant to the terms of the PSCS. Any arrears of
distributions due in respect of the PSCS would be
extinguished by the Company in full through the delivery
by the Company of its domestic shares issuable by it
upon the exercise of the PCSC holder’s conversion right.

The PSCS holders can convert PSCS into domestic
shares at any time from the date of issue of the PSCS,
subject to relevant terms as provided in the terms
of the PSCS, at conversion price of RMB3.47. The
conversion price will be subject to adjustment for bonus
issue, conversion of capital reserve and other dilutive
events. The PSCS Holders may convert such portion
of the PSCS on condition that: (i) the conversion would
not cause the Company to contravene provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
including but not limited to the minimum public float
requirement under the Listing Rules; and (ii) conversion
would comply with all applicable laws and regulations
(including but not limited to the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers).

On or at any time after 12 months after the date of issue
of the PSCS, the Company may, at its sole discretion
and pursuant to the terms of the PSCS, elect to convert
the PSCS in whole (but not in part) into domestic shares,
subject to the provisions of restriction on conversion set
out in the terms of the PSCS.

The PSCS holder(s) were not entitled to receive notice of,

attend or vote at general meetings of the Company by
reason only of its being a PSCS holder.

FHERRIERBRAERAT 2013FEHE 305



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

32 &R 32 BORROWINGS
EXBEBETEREREMET - w0 Borrowings include bank borrowings and other
s @ borrowings which are analysed as follows:
bS] N
Group Company
—E-=F —T-—fF —E-=F —E--F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT ARETFR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FmE Non-current
RITIERN Bank borrowings
—B# () - pledged (a) 1,799,922 1,656,343 - =
—BERD) - guaranteed (b) 1,504,110 1,840,642 - 186,000
—EHH - unsecured 3,391,518 1,817,101 492,000 =
FEZIE(C) Medium term notes (c) 600,000 - 600,000 -
EH(0) Debentures (c) 397,729 200,000 - =
BERERM510) Related party borrowings
(Note 51(c) 303,676 363,767 - -
W IERBIEZRMAESD  Less: current portion of
non-current borrowings (1,814,622) (1,833,027) (17,000) (186,000)
6,182,333 4,044,826 1,075,000 -
E Current
BITER Bank borrowings
—BH#H() - pledged (a) 283,385 248,000 - =
—BERD) - guaranteed (b) 473,850 972,971 - 200,000
— IR - unsecured 9,056,852 6,819,742 956,000 1,414,000
E%5 Debentures - 100,000 - -
BERERN51c) Related party borrowings
(Note 51(c)) 1,122,845 588,000 - L
EREBTETMAEES  Current portion of non-current
borrowings 1,814,622 1,833,027 17,000 186,000
12,751,554 10,561,740 973,000 1,800,000
18,933,887 14,606,566 2,048,000 1,800,000
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32 {EFE) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)
(a) NR_E—=%+=_A=+— (a) At 31 December 2013, bank loans of
B AEEBETERARM RMB2,083,307,000 (2012: RMB1,904,343,000) of
2.083,307.0007C (=& — — 4 : the Group were secured by the following:
AR #1,904,343,000 7T ) £ 1
BB
bS] VNN
Group Company
—E-=& —E-CF —E-=& —E—CfF
2013 2012 2013 2012

AREFR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

BERBRITER (M 27) Pledged bank deposits (Note 27) 54,164 = = -
ERERWEE(f7224) Pledged notes receivable

(Note 24) 35,885 - - -
TR (A7) Land use rights (Note 7) 504,031 517,952 = =
BF(frzt11) Buildings (Note 11) 1,426,288 1,444,472 - =
EEIR Construction-in-progress - 16,361 - -
REMEMWHE120) Investment properties (Note 12(b)) 1,200,649 1,141,656 = =
BRAME(H223) Properties under development

(Note 23) 320,629 = = -
iRk A 28) Exploration and extraction rights

(Note 8) 6,540 - - =

3,548,186 3,120,441 - -
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32

308

BRRE) 32
by RKRZETE—=F+ZHA=+—8"
REBERTER  FHEER
N\ EH AR 2975,689,000
T(ZZ—ZF: AR
2,813,613,0007T ) B R A &R X

BORROWINGS (continued)

(0)

At 31 December 2013, bank loans, medium-
term notes and debenture of RMB2,975,689,000
(2012: RMB2,813,613,000) of the Group were
supported by the following guarantees:

¥
biN-4 | b NS
Group Company
—E-=f —T--F —E-=F —T--F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARETT ANREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R AVIC Shenzhen 397,729 402,000 - 386,000
e AVIC International 600,000 = 600,000 =
Hinfas Other related parties 633,850 765,971 = =
£=h Third Parties 1,344,110 1,645,642 = =

2,975,689 2,813,613 600,000 386,000

© AAFER-ZZE—=FmWA++
ARSHABEEELEEFRS
FRARMEM R=-ZT—=FA
AARNBEAMBITRENSN
BELEERTEAEARE
600,000,000 7T F FI| & £ 4.78% Y
FHER - EHREEMAEG BT
At AFREE - 2aENOQ
ABERBTEFRETCTRSE
RHEE °

AR AR B A R R B R e B
SREHRZBEEGE T HE R
A R BRI EFHER

The Company obtained the registration with
China Government Securities Depository Trust &
Clearing Co., Ltd. on 17 April 2013 and issued
4.78% medium-term notes at a total nominal
value of RMB600,000,000 to institutional investors
in interbank market on 6 May 2013. The maturity
date of the bonds shall be five years from the
issue date at approximate nominal value. The fair
value of the liability was determined at issuance of
the bond and it was equal to the nominal value.

AVIC International, the Company’s holding
company, provides a full unconditional irrevocable
joint and several liability guarantee for the
medium-term notes.
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32

(CENED

(©

(%)

RomE(EE)BROHERAR (IR
DEDR-ZTE—=F_A=++t
H #7175 8= A R#400,000,000
TTRAEMES - RalEHFBRZ
ZE-NFE-_A-+BHEH I
B ETEEHRE.04%5T 8. o FRonsE
ARZE—NEFE_A=Z++tHMK
FEERIE D HHE100% /) A& ZE 0
2 RARZAFE(E )/ EE

EBEEZIMARIES

REEAEREN_T—A~FE_A
—++ERS0RBAMARESE
AAHREEIIA BEHHFIRA
EAEZ=100MEAE 2 - WRInZEI
E|ITEZIRE  QAREHFMFR
BEREZEHA A THEEET

AAREFFAAZLELIEN
MEEBHR  REEFFHAEA
AR E BRI E AR E R 100%
FY 7N < BE DN FE R Ko R X2 A LB Y
BEEELO 2 XD ARES °

RN RESHFBTPMFYGEE
AN E)35.63% % AN # 2 AN A A
REVER - NZB—=F+_7
=+—H ' AREFHEHEKT
A ARME397,729,0007T °

32

BORROWINGS (continued)

(©

(continued)

Fiyta issued corporate debenture amounted to
RMB400,000,000 on 27 February 2013. The
corporate debenture will mature on 26 February
2018 and carry fixed annual interest rate of 5.04%.
Fiyta may redeem the corporate debenture on
27 February 2016, in whole, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date.

Fiyta may, at its option, choose to increase the
interest rate of the corporate debenture from 1
point basis to 100 point basis by notifying the
corporate debenture holders 30 days before 27
February 2016. If Fiyta does not exercise the
option, the interest rate of the corporate debenture
will remain unchanged in the remaining period
before maturity.

After the issuance of notification to corporate
debenture holders on whether to increase the
interest rate, the corporate debenture holders may
choose to require Fiyta to redeem the corporate
debenture, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

The corporate debenture of Fiyta is guaranteed
by AVIC Shenzhen, the Company’s shareholder
holding 35.63% of the equity interests of the
Company. As at 31 December 2013, the
amortised cost of the corporate debenture is
RMB397,729,000.
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32 ER®E) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)
d) ERHNEREENTNIIEETE (d)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

rEH N

Group Company
—T=F —E—CfF =T =& —E-——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFIT ARETF AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 14,233,147 12,339,429 2,048,000 1,800,000
XL usb 3,221,610 1,821,022 - =
BT EUR 1,229,432 216,406 - =
BT HKD 241,381 222,887 = =
Hid Others 8,317 6,822 - =

18,933,887 14,606,566 2,048,000 1,800,000

REFEH - 85K ER A FI & & g) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate
MeathEHEEBHRRIT changes and the contractual repricing dates at the

balance sheet dates are as follows:

PN | N
Group Company
—E-=f —2——F —E-=F —T-—F
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within 1 year 12,751,554 10,561,740 973,000 1,800,000
—E°F Between 1 and 2 years 1,968,180 1,236,807 475,000 -
“FhEF Between 2 and 5 years 3,105,549 2,331,815 600,000 -

ARRFENZHEER Wholly repayable within
5 years 17,825,283 14,130,362 2,048,000 1,800,000
AEE Over 5 years 1,108,604 476,204 = =

18,933,887 14,606,566 2,048,000 1,800,000
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32 fER@#E) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)
(d) (&) (d)  (continued)
RITRAEMEROEERFRAT The maturity of bank and other borrowings is as
follows:
rEH NG|
Group Company
“E—=F —E—CF “Z-=F —E——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERRIFRZHEER Wholly repayable within
5 years 17,539,874 14,130,362 2,048,000 1,800,000
WHELRHERAENEE  Not wholly repayable within
5 years 1,394,013 476,204 - -
18,933,887 14,606,566 2,048,000 1,800,000
(e) REZBNERFERAT : (e)  The effective interest rates at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:
—E-=F —E-f
2013 2012
ARK T B BT ARE ESA B BT
RMB UsD EUR HKD RVB UsD EUR HKD
RITHEAR Bank borrowings 6.00%  352%  325%  3.05% 6.08% 330% 300%  3.14%
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32 {EFE) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)
() (&) (e)  (continued)
PN
Company
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR AR
RMB RMB
IRITIER Bank borrowings 5.73% 6.40%
() NEE KA R A B E KA @ () The interest rate exposure of the borrowings of
R the Group and the Company are as follows:
bS] N
Group Company
—E-=f —2——F —E-=F —T--F
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FEER Borrowings at floating rates 9,018,334 6,991,980 1,148,000 360,000
TEER Borrowings at fixed rates 9,915,553 7,614,586 900,000 1,440,000
it Total 18,933,887 14,606,566 2,048,000 1,800,000
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32 {EFE) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)
(9) FErRFETHNEREXERERDELA (9) The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-
AEEWT : current borrowings carried at fixed interest rate
are as follows:
HREE DAEE
Carrying amount Fair value
—E-=F —E——fF —E-=F —T—CF
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBEFT ANEEFr AREFT ANEEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RITIER Bank borrowings 2,033,467 1,544,906 1,989,667 1,474,949
hHi=ZE Medium-term notes 600,000 - 575,302 -
&% Debentures 397,729 - 392,001 -
3,031,196 1,544,906 2,956,970 1,474,949
33 BUNERTMIEZW A 33 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

b5 S TR 5 i P B 3 BT A B4
R 5 o B BT B R 0 5 OB
B HEHMT

GRANTS

The amounts represented various subsidies granted by
and received from local government authorities in the
PRC. The movements are as follows:

RZE——% R-B-=%
+=AR ERETA +=R
=+-H B UEa Wk Er=1[E
Credited
At to income At
31 December Receipt statement 31 December
2012 of grants  during the year 2013
HEERBNBTRHE Government grant related
to assets 515,319 243,634 (193,567) 565,386
SR A B R BT B Government grant related
to costs 23,671 52,210 (70,691) 5,190
538,990 295,844 (264,258) 570,576
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34 EURERHEHMBEEEFEE 34 RETIREMENT AND OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL
BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

TREH B AR KA E F 2 The table below outlines where the Group’s post-

“ENeBNEEE - employment amounts and activity are include in the

financial statements.

TEE
Group
—E-=F —E—F
2013 2012
(&E5))
(Restated)
T HRENEESEREE : Balance sheet obligations for:
— TR IREFET & — Supplemental retirement benefits plan 46,660 52,279
—HEATR IR BT & — Early retirement benefit plan 873 1,369
FFABERBERNEE Liability in the balance sheet 47,533 53,648
RTHRENKRERITE,  Income statement charge/(credit)
()T AREERRF included in operating profit for:
— R RAE N EE — Supplemental retirement benefits plan 1,811 2,901
— AR KRB 2 — Early retirement benefit plan (78) (38)
1,733 2,863
BEHFE Remeasurements for:
— R RARAEFEE — Supplemental retirement benefits plan (3,476) 1,564
—IRAR KRB AT S — Early retirement benefit plan = -
(3,476) 1,564
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34

BRAREMHERBNEEE) 34

RiFAEERBRERMNIEARK LM

ARENETSHEEEAT :

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL
BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The amounts of early retirement and supplemental benefit
obligations recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
are determined as follows:

REE
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
(&&&E7)
(Restated)
AERMNETHNEE Present value of defined benefits obligations 47,533 53,648
B BVERES Less: current portion (4,664) (4,372)
JEBNERER > Non-current portion 42,869 49,276

AEBEREMEARERENREENES

The movements of Group’s early retirement benefit and

wm supplemental benefit obligations are as follows:
AEE
Group
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
(#&E5))
(Restated)
REH At beginning of the year 53,648 53,419
FR For the year
FERZ Interest expense 1,846 1,824
BERIEAA Past service cost (113) 1,039
55,381 56,282
EEE Remeasurements:
B ISR E) (Uezs) 18 (Gain)/losses from change in financial
assumptions (4,044) 2,041
KEEsE (e Experience losses/(gains) 568 (477)
(3,476) 1,564
BT Payments from plans:
&R Benefit payments (4,372) (4,198)
47,533 53,648
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BRAREMEREBNEEE)

FRARERBEBIARBEITREHN
(E8)BERAR(BEMBE RTEEE
At ee 8 ) RARAEMLETHRERAE
AR EMERETE

% B AL EFRA O E AR EBR
o -

34

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL

BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The above obligations were determined based on
actuarial valuations performed by an independent
qualified actuarial firm, Mercer Consulting (Shanghai)
Company Limited (member of the Society of Actuaries
and the China Association of Actuaries), using the

projected unit credit actuarial cost method.

The material actuarial assumptions used in valuing these

obligations are as follows:

AEH
Group
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
(F&=351)
(Restated)
AR (FF) Discount rates (per annum)
— R RREFEE — Supplemental retirement benefits plan 4.60% 3.60%
—RATR KB FIFT 2 — Early retirement benefit plan 4.30% 3.00%
BRX Growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
TR ERFHEa — M3t Mortality: Average life expectancy of
BRREFEE residents — Supplemental
retirement benefit plan 86 86
TR ER¥HHEG — 281 Mortality: Average life expectancy of
RIREFETE residents — Early retirement
benefit plan 86 86
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34 RUKEMBREINEEE 34

RERMEETHMEE ZREZ K

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL
BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to

RE A changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
HAERANEENZE

Impact on defined benefit obligation
BRREE BRERAE N GBS0
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
BRI R Discount rate 0.5% Decrease Increase
by 3.8% by 8.7%
. 3.8% 1EN8.7%
RAS B R R Pension growth rate 0.25% Increase Decrease
by 4.2% by 3.9%
#N4.2% W A3.9%
BRERIE I — & BERWMD>—F
To increase To decrease
by 1 year in by 1 year in
assumption assumption
= Life expectancy Increase Decrease
by 3.8% by 3.4%
¥ hN3.8% FA38.4%

LR BRE D IRE —ARKREF M
PrERMEBRER TEMHE - S5
MER EAKAERE - Ao BREAR
EEAREEERE - FFERERMNALE
HTIERERRVFRECDKAEGE
R BRRRAERHRARE B EHHE
RJE(RERMEERERRE AR
TAFt B ERERHE) °

HEF AL - REBRESTAERDN
BRRITEREAL EEE -

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the pension liability recognised within the
statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing

the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous period.
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BRHRRHEMBEREBNEE ) 34 RETIREMENT AND OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL
BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
FEEERNERAFZLRACTEAKRESE Through its fundamental retirement plan and defined
F o REBASZZIHERR  HPRHZEK pension benefits, the Group is exposed to a number of
MER T - risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
BERK KL 2 BN ST Inflation risk The majority of the plans’ benefit
HEEAE BRIk obligations are linked to inflation,
BeEdRsaE(Es and higher inflation will lead to higher
ERTSERT @ BIE liabilities (although, in most cases, caps
Wig/KEeLFE FR on the level of inflationary increases
LARBE 51 &) 52 4% 55 3B IR are in place to protect the plan against
R 2E) o KZEHEIEE extreme inflation). The majority of the
HAZ(BEMNBEGES) plan’s assets are either unaffected
B (HES)BIERERN by (fixed interest bonds) or loosely
ERE - s 2@k L correlated with (equities) inflation,
FHIR e 8 AnE At o meaning that an increase in inflation will
also increase the deficit.
=4 RKZEFEE TR Life expectancy The majority of the plans’ obligations
BELEZFIREHERER - are to provide benefits for the life of the
At SEiERBHEH member, so increases in life expectancy
HEBEEN - will result in an increase in the plans’
liabilities.
KRR ATRAESEBINNEELRINEE D Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined
T pension benefits:
DR —EME “ERE HARF
Less than Between Between Over k]
a year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HREKEFEE  Supplement retirement
benefits plan 4,271 4172 11,867 51.68 1 71,991
12RTRIKIEFETE]  Early retirement benefit
plan 393 340 191 - 924
4,664 4512 12,058 51,681 72,915
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35 HFRBHERS 35 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
PN | b NG|
Group Company
“E-=f —ET——fF —EB-=F —E—_fF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR®Fr ANREFT AREFT ANEEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERHER A RIFA () Payable to holding company (a) 800,000 1,050,000 800,000 1,050,000
JE TR R ZE (o) Payable to AVIC Shenzhen (b) 100,000 100,000 - -
ENEBRERMFE%E  Payable to Weihai Economic and

BREELEERAT Technological Development Zone

FIE() State-owned Assets Management
Co., Ltd
(ESEERMAEERE
BELEERAT) () 40,000 40,000 - =
Hit Others 16,152 12,424 - =
956,152 1,202,424 800,000 1,050,000
(a) RARRZE—ZFHAMZER (a)  The Company borrowed RMB1,050,000,000 from
A @& % A K % 1,050,000,000 the holding company in April 2012. The amounts

T ZEREAREEM  REF

ME494% 5t B RBER-F—F
FHAEE R-_T—=%F"
ARAIRFABEBEEEARR
250,000,0007T °

REGWBRARFEREEHRN =
TEZAFTARPMEIER
A R # 25,000,000 7T K& A R
75,000,0007T ° ZERIB AER
- R=EAPLERITRER
BhN1.7% K% 4.70%51 B M B9 B
REZZE—R"ET+ARZZT—ILF
+AEE -

REBMMBARILRFMETAE
RARIRZZEZNFNAMEE
LERETARREREEELEE
# N fE A R % 40,000,000
TL e ZEFRIBRERE - UFE
ARBITHEEERNRFE - I
BT —+HFNAEE-

HERBHABEZAABERK
E{ERS

are unsecured, bearing annual interest rate of
4.94% and repayable in April 2015. In 2013, the
Company repaid RMB250,000,000 during the
year.

SCC, a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
RMB25,000,000 and RMB75,000,000 from AVIC
Shenzhen in October 2009. The amounts are
unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 3 month
SHIBOR plus 1.7% and 4.70% and repayable in
October 2016 and October 2019, respectively.

Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
RMB40,000,000 from Weihai Economic and
Technological Development Zone State-owned
Assets Management Co., Ltd, in June 2009. The
amounts are unsecured, bearing interest rate at
the benchmark interest rate prescribed by The
People’s Bank of China and repayable in June
2017.

The fair value of other non-current liabilities
approximated the carrying amount.
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ESRHEMENAKIE 36 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
bS] PN
Group Company
“E-=% —T-CF “Z-=F —Z-CF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT ARETF AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B SN Trade payables 5,359,733 3,892,317 - =
ENEERkE TR Salaries and staff welfare payable 440,038 291,591 4,931 6,476
N EE Notes payable 545,530 755,930 - -
TEHY Advances from customers 4,295,782 3,688,730 - -
FERHFIE Interest payable 81,989 34,758 38,031 3,230
FERAR S Dividend payable 6,892 10,699 - =
H i fERHIE Other taxes payable 151,183 154,711 196 133
JESTE R R HERFIER)  Accruals and other payables (a) 1,732,908 2,357,673 80,111 275,166
B—RE=FRERD) Borrowings from a third party (b) 18,000 18,000 - -
fiign Deposits 110,217 74,502 - =
12,742,272 11,278,911 123,269 285,005
w IEREEHS Less: non-current portion

—&e — Deposits (44,871) (46,128) - =
M H Current portion 12,697,401 11,232,783 123,269 285,005

(@)

FFAETERAREMENKIEA
R # 198,709,000 7T J3 % & <
BT 3RIE - R EFS10) B TE(=
T——F : AR® 847,351,000
JL) ° R ERIA BB - LFEAF
E0%-12.5%51 &+ WAL ENRKE
“ﬁ% °

AEEMHBRARBEMBR ==
——F-—ARBRETMIEERE
REBRETRARERARE
18,000,0007c( = —=—4F : AR
#18,000,0007T) ° 3% E /I8 & H
T AFEFIET7.872%1 8+ I
HIREKEE -

Included in accruals and other payables were
RMB198,709,000 due to related parties as
disclosed in Note 51(c) (2012: RMB847,351,000).
These amounts were unsecured, bearing annual
interest rate from 0%~12.5% and are payable on
demand.

Weihai Shipyard, a subsidiary of the
Group, borrowed RMB18,000,000 (2012:
RMB18,000,000) from Weihai Industrial
Developing Investment Co., Ltd. (B /& L% RE
HAEAMREEAT) in January 2012. The amounts
are unsecured, bearing annual interest of 7.872%

and are payable on demand.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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BRAREMHERBNEEE) 36

R-FB—=%+-_A=t+—8 -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
(b) (continued)
At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the

B o EMNRENRERR ST trade payables is as follows:
rEHE b/
Group Company
—E-=F —E——fF —E-=F —T—CF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AEEFT AREFT AREFT AEEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—ER Within 1 year 5,086,778 3,380,058 - -
=Z= Between 1 and 2 years 151,089 327,124 - -
=Hm=hE Between 2 and 3 years 25,605 120,647 - =
=FE Over 3 years 96,261 064,488 - =
5,359,733 3,892,317 - -

AEEEZRNRENEEENL NS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

HEtHE - denominated in the following currencies:
r5E b

Group Company
“E-=f —T--F —E-=F “E-CF
2013 2012 2013 2012
AEEFT AREFT AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE RMB 3,839,077 2,768,863 - =
HEBREL LKR 598,922 334,712 = =
e usD 534,742 320,622 = =
Peih g st AED 167,538 235,818 = =
BT EUR 41,987 61,420 = =
BT HKD 5,699 13,069 - =
Hit Others 171,768 157,813 = =
5,359,733 3,892,317 = =

PHERERROERAE 2013FEHE
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Hgg A 37 OTHER INCOME
—=—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
12 g;5p=-11 Government subsidies 298,079 216,567

A 778 Bl A 30 R LS A B 6 Amortisation of deferred income on

(H1:33) government grants (Note 33) 264,258 237,644
AR 7% RRARIEHA Service and maintenance income 77,817 61,876
BIEMEE Sales of by-products 49,530 53,969
A& BUA Dividend income 18,346 47,289
BFBUERL Financial subsidy 12,178 33,563
BEHWA Default income 9,323 26,937
HEWA Compensation income 878 4,521
EREWA Guarantee fee income 550 =
EHAfth Others 9,497 6,001
740,456 688,367
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HAith 5 58 38 OTHER GAINS - NET
—=—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEME  WERZEDYZ  Gain on disposals of property, plant and
(Hiiz47) equipment (Note 47) 4,344 37,884
HEREYEN RS (H1it47) Gain on disposals of investment properties
(Note 47) 365 21,893
HEMTE SR TEMKE Gain on disposals of derivative financial
instruments 6,070 2,346
HEB S TR Gain on disposals of associates = 3,452
HEES St ENKE Gain on disposals of joint ventures
(Ktst47) (Note 47) 50,131 -
HERHHESREEMIE  Gain on disposals of available-for-sale
(Kiit47) financial assets (Note 47) 45,981 15,073
HEMRBATS(EBE), et (Loss)/Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
(Hiat47) (Note 47) (500) 38
PTESBMIBE AL EBEE Fair value changes on derivative financial
(Kiit47) instruments (Note 47) 2,295 3,550
BRI IRITA L ERAY Losses from discounting bank
BB (H5t47) acceptance bills (Note 47) (2,407) (25,368)
KRR E ZEWNGIAER Losses from derecognition of
&8 trade receivables - (24,557)
Hh(H15t47) Others (Note 47) 7,259 2,727
113,538 37,038
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RUEESENER 39 EXPENSES BY NATURE
—E—= —E—_4F
2013 2012
AREFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
SN AR EERNTFEEE Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress 730,139 345,266
BURERFA 4 TIEIAE Changes in amounts due from customers
for contract work 331,981 358,528
FERBEME XERE R Raw materials and consumables used 25,736,125 24,756,700
B TR W (Hita2) Employee benefits expenses (Note 42) 2,413,047 1,804,807
HIERBLH Repairs and maintenance expenditure 162,992 76,710
[(REFERE Provision for inventory obsolescence 71,421 45,376
ZAREE Provision for bad debts 128,126 57,581
JEWEP A4 TIZRIBEREYE  Provision for amounts due from customers
for contract work 38,276 2,808
W - BEMERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Hiaz11) equipment (Note 11) 989,785 914,680
T AR S (a2 7) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) 28,801 29,853
BhER N BRI ERAE R 3R (1 778) Amortisation of exploration and extraction
rights (Note 8) 15,716 14,589
B EEEH(ME10) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10) 18,561 10,441
HIEmENE B Amortisation of other non-current assets 23,432 14,383
WETHE ST H Operating lease rentals 214,202 190,057
BEMREMBEE Business tax and other levies 256,541 182,489
ZE AN & Auditors’ remuneration 8,600 9,700
KEE Utility expenses 302,922 325,682
B Transportation 210,589 251,609
EiRE Travelling expenses 93,603 94,095
(¥R EE Entertainment 60,740 71,555
HEXER Professional fees 88,030 85,067
RITEA Bank charges 100,828 75,571
Hith & H Other expenses 623,742 560,006
HEKAK - HEEBR K Total cost of sales, distribution expenses
THE R and administrative expenses 32,648,199 30,277,553
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40 EEMS 40 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(a E=Me (a) Directors’ emoluments
MNRE—=FR_FT——-FF The Company did not appoint any chief executive
RNRABWRZEEMRITHAEE - in 2013 and 2012.
HEz—_ZT—=F+-_BA=+—H The remunerations of the directors for the year
WFE - ZFZZHMOT ¢ ended 31 December 2013 are set out below,
ETRIK
BRI
Employer’s
HEIEA  contribution
ne #4 Discretionary  to pension st
Fee Salaries bonuses schemes Total

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BN Name of directors:

REBEE Mr. Wu Guang Quan* = = - - -
HELE Mr. You Lei* - - - . _
L Vi Mr. Pan Lin Wu* - - - - -
eV Mr. Liu Jun® = = - - -
RER T4 Mr. Chen Hong Liang* = = - - -
Eley i Mr. Wu Wei 160 - - - 160
BERLL Ms. Wong Wai Ling 160 - 5 - 160
REEE Mr. Zhang Ping 120 - = - 120
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EEME 2 40 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) EEME(E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
HE—_E——F+=-A=+—8 The remunerations of the directors for the year
ILFE  SEEHMOT - ended 31 December 2012 are set out below:

8 TRk

BRI

Employer's

BEEA contribution
e %4  Discretionary  to pension @i
Fee Salaries bonuses schemes Total

ABBTT ARBTT ARETT  ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R Name of directors:
REELE Mr. Wu Guang Quan* = g £ - _
mELE Mr. You Lei* Z . - - -
ARRLE Mr. Pan Lin Wu* = & L - _
RAR T4 Mr. Chen Hong Liang* = = L - _
B HEE Mr. Liu Jun® x . _ _ _
BREEE Mr. Lai Wei Xuan* - - - - -
BELE Mr. Sui Yong* = _ - - _
B L Mr. Liu Rui Lin* - - 5 - -
RRBEE Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong* = = - = _
fiBsREL L Mr. Qiu Shen Qian* = " - - _
FRELE Mr. Wang Bin Bin* - = - _ _
TRELE Mr. Li Cheng Ning* - - - _ _
R KL Mr. Xu Dong Sheng* - 311 S - 311
BERRT Ms. Wong Wai Ling 140 - B - 140
St Mr. Wu Wei 140 - - - 140
T4 Mr. Zhang Ping 70 = o _ 70
ABELL Mr. Liu Xian Fa* 29 - L N 29
379 311 — — 690
* ZEEERHARANRE B 3 These directors received emoluments from

PR A &) AR A B RR sk R AR 3
(B AR A)35.63% A% HEH AR
AEIRE) BB S - ARE
ERAEDBHEUAEBEAR
NEERA BN REB T E
B RS EYESE -

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

AVIC International, the holding company or
AVIC Shenzhen, the Company’s shareholder
holding 35.63% of the equity interests of the
Company, for their services to the Company. No
apportionment has been made for emoluments
from the holding company, as the directors
consider that it is impracticable to apportion
this amount between their services to the Group
and their services to the Company’s holding
company.
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40 EEHS (@) 40 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) EEME(E) (a)
EXEENEZHEBEIMNT
BUFNTESTNHEEARE
440,000t (ZE—=F : AR
379,0007T) °

AEETEEERETMAMNE (=
T—ZF )

(b) IBEEREHFAL (b)
R-ZT—=F A5EHEES
FATTEBIEWEN EXOWT
MNERMES(ZE—ZF : 8) -
FREMZERABALT(ZE—Z
F:RAB)NMESHT

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Directors’ fees disclosed above included
RMB440,000 (2012: RMB379,000) paid to
independent non-executive directors.

None of the directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2012: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year 2013 do
not include any directors (2012: Nil) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to these five
individuals (2012: 5) during the year are as follows:

—E—=F —T——F

2013 2012
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EX#FHe BERER - Basic salaries, housing allowance,
E b2 R B = other allowances and benefits in kind 9,683,000 8,658,000
e N FLATEER : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
—E—= =
2013 2012
B < % 2] Emolument bands
1,500,0017%87T — HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T - 4
2,000,001%& 7T — HKD2,000,001-HKD3,000,000
3,000,000/ 7T 4 1
H3&3,000,0007% 7T Over HKD3,000,000 1 -
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b & LA R B 41 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—Eg—= —E——F
2013 2012
AREFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
FEZH Interest expenses
—iRITEE — bank borrowings 880,171 841,112
—AEEREETAES — borrowings from related party
MEE repayable on demand 92,057 113,555
— R HIER — medium-term notes 23,979 =
— &% — debentures 27,529 9,900
o B AREF B Less: interest capitalised (106,149) (29,750)
917,587 934,817
B E R B PE B 1R Foreign exchange loss on
financing activities 43,132 38,769
mE Y Finance costs 960,719 973,586
B A B P s Foreign exchange gain on
financing activities (86,515) (59,030)
FEWA Interest income (92,128) (84,298)
BMEWA Finance income (178,643) (143,382)
A AR A HER Net finance costs 782,076 830,258

RZZE—=F EZIiER
{EF 8 B AR¥53,904,0000(—F——
F . AR¥10,457,0007T) @ BA{L R =R
B6.73%(—ZF— 4 : 5.66%) °

REZZE—=F BRTPYERTERE
KA F B B AN R#52,24500070( =
— 4 : AR#19,293,0007T) * EAML
AR E10.99% (=T ——4F : 10.8%) °

TERER

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Bank loan interest capitalised in the construction-
in-progress amounted to RMB53,904,000 (2012:
RMB10,457,000) during 2013. The capitalised interest
rate was 6.73% (2012: 5.66%).

Bank loan interest capitalised in the properties under
development amounted to RMB52,245,000 (2012:
RMB19,293,000) during 2013. The capitalised interest
rate was 10.99% (2012: 10.8%).
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EEEFNEHR 42 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
T8 - HFakita Wages, salaries and bonus 2,056,617 1,476,874
B BERHEMER Welfare, medical and other expenses 137,461 126,150
HERERK A Social security costs 217,236 198,920

2 IRK R BRAE R Early retirement and supplemental

pension benefits 1,733 2,863

2,413,047 1,804,807

AEEC2EABTHAMARRERE -
YRPBEETHRERELERRE - B
EERE  BEREMEEREF - RIE
BRARE  AKEEAAERBITHER
nEZRRESLEERRES - HX
BORIRES AFHMN19%K9% - RN&EE
DRIEAEER14%NT7% - HAKIAHE
BAYE o BRIAEHFIN  AEEYEA
&L °

The Group has participated in employee social security
plans enacted in the PRC, which cover pension, medical
and other welfare benefits. The plans are organised and
administered by the governmental authorities. Pursuant
to the relevant provisions, the Group is required to make
monthly contributions in respect of retirement insurance
and health insurance to governmental authorities,
equivalent to 19% and 9% respectively based on the
monthly salaries of its employees, of which, the Group
bears 14% and 7% respectively, and the employees bear
the rest. The Group has no further obligation beyond the
contribution.
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FriS%ipa <
REREBMEABIE - BRERFER
EEBLE - 7B R P B AR L
B RRI R 25% BTGB -

EETMERN T SEEAIMNAK - A
EEERTPEALEANBEIH EK
R OWYR_E—=FAIZH15%EBEF
BERE(ZZT—ZF 1 15%) °

AXERENBRARLEEXRSE - KEBX
5 FXEER  AmAcULR)EES
RARKRIMREERERTREER
RARAWHRE AT S RMEER
RIE—=ZFEZ15%( T ——F :
15% ) B HEFBHIE o

43

INCOME TAX CHARGE

Pursuant to the relevant income tax law of PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC were
subject to income tax at a rate of 25% unless preferential
rates were applicable.

Qinghai CATIC Resources was established in Haixi
Prefecture of Qinghai Province. It was eligible for
preferential tax policies applicable for the development
of western regions in the PRC, and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% in 2013 (2012: 15%).

Tianma and its subsidiaries Shanghai Tianma and
Chengdu Tianma, SCC, AVIC Wang Xin (Beijing)
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Fiyta
Chronometer Manufacture Co., Ltd. were qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprises in the PRC and
were entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% in
2013 (2012: 15%).

FANAEHASTE Income tax charged for the year represents:
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
ANEZ Bhim ) B AR 18 Current tax on profits for the year 279,248 195,902
AT —FEELH AR Adjustments in respect of prior year 17,999 9,035
BEAFL TE 42 28 Total current tax 297,247 204,937
EIERLIE (H15220) Deferred tax (Note 20) (37,822) (22,635)
rh B+ I (A R PRC land appreciation tax 20,622 =
PRSI X Income tax charged 280,047 182,302
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43 BB 43 INCOME TAX CHARGE (continued)
7R £ [ bR A A g 1) S AR Y A 18 ER AR 1R 7R The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
NEIREKM B AT TERER N ETE A from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
EimfIEERENT ¢ tax rates of the home country of the Company and its

subsidiaries as follows:

—E—=F —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(5 E5)
(Restated)
B P15 2% Bil i A Profit before income tax 1,444,722 1,448,543
BARNREAHR25%:E R Tax calculated at the tax rates applicable to
BME(ZZT——%F :25%) the Company of 25% (2012: 25%) 361,180 362,136
PRI 2= B B 1 2 A IR ST Deferred income taxes resulting from change
FRiSH in the tax rates 920 (5,748)
RERRIBEEN RS E Tax effect on unrecognised tax losses 127,025 72,271
B)FSLRATRMERMBIIEEIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses (38,455) (42,258)
TEERBIEINASMNER  Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 20,861 5,210
BAEBTA Income not subject to tax (150,415) (134,882)
A INETHIBR A EE B A Research and development expenses eligible
for additional deduction (16,191) (15,712)
AT —FEEH AR Adjustment in respect of prior year 17,999 9,035
FEFRBEFEEWMEAELE  Use of tax effect of temporary differences for
FriafmEENE R tE5 which no deferred income tax assets was
Mg recognised in the previous year (8,722) (727)
RERG R M ZENTBE Tax effect on unrecognised temporary
-2 differences 4,953 6,260
BIETRFIEAERIBEENY  Effect of tax concessions from lower tax rate
B (57,893) (71,6083)
BERRREBNHIBEERR Tax credit for purchasing environmental
protection equipment (1,837) (1,668)
BREEFEHNIE The salary deduction of disabled employees - (12)
B £ IR (E R PRC land appreciation tax 20,622 -
IR X Tax charge 280,047 182,302
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ADATREREE AEEER 44 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

RARERFEABGREFNEFALRA
BT ISR © WA A R#449,937,0007T
(ZZFE——4F: AR¥195,877,0007T) A

PR ©
BRER
(@ EXR

SIREAREE B EAD T
245 AR (0TI A I E B
TERBET R E -

THE COMPANY

45 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of RMB449,937,000 (2012: RMB195,877,000).

Basic and diluted earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.
—_E—-= —E——fF
2013 2012
(5 E31)
(Restated)
NATREREA AEMEEF]  Profit attributable to owners of
(AR®TT) the Company (RMB’000) 796,334 970,702
B BBIK A RBAIHAREE  Less: Profit attributable to PSCS holders
HFRHENBM(ARE (RMB’000)
) (27,817) (27,817)
BEBRAATIEERIEA A Profit attributable to ordinary shares
w=H (AREFIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 768,517 942,885
BT ERRNEF IR E  Weighted average number of ordinary
(FB%) shares in issue (thousands) 1,110,632 1,110,632
FRERBF(ARET, M) Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) 0.69 0.85
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45 BRENE) 45 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) e (b) Diluted
EREERILARE BT LR Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
F& 0 e S 45 % S A TEJ B Fﬁﬁ/ adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
e AREEHRAE - AQA] shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
A — E 48 R/ B E%&Tﬁ ] dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
B KARBAIRPRES - WE has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
BREK ARG A BB 5B EE shares: perpetual subordinated convertible
BRLB - securities. The perpetual subordinated convertible

securities are assumed to have been converted
into ordinary shares.

—B—=F —E——4F
2013 2012
(#eE7)
(Restated)
NATEREEE AERER Profit attributable to owners
(AR%TT) of the Company (RMB’000) 796,334 970,702
DE/TE R INEFHREL  Weighted average number
(Fh%) of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 1,110,632 1,110,632
FHEIER Adjustments for:
— K ARG AR FE A (TRR) - Perpetual subordinated convertible
(B1#31) securities (thousands) (Note 31) 801,634 801,634
FREERMNLERME  Weighted average number of ordinary
e (FR) shares for diluted earnings per share
(thousands) 1,912,266 1,912,266
FREERF(AREIT M) Diuted earnings per share (RMB per share) 0.42 0.51
46 KE 46 DIVIDENDS
RZE—MOE=ZA=Z+N\HEBITHES At the board of directors’ meeting held on 28 March
EERL ESeETREHE=Z 2014, the board did not propose a final dividend for the
—ZF+ A=+ —BLEFENRBHEK year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). The board
B(ZE—ZF ' 8) EESWETIK has not declared interim dividend (2012: Nil).

R B (=T ——F &) -

PHERERROERAE 2013FEHE
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47 REXBELENRS

AFERGNERERBEENRSNY

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated

iR : from operations:
—E—-=F —F——F
2013 2012
HtaE AR FT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
B P15 %% Bl A1 Profit before income tax 1,444,722 1,448,543
FHEIEE Adjustments for
RIFFERERMEER Losses from derecognition of
B8 financial assets 38 = 24,557
REBLIRIRITALEZH  Losses from discounting bank
B8 acceptance bills 38 2,407 25,368
[REFEBE Provision for inventory
obsolescence 71,421 45,376
AR Provision for bad debts 128,126 57,581
EWEPA 4 TIZZIEA:  Provision for amounts due from
& customers for contract work 38,276 2,808
M - BRENMERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 11 989,785 914,680
BNIR B GBS R i Amortisation of exploration and
extraction rights 8 15,716 14,589
-+ b {5 PR £ Amortisation of land use rights s 28,801 29,853
A E Y Amortisation of intangible assets 10 18,561 10,441
H A A Other amortisation charges 23,432 14,383
WEMENNFEBEUWZ  Fair value gain on investment
property 12 (56,942) (101,332)
H BB A B Gain on disposals of associates - (3,452)
HEAEDERE Gain on disposals of joint ventures 38 (50,131) =
HERHHESHEE Gain on disposals of available-for-
G sale financial assets 38 (45,981) (15,073)
HEMBAREIE, Loss/(Gain) on disposals of
(M=) subsidiaries 38 500 (38)
ME% BTAEARER Fair value changes on derivative
23 financial instruments 38 (2,295) (3,550)
B # Ak O3B E YA Amortisation of deferred income on
Fi=] government grants 37 (264,258) (237,644)
HEME - WS kil Gain on disposals of property, plant
ol and equipment 38 (4,344) (37,884)
HERE YRS Gain on disposals of investment
properties 38 (365) (21,893)
A E A Interest income 41 (178,643) (143,328)
FEFX Interest expense 41 960,719 973,586
FEAGESE & 2 2 E A Share of profit of associates 15 (245,503) (131,873)
JE (K [E) 420 1) B B e ) Share of profit of jointly controlled
entities /) (280,870) (345,172)
AT EFE 5725  Elimination of unrealised profit from
IR I8 i T 4 £ downstream transaction with
jointly controlled entities - 961
2,593,134 2,521,487
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47 REEKEENRS(H) 47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

—E—=F =T

2013 2012
HtaF AR¥FT ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
LEESE Changes in working capital
ZFEEm Increase in inventories (838,707) (38,342)
5 R R Y AN Increase in properties under
development (1,061,008) (761,651)
EREFALIERIE Increase in amounts due from
0 customers for contract work (331,981) (358,528)
ENEFPAEYITERE Increase in amounts due to
N customers for contract work (6,254) (763,746)
B 5 K H M FEWFIE (Increase)/Decrease in trade and
(3&m), mb other receivables (702,425) 628,401
B 5 NEMEMFIEEZI  Increase in trade and other
payables 1,652,343 817,776
REEFEENIRE Cash generated from operations 1,305,102 2,045,397
@ REBEE-_ZT—=F+-A=+-— (@) In the consolidated statement of cash flows
AEFENGERERER " IF for the year ended 31 December 2013, capital
TR R ESANE AR EE contribution to subsidiaries from non-controlling
B interests comprises:
—Eg—= —E——fF
2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG Guangzhou Company 19,675 =
i E R AVIC Resources 18,000 =
FEER A A RED Company 14,700 1,690
FCE=G/NE] TED Company 13,130 =
ARG Xiamen Company 3,800 1,135
TERQA Engineering Company - 1,000
R AR] Beijing Company - 195
bR {E Beijing Ruixin - 150
69,305 4170
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47 REXEBELENRESE)

b) RHBE-F—=F+=A=+-
ALEFENSEARSRER  H
W% - B RR BN IS RE

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2013, proceeds
from sales of property, plant and equipment:

BIE
—_=—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEME - BELREN Net book value of property, plant and
BREDFE(MEE11) equipment disposed of (Note 11) 12,939 59,696
HEME - BEMRE R Profit from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 4,344 37,884
HEWE  BER&HE Proceeds from disposal of property,
FriS 58 plant and equipment 17,283 97,580

c) MEBEE_ZE—=F+-A=+—
AIEFEMNGERERER ' I
EEETENMBHRERT

(c) In the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2013, proceeds
from disposals of joint ventures:

—E—= —E——fF
2013 2012
AR¥TFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HESEPENEEFE Net book value of joint ventures disposed of
(MizE15) (Note 15) 101,732 =
HEALREWE Gain on disposals of joint ventures 50,131 =
HESEPEMSHIEA Proceeds from disposals of joint ventures 151,863 =
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47 REEKEENRS(H)

(d)

RRE-F—=F+=A=+—
ALEFENGEARSRER  H
5 ) i 65 0 0 O 43 2O

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

(d)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2013, proceeds from
disposals of available-for-sale financial assets:

B
—B—=F —E—_fF
2013 2012
AR¥TFrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEMHEESCREED Carrying amount of available-for-sale
IREE(FIEE19) financial assets disposed of (Note 19) 9,484 30,403
HERHEESRBEEWSZE  Gain on disposals of available-for-sale
financial assets 45,981 15,073
A WEIATEHESFIEE  Less: Recycle of the fair value gain on
AR BEEYE available-for-sale financial assets,
BIETIA gross of tax (5,430) .
HERHHESREES  Proceeds from disposals of
WIA available-for-sale financial assets 50,035 45,476

(e)

REE-F—=F+=A=+—
BEFEHEARSRER - H
B A RO FTEREA R

(i KENRRBAERMEL
) IRERRRAR([H
Mk T ])40%0% # -
RZZZTNEFE  KEBRQFA
HE AP R TAR A SRR AR AR
RERER G - B
KERRERMBEIRE
66.67% R 1% EREN A5 H A
BREKBAR -

(e)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2013, proceeds
from disposals of subsidiaries comprise:

() TED Company originally held 40% equity
interests in AVIC (Beijing) Engineering
Management Co., Ltd. (i (db =) T
2 & B AR A Al) (“AVIC Engineering”).
In 2009, TED Company reached an
agreement with non-controlling interests
of AVIC Engineering pursuant to which
TED Company had 66.67% voting rights in
AVIC Engineering and accounted for it as a
subsidiary.
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47 REXEEBRELENRES (&) 47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(e) (#&) (e) (continued)
(i) (& (i) (continued)
BN EP R TRERN The validity of the agreement to act in
BB RED —RITH concert between TED Company and
NN —_E—=F—A the non-controlling interests of AVIC
Eim o A EBRE®KE Engineering expired in January 2013. The
S A A B T A2 A 45 4 o Group then lost the control over AVIC
BRHENRSREWNT ¢ Engineering. The cash flows from the

disposal are as follows:

AREFT
RMB’000
FTEERE Consideration received
—BeRE — Cash consideration -
B A IRRSENE e R Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by
REEEY AVIC Engineering (47)
B E M MEIREIFE Net cash paid on disposals (47)
PR TIERFEENT The net assets of AVIC Engineering are as
follows:
Nk =
On disposal
date
AREFT
RMB’000
e Cash 47
B 5 &AM W GRIE Trade and other receivables 106
B 5 REHAMENRIE Trade and other payables (762)
REE Net assets (609)
LATR B - Attributable to:
PR TRESFEA Owners of AVIC Engineering (244)
FEPE AR AR R 2 Non-controlling interests (365)
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47 REXBELENRT (@) 47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(e) (#&) (e) (continued)
(i) NR_E—=FRA=+1— (i) On 31 May 2013, Wuxi Raise commenced
H > Si5mEETS8E its liquidation procedures, the Company
NN Sl s B lost control over Wuxi Raise thereafter. The
EWNIEHE BEEED cash flows from the disposal are as follows:
BeRE0T
AREFr
RMB’000
FRESRE Consideration received
—BeRE — Cash consideration -
B EERERAENReR Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by
REEEY Wauxi Raise (4,8583)
EEEmZ TR FE Net cash paid on disposals (4,853)
EEIRBENFEENT ¢ The net assets of Wuxi Raise are as
follows:
REEBH
On disposal
date
AR TFT
RMB’000
B Cash 4,853
B 5 R E A EUKIA Trade and other receivables 30,000
B 5 REHAD R IR Trade and other payables (111)
FEE Net assets 34,742
VN Attributable to:
mEInEERFEA Owners of Wuxi Raise 13,897
IR I R A i Non-controlling interests 20,845
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47 REXEBELENRESE)

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

(e) (#&) (e) (continued)
(i) N-ZE—=F/\A8+K (iii) On 14 August 2013, Zunhua Raise Real
H B{ImEREHERE Estate Company Limited (B{tim&ERE
ERAF([EImE])# WEREBRAR) (“Zunhua Raise”)
1758 KRAFIREELE commenced its liquidation procedures,
WB((ImEMNESE - F the Company lost control over Zunhua
AHENRSREENT Raise thereafter. The cash flows from the
disposal are as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
FrEBRE Consideration received
—RERE — Cash consideration* 7,787
B B EnERANRE K Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by
REEED Zunhua Raise (9,787)
A& M NRIREFEE Net cash paid on disposals (2,000)
) BeNER .}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ & Cash consideration represents the
BEEMBERE settlement amounts received from the
liquidation.
EERBENFEENT The net assets of Zunhua Raise are as
follows:
RE B
On disposal
date
ARETFT
RMB’000
b7k Cash 9,787
B 5 Rk H b EUGRIE Trade and other receivables 226
B 5 REHA RN IR Trade and other payables (13)
FEE Net assets 10,000
PATRFEAS - Attributable to:
BILRERERITFEA Owners of Zunhua Raise 8,000
FEIE AR AR R o Non-controlling interests 2,000
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47 REXBELENRE () 47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
() (&) (continued)
(iv) NR_E—=FNA=TAh (iv) On 29 September 2013, Xiamen AVIC

H: EFFmMEmEER
ERAG([MEEEAD
Al #ETIER  ARAHR
bR EEHMETE QAN
THE - BALENES
MEWLT ¢

Property Management Company Limited
(EFR M= EEERAF]) (“Property
Management Company”) commenced
its liguidation procedures, the Company
lost control over Property Management
Company thereafter. The cash flows from
the disposal are as follows:

AR¥TT
RMB’000
FrEBRE Consideration received
—BeRE — Cash consideration* 2,099
B MEEERAFENRE K Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by Property
ReEEY Management Company (2,099)
EHEmZTRIES T8 Net cash paid on disposals -
* ReEREBEERRBRM * Cash consideration represents the
EBMBEERIE - settlement amounts received from the
liquidation.
MEBERANTEEN The net assets of Property Management
N Company are as follows:
R E B
On disposal
date
ARETFr
RMB’000
B Cash 2,099
FEE Net assets 2,099
AT FEAS - Attributable to:
MESBENREREBEA Owners of Property Management Company 2,099

TR R A SR A an

Non-controlling interests
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342

REXBEENRS(#)

(e) (#&)

v) R—_ZT—=%+ — A
—+]H8 - glEEEET
BZ(EM)ERRAREF
TRAR]ETEE K
NAEIE R EE G F TR
NAIRZEGE - BRALE

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)
(continued)
(v) On 26 November 2013, CATIC

Oceanographic Engineering (Xiamen)
Company Limited (gliELEE TR (EP)
& BB A 7) (“Oceanographic Engineering
Company”) commenced its liquidation
procedures, the Company lost control

RIS RELAT : over Oceanographic Engineering Company
thereafter. The cash flows from the
disposal are as follows:

ARETFT
RMB’000
FRERR(E Consideration received
—HeRE — Cash consideration -
B EFIREARFENRE K Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by
REEEY Oceanographic Engineering Company (673)
E & W2 IR & F 5 Net cash paid on disposals (673)

BEIRRANFEEN

The net assets of Oceanographic

e Engineering Company are as follows:

REEBHE

On disposal

date

AREFT

RMB’000

He Cash 673

B 5 N E A EWEIR Trade and other receivables 1,301

ME - BE MRE Property, plant and equipment 117

FEE Net assets 2,091
AT (L - Attributable to:

BEFTIREARERFERA Owners of Oceanographic Engineering Company 1,568

FETZ PR AR R AE 2 Non-controlling interests 523
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47

REXBEENRS(#)

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)
(e) (#&) (e) (continued)
(vi) R—-DZETE—=+— A (vi) On 28 November 2013, Xiamen Hangyi

—tTNB - EFMEAM
BRAR([ME])ETE
8 ARARBREHM
ENEGE - BRALEDN

Stone Material Company Limited (EF9fn
EAMAR AR (“Hangyi”’) commenced its
liquidation procedures, the Company lost
control over Hangyi thereafter. The cash

BemEnT flows from the disposal are as follows:
AEBTT
RMB’000
PRERRHRE Consideration received
—HeHE — Cash consideration -
B MBEHENRES MRS SEEY  Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by Hangyi (406)
& X IR %5 Net cash paid on disposals (406)

MENFEENT The net assets of Hangyi are as follows:

R E B

On disposal

date

AREFT

RMB’000

R Cash 406

B 5 R H M EWGRIA Trade and other receivables 1,364

VI - BB N E Property, plant and equipment 297

B 5 REAERFIR Trade and other payables (2,048)

FEE Net assets 19
AR B - Attributable to:

MEBESFEA Owners of Hangyi 12

IR I R A i Non-controlling interests 7
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47 REXBELENRT(®) 47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(e) (#&) (e) (continued)
(vi) (#&) (vi)  (continued)
i EELENE SRS The cash flows from above disposals are
B - summarised as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
FrEERE Consideration received
—ReRE — Cash consideration 9,886
B THEWNBARFENRE R Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by the
REEEY subsidiaries disposed of (17,865)
E &M IR & FE Net cash paid on disposals (7,979)
FTHENBRARMNTZEE The net assets of the subsidiaries disposed
BRatan T - of are summarised as follows:
AR TT
RMB’000
W4 Cash 17,865
B 5 KLEME W FIE Trade and other receivables 32,997
Y% REREE A1) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 414
E 5 N EMER IR Trade and other payables (2,934)
HEE Net assets 48,342
AT (L - Attributable to:
FrENBATERITA A Owners of the subsidiaries disposed 25,332
FEFE AT AR B A 25 Non-controlling interests 23,010
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48

HEEH

48 CONTINGENCIES

RZZBE—=F+"A=+—0H " x&H

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the following

BN REEM R - financial guarantees outstanding:
BREEASENRE ERUSEAEBNEZ AEBEREE
BRA Guarantor’s relationship ER¥% Guarantee’s relationship Outstanding
Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group amounts guaranteed
AREFT
RMB’000
ERAR AEENEAR ZNPTHMEIBRAR  BERF 607,960
Beijing Company Subsidiary of the Group  Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Associated Company
Heavy Industry Limited
EMPMAEMEIFRAR)
ERRE AEERBAA EFRENETERAR ERABRERER 176,000
6% &
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Xiamen Tianma Microglectronics  The guarantor holds 6%
Company Limited equity interests in the
(BEFRREMEFERAR) guarantee
EMAA TEEHBAR Radiance Catico YN 162,022
Offshore Pte. Ltd
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Radiance Catico Associated Company
Offshore Pte. Ltd
ERRE s VNG ER%ethEZERAR  BERA 60,000
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Xiamen Zijing CATIC Company  Associated Company
Limited
(EFZermESERAR)
ERRF FEENEAR ENBEIRERAR F=h 44,530
Beijing Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Zhengli Ocean Engineering Third party
Company Limited
(En@FIRBRAR)
IRAF AEEHERR PRBEEIRERAR BERT 19,600
Engineering Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ CATIC Construction Associated Company
Engineering Company Limited
(PMBETEBRAR)
1,070,112
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346

HEEE(E)

48 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

R-E——F+_-_A=+—HH &X&EH

BIATREETBHER

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had the following
financial guaranties outstanding:

ERAEASENEE ERUSEAZENER FEBERSE
ERA Guarantor’s relationship E{R¥% Guarantee’s relationship Outstanding
Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group amounts guaranteed
AREFT
RMB’000
BB AEERBELA WREEERDERAA te B T AL R 120,000
Weihai Shipyard Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Co.,Ltd. Under common control of
(ILRBEERMERAR) PRC Government
B S VNG BEBEEERAR e B A £ R 150,000
Weihai Shipyard Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Group Co.,Ltd. Under common control of
(BEBEBERLA) PRC Government
IRFMETIERAR S EYNG WRFHETHAREREE RERINAERYUK 37,000
ARAR 10% %
Shandong New Shipbuilding Subsidiary of the Group  Shandong New Shipbuilding ~ The guarantor holds 10%
Co., Ltd. Ship Steel Outfitting Co., Ltd.  equity interest in the
(LR ETIMARERE quarantee
EHERAR)
WRFMETIERARA FEENEAR WS E TEAE Rk ERABERRER 10,000
ARAT 10%#E%
Shandong New Shipbuilding Subsidiary of the Group  Shandong New Shipbuilding ~ The guarantor holds 10%
Co., Ltd. Pipe Outfitting Production equity interest in the
Co., Ld(UFHMETIEE  guarantee
RREERAT)
RFMETERAR s VNG BEBEEERAR e B A £ R 55,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Co., Ltd. Under common control of
(BEEEEERAT) PRC Government
WRFMETIERAR AEEHERR BEEEEERAA de B LR ) 55,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Group Co., Ltd. Under common control of
(BEBEEERAT) PRC Government
EFARE S NG EFREHEFERAR BRARAERER 140,000
6%HE
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Xiamen Tianma Microelectronics  The guarantor holds 6%
Co., Ltd. equity interest in the
guarantee
CATICO Investments Pte. Ltd. TEERBAT Radiance Catico Offshore ERABE AR 166,018
Pte. Ltd.
CATICO Investments Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary of the Group  Radiance Catico Associate company of
Offshore Pte. Ltd. the guarantor
733,018
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49 EiE 49 COMMITMENTS
(a) EBREIE (a) Capital commitments
RESHNAEENE REAED Capital commitments at the balance sheet date
s but not yet incurred are as follows:
REE
Group
—E—=F T
2013 2012
AEB¥FiT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEESEER 3 Contracted but not
provided for
ME - BE KRG Property, plant and equipment 90,393 118,412
ERPYE Properties under development 1,088,624 732,970
1,179,017 851,382
REE
Group
=2 = —E——F
2013 2012
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREERETAN Authorised but not contracted for
ME - BB KRERE Property, plant and equipment 4,005,583 2,497,350
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49 EIEE)

50

348

49 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) RERLNRIE (b) Operating lease commitments
7N 55 B AR R i A I A B] S The Group has commitments under non-
EEFAAAIELT cancellable operating leases in respect of office
premises as follows:
—E-=F T
2013 2012
AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TiEBE—4F Not later than one year 103,860 88,263
BE—FETHBARSE Later than one year and not later than five
years 191,058 141,954
294,918 230,217

EBast

(@)

RZE—=F—AWMH ' A5£H
FE 2 E M B A 7] i B PR M AR
RBER AR (RIEFMERIRES
PR A &) 52 Bk W B 122 4th B AR 100%
P - BREUATH A REM :
(iR 2R EARK214,866,0007C
(25,980,000 7T ) + R (ii) Aic 2 K
22174 H9500AVIC International
Marine Engineering Pte. Ltd.
([AIME 1) &9 5% B% 0 15 & A 122 i
EMBREZNHKRORE - £
17 E A AR ¥ 50,691,000 7T
(6,129,000887T) ° AIME&R RS
ME2ENBLAR - WEBELER
2 AR%120,891,0007T )8 8 A&
SEEEMEREHEETRET
TR R RR T e o

50 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@)

On 4 January 2013, AVIC International Maritime
Holdings Limited (formerly known as AVIC
International Investments Limited), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, completed the
acquisition of 100% of the equity interests of
Deltamarin for an aggregated consideration
satisfied as follows: (i) cash consideration of
RMB214,866,000 (EUR25,980,000), and (ii)
the allotment and issuance of an aggregate of
950 new shares of AVIC International Marine
Engineering Pte. Ltd. (“AIME”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, as share
consideration to the shareholders of Deltamarin
amounting to an aggregated issue price of
RMB50,691,000 (EUR6,129,000). Goodwill of
RMB120,891,000 arising from the acquisition
was attributable to economies of scale expected
from combining the operations of the Group and
Deltamarin.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



PA ISR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

50 ¥K&6t@) 50 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b) KEHRYRIEE) (b) Operating lease commitments (continued)

®RME: Consideration: ARETFT

R-EBE—=F—HAWNAH At 4 January 2013 RMB’000

R Cash 214,866

FEITAIMEFT IR Issuing new shares of AIME 50,691
265,557

METWBEERFIREER Recognised amounts of identifiable assets

WRNEEE acquired and liabilities assumed

BeRIREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 44,347

B 5 R H A R GRIE Trade and other receivables 79,697

| EE(KE10) Intangible assets (Note 10) 98,217

Yz - B MR (A1) Property, plant and equipment (Note 117) 4,413

FRAEREARNRE Investments accounted for using the equity method

(Kta£15)) (Note 15(b)) 3,232

EIEFT B R E E (M17420) Deferred income tax assets (Note 20) 243

B 5 NE M N RIE Trade and other payables (59,596)

BIERIA B & (H7720) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) (25,887)

B R EEAEE Total identifiable net assets 144,666

BEGiEE) Goodwill (Note 9) 120,891
265,557

BE-E2—=F—AWBRE_Z
—=f+Z_A=+—BR&EA
W R ABBSHEE YK
A B A R #288,347,000 T ° 1=
HEMRRBEEERTMNARE
27,009,0007T °

Revenue of RMB288,347,000 included in the
consolidated income statement from 4 January
2013 to 31 December 2013 was contributed
by Deltamarin. Deltamarin contributed profit of
RMB27,009,000 over the same period.
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350

EBEpt =) 50 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
b) RZZE—Z=F-A=ZF+H8 ' &x&E (b) On 30 June 2013, AVIC Resources, a wholly

E2EMBRARFRMERARE
A R #£96,690,000 7T 5e A% U B 1Ly
REBERBEXHEFR AR T70%K

1 o

TREEILRBIRE AR
B RUKBARMBAZESRMN

owned subsidiary of the Group, completed the
acquisition of 70% of the equity interests of
Shandong Luyuan Mining Investment Co., Ltd. (1

BRMWEERE AR AF) (“Shandong Luyuan’) at

a consideration of RMB96,690,000.

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for Shandong Luyuan, fair value of the assets

REABENAAEE - acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date.
RE : Consideration: AT T
R-ZE—=FxXA=+H At 30 June 2013 RMB’000
BHer Cash* 96,690
MATWBEERFIRESERE Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
mRANEEE acquired and liabilities assumed
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,005
B 5 N E M EUGRIR Trade and other receivables 62,812
BRI RE ([T 2E8) Exploration and extraction rights (Note 8) 240,660
VI - E RERE (N E11) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 2,267
B 5 Kk EHMER IR Trade and other payables (125,933)
BRIERIAE & (H7720) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) (44,683)
AREIFEEERE Total identifiable net assets 138,128
JER AR I R A 2 Non-controlling interests (41,438)
96,690

* REERZ=ZT—ZFE -

BT Z=ZFftA-BEMER
FAEKRBERFALRBROYK
A UREBRRABELBEBA

K #2,050,0007T °

Consideration has been paid in 2012.

No revenue included in the consolidated income
statement since 1 July 2013 was contributed by
Shandong Luyuan. Shandong Luyuan contributed

losses of RMB2,050,000 over the same period.
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51

EXEBAIRZ

AN B PR AR A BB (A AR B K S A
BREDES - ZAREEKEERE
BAEARA TSR () o E#225% K5
HARBZREE - EFRA  PME

BhPBEMETIEEE QR HHRIT
EDES E'Jf’jﬁ‘élél’ﬁ NGNS =4S
T J'L/\

BB EMEBo REESN - A
SEEAEXRBGBIET EE R T

51

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by AVIC International, a state-
controlled company established in the PRC which directly
and indirectly hold 75% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 25% of the shares are widely held. The
directors regard AVIC International and Aviation Industry
Corporation of China (“Aviation Industry”) as the holding
company and ultimate holding company of the Group
respectively.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant related party

TREREBM ARG NABH LTRSS transactions entered into in the ordinary course of
EEREERB T business between the Group and its related parties and
the balances arising from related party transactions:
(a) EEEBINRZS (a) Transactions with related parties
AEH
Group
—E—= T4
2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA - Revenue:
HEEY Sale of goods
/NG - Associates 895,139 607,355
—HRITERE - Fellow subsidiaries of
I NG Aviation Industry 385,380 90,787
HEZGE - Jointly controlled entities 48,590 112,195
—3H Hxﬂx%%ﬁ - Non-controlling interests 21,334 754,960
— EARYERR A 7] - Ultimate holding company 392 10,804
e NG - Holding company 290 1,442
1,351,125 1,577,543
HERA Rental income
—HRITERZE — Fellow subsidiaries of Aviation
M A Industry 12,055 10,421
— BN A — Associates 1,509 1,657
13,564 12,078
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51 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(@) BREBINXZ(E)

51 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

REE
Group
—E—= ===
2013 2012
AR¥EFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEEEBIA Engineering and management income
—thTER R — Fellow subsidiaries of
L )EEPNG] Aviation Industry 16,650 155,393
— R A T] — Holding company 55 3,299
— B¢ A R] — Associates - 1,800
16,705 160,492
EAARF A Other service income
—FhRTER K - Fellow subsidiaries of
L )EENG] Aviation Industry 46,062 19,670
— LRI - AVIC Shenzhen 2,830 -
NG - Associates 9,396 4,096
— HEEE e — Jointly controlled entities 216 468
—¥ERR A A] — Holding company 183 22,103
— PR AT — Ultimate holding company - 221
58,687 46,558
BEE MRS Purchase of goods and services:
BEEMm Purchases of goods
—HRITERE — Fellow subsidiaries of
LN ENG! Aviation Industry 364,942 134,477
/NG — Associates 448,175 709,321
— FEIEMR AR R A — Non-controlling interests = 1,793,466

813,117 2,637,264
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51

EXBBARS (&)

(@) BREBINXZ(E)

51 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

AEE
Group
=F—= —E—_F
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEIRREERS Purchases of engineering and
management services
—HRTERE - Fellow subsidiaries of
L )EEPNG] Aviation Industry 64,043 25,639
— B A R] — Associates 23,786 =
— PR IR R M e - Non-controlling interests 227 =
— HEEHI T — Jointly controlled entities - 4,375
88,056 30,014
THESMMMEETIEEM Rental fee and property
management fee
—HRTERZE — Fellow subsidiaries of
A A Aviation Industry 3,267 6,275
HoAth AR 75 A AR Other service costs
— PR I¥RE ~ Fellow subsidiaries of
Lay=pNG| Aviation Industry 40,185 44,729
— s R — AVIC Shenzhen - )
40,185 44,737
BRI Interest expenses
—HITERZR - Fellow subsidiaries of
L I)ESPNG] Aviation Industry 93,104 82,009
—1ERR A T] — Holding company 46,478 47,075
— R — AVIC Shenzhen 21,369 24,845
160,951 163,929
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51 BEREEBAIRZ &) 51 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) EHEEBAINRSZ(E) (a) Transactions with related parties (continued)
rEH
Group
—=Z=—= ===
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
g & Acquisition of investment
- /NG ) - Holding company (i) 42,000 -
HERE Disposed of investment
—fn T — Fellow subsidiaries of
EES =) Aviation Industry (i) 49,230 41,890

354

KR B A = B R B
S H R B R R FERN
o%hﬁ REBARK
42,000,000 7T ( Fff 5% 30(a)
(iv) e

OSSN =S = e
R

it R A B B R E K F i 22
WEER QA ([ REX
MOIR=—_ZT—=%+—A
BRI ERGE -
HE_-_Z—=+=-A
=+—Hi - EmRRFE
MRERMHEER LE
e T =R R R s B R A R
NAIMEEE% R + RE
B ARKEA49,230,0007T °

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

On 12 December 2013, the Company
purchased from AVIC International 40%
shares in its subsidiary, RED Company, at
a consideration of RMB42,000,000 (Note

30(a)(iv)).

Beijing Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Tianjin Tianli
Aviation Electro-mechanical Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Tianli”) (RZXFM=EEFR
A ®|]) on 7 November, 2013. As at 31
December 2013, Beijing Company had
disposed of all its 5% share in Shanghai
Schneider Low Voltage Terminal Electric
Co., Ltd. (EBBMEEBRKRIHEREGRA
a]) with the consideration RMB49,230,000
to Tianjin Tianli.
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51 EXRBEEAIRB (&) 51

(@) BREBINXZ(E)
HRFHEERNRS

ARARIREBRE  AFBEBM
BRATRS o BB E Bl e B
NEOKEBDEEEERER - XN
NAEE A B R EGEEHN
RHGR/RBBIRD - LERHE
EEERETHEAERTEFRAS
EBBER - FA - ARARETF
EMREEHFRNBEART - M
PRBEFRGRBARITEA -

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties (continued)
Transactions with government related entities:

The Company is a state-owned enterprise
ultimately controlled by the PRC government. The
PRC government controls a significant portion
of the productive assets and entities in the PRC.
The transactions between the Company and
other PRC government controlled entities are
related party transactions. These transactions
mainly include depositing cash in and obtaining
borrowings from certain stated-owned banks.

Nearly all of the Company’s cash were deposited
in and all of the borrowings were borrowed from
state-owned banks during the year.

(b) EEEAEE A KVAEER (b)  Balances with related parties
HEEBANERH EEER - The balances with related parties companies are
RERBREREE - unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

AEE

Group
—E-=F —E-CF
2013 2012
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Hh eI IR Other receivables
kNG - Associates 217,345 492,435
—FRMIERK ~ Fellow subsidiaries of

oy NE] Aviation Industry 214,317 293,314
— IR A) — Holding company 89,035 134,265
— R — AVIC Shenzhen 11,500 11,700
— KA E — Jointly controlled entities 5 5,882
— FEVERR AR R M — Non-controlling interests - 387,289

532,202 1,324,885

S Interest receivables
kNG - Associates 14,041 6,181
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51 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(b)  EREAEETEVAEER(E)

51 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (continued)

rEH
Group
—_E—= —E—F
2013 2012
AR¥EFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT Accounts receivable
—thTER R — Fellow subsidiaries of
L )EEPNG] Aviation Industry 254,986 150,083
kNG - Associates 211,279 321,126
— HEEH T — Jointly controlled entities 27,579 31,816
— IR A R] — Holding company 10,569 17,737
— R A A - Ultimate holding company 65 511
— PR IR R A e — Non-controlling interests - 285,496
504,478 806,769
BT RIA Prepayments
o /N — Associates 53,255 2,489
—FRTERE — Fellow subsidiaries of
oY= ENE] Aviation Industry 2,356 5,107
— PR A R] — Holding company 1,969 =
— IR AR R A — Non-controlling interests - 169,024
57,580 176,620
fEEtE A R EMERFIE  Accrual and other payables
—FRTERZ — Fellow subsidiaries of
L= YNS] Aviation Industry 54,623 214,398
— PR AF] - Holding company 42,830 142,272
— AR — AVIC Shenzhen 8,280 8,377
/NG — Associates 437 7,326
— PR IR R A e — Non-controlling interests = 21,000
—aEE - Joint ventures - 3,699
106,170 397,072
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EXBBARS (&)

(b)  EREAEETTEVAEER(E)

51 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (continued)

TEH
Group
=2 = —T——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERTRRSX Accounts payable
— B ERR] - Associates 457,829 110,933
—FhRTER K — Fellow subsidiaries of
oy NE]| Aviation Industry 51,733 38,161
— IR A R] - Holding company 468 327
— PR IR R M e - Non-controlling interests - 209,561
— HEE T — Jointly controlled entities = 1,963
510,030 360,945
B ENK Advance from customers
—HRITERZR — Fellow subsidiaries of
BB A Aviation Industry 137,332 142,193
/NG — Associates 61,235 152,302
— =R AR] — Holding company 4,398 3,864
—#T Hxﬂxﬁ%é — Non-controlling interests = 49,368
HEESIEE — Jointly controlled entities - 27,438
202,965 375,165
FERTRI B Interest payables
— R A T] — Holding company 10,479 =
—HRITERE — Fellow subsidiaries of
L= YNG Aviation Industry 1,666 920
— iR — AVIC Shenzhen 845 924
— IR AR R M e — Non-controlling interests - 1,435
12,990 3,279
HEmIEmBatE Other non-current liabilities
YN - Holding company 800,000 1,050,000
— AR — AVIC Shenzhen 100,000 100,000

900,000 1,150,000
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51 B AREBAEXZ &) SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) BB 5 AR () Borrowings from related parties
PN ]
Group
—E——F g B —E-=%
2012 Additions Repayment 2013
AREFT AREFT ANREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR BRI Included in other payables
(H17£36(a)) (Note 36(a))
—HAmMIERZ - Fellow subsidiaries of
KBAR Aviation Industry 472,148 303,433 (761,027 104,554
— IR AR R A - Non-controlling interests 4,280 14,875 = 19,155
— AR - AVIC Shenzhen 358,345 3,692 (357,037) -
] YN - Holding company 17,578 307,422 (250,000) 75,000
847,351 719,422 (1,368,064) 198,709
ATAER(HI7232) Included in borrowings
(Note 32)
~FRIERZ - Fellow subsidiaries of
YN Aviation Industry 951,767 1,462,845 (988,091) 1,426,521
d) HBFEBEINER (d) Loan to related parties
bS]
Group
—T-CF #ig BE —B-=%
2012 Additions Repayment 2013
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SEAE A E U ROE Included in other receivables
(fi:z24()) (Note 24(b))
L VN - Associates 342,136 96,772 (217,086) 221,822
— R R - Non-controlling interests - 8,000 = 8,000
—FfRI — AVIC Shenzhen 18,055 - (18,055) -
360,191 104,772 (235,141) 229,822
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52

53

WERREE

AR EEENBARBREEAR
RAI([BR]  REBFEMEAZHERA
7)) REFAKHD 20% B B1TIRA - R=
T—=%+H+—H ' AVIC Engineering
EKHD R B IR 3R & 51 3 + = 17 1 & A
W KHD A $£19.93% B 1T IR A ([ 1
ZEE]) - FEMEEEER - AVIC
Engineering#:% S #7 i A &) (NE /&
ApaEE AR XRAERELN (24
BE]) -

RZZFE—NF—A+=H mzEEK
EANEBELE TN - AEBEEZEHNIN
R B AKHD R B 38 2289.02% © A&
B B 1S ¥ KHD R I 4 - B Z EKHD
EEeREEEESNARZLHKE -

B BREH
AEBER-_T——-F—A—AKRMHEHA
REFERAE19R(ZF——FEFA)
[BERA] - et BREVHHREA
WMNRE -

(@) HRERSFTEIAFI9HR(=F
——FBFF)
RER] R BRI R BRI 18
MR 8 JBREEE
SIAZE - ERITNHEFFE
B WA BRIBFNEENF
RAERBANEEBERBREG
HEH - WERMNZELMRE
FARER AT 81 B E TR ¥Ry o Al
B o

ZERHRREFNFENT R
FR e

52

53

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Max Glory Industries Limited (“Max Glory”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, originally held 20%
issued share capital of KHD. On 11 October 20183,
AVIC Engineering entered into twelve agreements each
with a original shareholder of KHD to acquire altogether
19.983% of the issued share capital of KHD (“Agreement
Purchasing”). Following the Agreements Purchasing,
AVIC Engineering launched an offer to acquire the
remaining shares together with Singapore Companies
which are essentially affiliated to the Company (“Offer
Purchasing”).

As at 13 January 2014, the Agreements Purchasing
and the Offer Purchasing have been completed, the
Group and the Singapore Company shareholding in
KHD increased to 89.02%. The Group will obtain control
over KHD when it appoints the majority members of the
supervisory board and management board of KHD.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has adopted IAS 19 (Revised 2011),
‘Employee benefits’ on 1 January 2012. The new
accounting policy has had the following impact on the
financial statements.

(a) Adoption of IAS 19 (revised 2011)

The revised employee benefit standard introduces
changes to the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of post-employment
benefits. The standard also requires net interest
expense/income to be calculated as the product
of the net defined benefit liability/assets and the
discount rate as determined at the beginning
of the year. The effect of this is to remove the
previous concept of recognising an expected
return on plan assets.

The effect of the changes to the accounting policy
is shown in the following tables.
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R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

53 EtBE®F &) 53 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
SRR SRS EEEBERNTE Impact of change in accounting policy on

consolidated balance sheet

i
R e B ReER -2-cF FRAE
B OEHEY  2-=F -%-

g-2F  giEl s Rz &l R
- St F10% tZB  tZA= 198  =t-R  E-zF #1988 -5--fF
t-f (CB--% =t-R t-8 (ZB--% f% -B-R (ZB--% -jB-A
=t-R Bi%) RS (REE2N)  BEA)  (BEN)  (REEN)  #EIK)  (BED)

Asat 31 As at 31 Asat1
Asat31  December December January Asat1
Asat31  AdoptIAS  December 2012 Adopt IAS 2012 as 2012 Adopt IAS January
December 19 (revised 2013as  (previously 19 (revised  presented (previously 19 (revised 2012

2013 2011)  presented stated) 2011)  (restated) stated) 2011)  (restated)
NEETE NEETT AEETr AEETr AEETn AEETT ARETT AREFT  ARETT
RMB'O00  AMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'O00  AMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000

BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
THERE Land us rights 1,438,645 - 1438645 1,203,452 - 1208450 1,214,682 - 1214682
R RERE Exploration and extraction rights 836,543 - 836,543 505,317 - 505,317 519,906 - 519,906
BaES Goodwil 385,435 - 385,435 264,544 - 264,544 260,236 - 260,236
BYEE Intangible assets 244,530 - 244,530 156,286 - 156,286 151,236 - 151,236
nE  BEREE Property, plant and equipment 8,536,709 - 853,709 8,673,372 - 86733712 9,659,889 - 9,659,889
BCvIES Investment properties 2,163,150 - 2,153,150 2,099,314 - 2099314 2,030,986 - 2,030,986
FRIR Construction-in-progress 1,879,385 - 187938 1,262,051 - 1252051 1,128,005 - 1,128,005
PREREARNRE Investments accounted for using

the equity method 4,386,692 - 4386692 4,298,291 - 4298291 3,738,157 - 8,738,157
BARAMEKSE Trade and other receivables 248,040 - 248040 388,600 - 388600 308772 -3
MHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 291,000 - 291,000 259,819 - 259,819 205,046 - 205,046
ELHEHAE Deferred income tax assets 311,133 502 311,635 264,331 468 264,799 234,018 351 234,369
HfEREEE Other non-current assets 2,046,166 - 2046166 300916 - 309916 174,120 - 1410

22,757,518 502 22,758,020 19,765,293 468 19,765,761 19,625,063 351 19,625,404

HBEE Current assets
& Inventories 4,614,870 - 4614870 3,825,057 - 3825057 3,802,632 - 3,802,532
BRmNE Properties under development 2,317,086 - 237,086 1,266,078 - 1,256,078 494,427 - 494,427
BSRAMERE Trade and other receivables 10,368,510 - 10,368,610 9,525,625 - 9525625 8,309,786 - 8,300,786
BRISeHEAE Held-to-maturity financial assets = d = L = = 15,000 = 15,000
ERANTIEZFE Amounts due from customers for

contract work 1,493,175 - 1493175 1,161,194 - 1,161,194 802,666 - 802,666
fTEeRIR Derivative financial instruments 5,405 - 5,405 3,110 - 3110 - - -
BRRTER Pledged bank deposits 641,426 - 641,426 510,563 - 510,563 557,414 - 557,414
ReRREEEN Cash and cash equivalents 4,802,843 - 4802843 4,038,225 - 4038225 3,249,891 - 3,249,801

24,243,315 - 24243315 20,319,752 - 20319752 17,231,716 - 17,231,716

BEE Total assets 47,000,833 502 47,001,335 40,085,045 468 40,085,513 36,856,769 351 86,857,120
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53 E3tBEEFH &) 53 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
R
BB Rz R RGER -3-°% BHILELS
R EiEH  3-=F -3--F  giEl e K= &tk R
-3z F19% tZB  tZA= £198% =t-R  E-ZF #1988 -8-°F

t=R (=8--f =t-H t-A (Z8--F g -A-A (2B3--%  -A-H
=t-B BT Mog  (RE2H)  BIA)  (BER)  (%WEH)  #TA)  (BE)

Asat 31 As at 31 Asat1
Asat31  December December January Asat1
Asat31  AdoptIAS  December 2012 Adopt IAS 2012 as 2012 Adopt IAS January
December 19 (revised 2013as (previously 19 (revised  presented (previously 19 (revised 2012

2013 2011)  presented stated) 2011)  (restated) stated) 2011)  (restated)
NEEFT NEEFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000  RAMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

s EQUITY
KARRREEARL Capital and reserves attributable to
ERERE owners of the Company

e Share capital 1,110,632 - 1,110632 1,110,632 - 1,110,632 673,367 - 673,367
BiHEE Share premium 1,294,633 - 1204633 1,294,633 - 1,294,633 354,513 - 354,513
KARBARRES Perpetual subordinated convertiole

securities 2,181,674 - 2781674 2,781,674 - 2781674 - - -
ks Other reserves (402,391) (1,810) (404,201) (378,924) (1,151) (380,075) 3,816,137 - 3,816,137
AARFE Retained eamings 3,582,315 2,764 3535079 2,764,599 (1,771) 2,762,828 1,794,760 (2,634 1,792,126

8,316,863 94 8317817 7,572,614 (2922) 7569692 6,638,777 (2,634) 6,636,143

FERRRER Non-controlling interests 4,399,801 2 4399803 3,989,079 ) 3989077 4078716 6 4,078,722
B Total equity 12,716,064 96 12,717,620 11,561,693 (2924) 11,558,769 10,717,493 (2,628) 10,714,865
8f LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EE Borrowings 6,182,333 - 6182333 4,044,826 - 4044826 4,962,303 - 4,962,303
ELHEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 624,760 - 624,760 539,245 - 539,245 526,800 - 526,800
HRERETRA Deferred income on government grants 570,576 - 570576 538990 - 5390 576231 - 576231
K Provisions - - - - - - 10,360 - 10,360
BARERENTE Trade and other payables 44,871 - 44,871 46,128 - 46,128 24,335 - 24,335
RINRAMERERIESE  Retirement and other supplemental

benefit obligations 43,323 (454) 42,869 48,064 1,212 49,276 46,595 2,627 49,222
HfRBaE Other non-current labilties 956,152 - 06152 1,024 - 1202424 153,363 - 153363

8,422,015 (454) 8421561 6,419,677 1212 6420889 6,299,987 2627 6,302,614

PHERERBROERARE 2013FEwME 361



R R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

53 EtBE®F &) 53 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
R
e Rz R F@ER -3-°f K%
£ &ifER tZh KD &tk 7

gitky -z -E-
.1_

R

Z5-CF £19% 128 g19% =t-B %-2f £19% -B-ZfF
t=h (=8--% =1-8 t-8 (ZB-—-% f3% -B-R (Z3--% -B-H
=1-H Bi%) fad  (£E25)  BIA)  (BEH)  (%EEE)  #EA)  (8E5)

Asat 31 As at 31 As at1
Asat31  December December January Asat1
Asat31  AdoptIAS  December 2012 Adopt IAS 2012as 2012 Adopt IAS January
December 19 (revised 2013as  (previously 19 (revised  presented (previously 19 (revised 2012

2013 2011)  presented stated) 2011)  (restated) stated) 2011)  (restated)
NEETE AEBTr AEEFr AEETn AEEFn AGETr AREFrT AREFr  AREFI
RMB000  AMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  AMB000  RMB000

HBaE Current liabilities
BARERETFE Trade and other payables 12,697,401 - 12697401 11,232,783 - 11,232,783 10,500,403 - 10,500,403
EffaTREFHE Amounts due to customers for

contract work 194,180 - 194,180 200,434 - 200,434 964,180 - 964,180
s Borrowings 12,751,554 - 12,751,054 10,561,740 - 10,561,740 8,205,377 - 8,206,377
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 44 - 44
FHRERAR Current income tax liabilties 214,355 - 214,355 106,526 - 106,526 165,043 - 165,043
RINREGEABFEL  Retirement and other supplemental

benefit obligations 4,664 - 4,664 2192 2,180 4,372 3845 352 4,197

25,862,154 - 25,862,154 22,103,675 2,180 22,105,855 19,839,289 352 19,839,641

#eE Total liabilities 34,284,169 (454) 34283715 28,523,352 3392 28,526,744 26,139,276 2979 26,142,255
BREENER Total equity and liabilities 47,000,833 502 47,001,335 40,085,045 468 40,085,513 36,856,769 351 36,857,120
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53 E3tBEEFH &) 53 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BB BHERESRERNTE Impact of change in accounting policy on the
consolidated income statement

Bz

Bz ZB-CF

Bz HinER Bz C-B--f RinER +=A

ZB-ZF gitER  —EB-=% +=A e =t+-H

t=A F19% t=A == F19% LEE

=t-A (=B--% =t-At L5 (ZB—-% gl

LEE BiIR)  EERSIR  (BESIE) {ZHES) (&E3)

For the year For the year

For the year ended 31 ended 31

For the year ended 31  December December

ended31  AdoptIAS  December 2012 Adopt IAS 2012 as

December 19 (revised 2013as  (previously 19 (revised  presented

2013 2011)  presented stated) 2011)  (restated)

AREFT  AEETT ARETT AREFT  ARETr AREFn

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

KA Revenue 33,437,688 - 33,437,688 31,252,572 - 31,252,572

HEKA Cost of sales (29,186,281) - (29,186,281) (27,343,668) - (27,343,668)

E| Gross profit 4,251,407 - 4251407 3,908,904 - 3908904

HEER Distribution costs (1,303,959) - (1,303959)  (1,191,380) - (1,191,380)

THER Administrative expenses (2,158,496) 537 (2,157,959)  (1,743,656) 1,151 (1,742,505)
RENEAREEYE Fair value gain on investment

properties 56,942 - 56,942 101,332 - 101,332

Bt A Other income 740,456 - 740,456 688,367 - 688,367

Etblid — %8 Other gains - net 113,538 - 118,538 37,038 - 37,038

Ryl Operating profit 1,699,888 537 1,700,425 1,800,605 1,151 1,801,756

BERA Finance income 178,643 - 178,643 143,328 - 143,328

HERA Finance costs (960,719) - (960,719) (973,586) - (973,586)

AR F8 Finance costs - net (782,076) - (782076)  (830,258) - (830,258)
BRERENRR Share of profit of investments

ElERE RN accounted for using the

equity method 526,373 - 526,373 477,045 - 477,045

RSB AR R Profit before income tax 1,444,185 537 1444722 1447392 1151 1,448,543

ER(ER) /B8 Income tax (charge)/credited (280,502) 455 (280,047) (182,014) (288) (182,302)

FRER Profit for the year 1,163,683 992 1,164,675 1,265,378 863 1,266,241
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53 EtBE®F &) 53 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
SN BEEHHGEEEARARRNE Impact of change in accounting policy on the
E-1d consolidated statement of comprehensive income
S
e = “F--F
BZE i —F-=C B +-A
—F-= eS| TZA TZA 5HEs ET=E
tZA F19%  =t-A =+-H F195 IERE
=t-A (ZB2—% IHEE ItFE (Z5——% gk
5 EHEN) i (BE5IE) EHEY) (EE51)
For the year For the year
For the year ended 31 ended 31
For the year ended 31 December December
ended 31 Adopt IAS  December 2012 Adopt IAS 2012
December 19 (revised 2013as  (previously 19 (revised as presented
2013 2011) presented stated) 2011) (restated)
AREFT  ANREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERRF Profit for the year 1,163,683 992 1,164,675 1,265,378 863 1,266,241
H2EYE Other comprehensive income:
TOEH T EZERH Items that will not be reclassified to
EH profit or loss
BHHERBEENEL - Remeasurements of post-employment
R benefit obligations, gross of tax = 3,476 3,476 = (1,564) (1,564)
BHHEERERETIES - Remeasurements of post-employment
i benefit obligations, tax - (515) (515) = 405 405
EENEEAREWERS  Gain on transfer of owner-ocoupied
BRI  RMBEZ property to investment property,
gross of tax 11,778 - 11,778 6,831 - 6,831
BENEEARENER  Gainon transfer of owner-occupied
ERRKE B property to investment property, tax (2,943) - (2,943) (1,708) = (1,708)
BEEESHEZER  ltems that may be subsequently
HEH reclassified to profit or loss
HHESBBELAEE  Fairvalue gains on avallable-for-sale
Wz - RABEHR financial assets, gross of tax 10,864 - 10,864 183 - 183
A ESRAEARBE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
W& - B financial assets, tax (2,716) - (2,716) (46) - (46)
BRI EESREERL  Reoycle of fair value gains on available-
BfEME - RGBT for-sale financial assets, gross of tax (5,430) = (5,430) = = =
BORHHEESREERR  Recycle of fair value gains on available-
BENE @ B3R for-sale financial assets, tax 1,357 = 1,357 = = 5
FriE—FBE AFMEM  Share of an associate’s other
TEWE comprehensive income (325) T (325) = - -
MNEREER Currency translation differences (20,409) = (20,409) 24,267 = 24,267
EREM2EKE Other comprehensive income for
(MIBRHEH) the year, net of tax (7,823 2,961 (4,862) 29,527 (1,159) 28,368
ER2EAWE (NBHE)  Total comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax 1,155,860 3,953 1,169,813 1,294,905 (296) 1,294,609
364 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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